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Dominion Rescurces

Dominion Resources is one of the nation’s leading energy companies.

We're traded under the symbol “D” on the New York Stock Exchange and
are proud to have the confidence of more than 400,000 shareholders. We're
also privileged to serve more than 5 million retail energy customer accounts
in nine states. As one of the nation’s largest producers of natural gas and
electric power, we're an established wholesale energy marketer. Qur

$45.4 billion asset base includes 28,100 megawatts of electric generation,
5.9 trillion cubic feet equivalent of proved gas and oil reserves and

nearly 7,900 miles of natural gas transmission pipeline. We also operate the
nation’s largest natural gas storage system with 965 billion cubic feet

of lcapacity.

On the Front Cover

Background photo:

Workers prepare to inspect a storage tank at Dominion Cove Paint, the nation's largest liguefied natural gas
(LNG) facility, located on the western share of the Chesapeake Bay in Maryland.

Small photos left-to-right:

1.J.P. Sheppard (left) and Leonard Franklin prepare a critical daily report to the drilling engineer for an
onshore rig in Sweetwater, Oklahoma. Adjustments are made to ensure the drilling fluid is optimum for current
conditions at the site.

2. Tony Taylor prepares to secure a ship to the pier at Dominian Cove Point.

3./Brayton Paint Power Station in Somerset, Massachusetts, is a 1,521-megawatt coal- and oil-fired facility.
It's one of three power stations in New England added to our fleet in early 2005, Their addition boosts company
generating capacity to more than 28,100 megawatts.
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Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Thomas F. Farrell, I\

President and
Chief Cperating Officer

Dear Shareholders

f you've invested with us over the

long haul, you know we don't

like bandwagons, don't do fads and
aren't wired to make fashionabie

short-term plays.

Instead, we've spent the last five
years building a steadily profitable plat-
form of integrated electric power and
natural gas businesses. They serve the
energy-hungry mid-Atlantic, Midwest and
Northeast. We've hedged our hets and—
thanks to our tireless, energetic and
innovative employees—nhave achieved
superior levels of efficiency, safety and
environmental responsibility. These
results reflect our embedded values. The
businesses we've joined together are
widely recognized by investars and indus-
try analysts for their quality and earnings

stability.

5-Year Total Return In Excess of
115 Percent
In truth, it has been a hard labor of fove,
and a successful one. Qur five-year com-
pounded total return to investors stood at
more than 115 percent on the last trading
day of 2004. Thank you for your contin-
ued confidence and capital.

This measure of sharehalder wealth,
including dividends and share apprecia-

tion, contrasts dramatically with a total

return by the S&P 500 of negative 11
percent. It easily taps respective returns
of 70 percent and negative 3 percent by
the S&P electric and natural gas indexes
over the same period. A $100 investment
in Dominion stock on the first day of
2000 was waorth $215 at the end of 2004,
including reinvested dividends.

But as an investor, you rightly ask,
“What have you done for us lately?”

Let’s first review the basics—eam-
ings, dividends and free cash flow—
before turning te the broader issues of

interest to the long-term investor.

Higher Earnings, Bigger Dividend
and Positive Free Cash Flow

In 2004 we reported earnings of $3.78
per share under Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) compared
to $1.00 per share under GAAP in 2003.
We generated 2004 operating earnings,
excluding certain items, of $4.61 per
share, a slight increase over 2003
operating earnings of $4.55 per share.
You can find the differences between our
operating and GAAP earnings reconciled
in a chart an page 24.

Looking ahead, we've set 2005 earn-
ings targets of $5.00 to $5.10 per share.
When we report our 2005 earnings under
GAAP this target operating range may
exclude items we can't yet quantify or
predict, and will exclude one item noted

on page 25.

Qur five-year
compounded total
return to investors
stood at more than
115 percent on

the last trading day

of 2004.
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For the first time
in 10 years, our
quarterly dividend
increased—

by 3 percent.

D 2004/Page 6

Each year, we set eamings targets
based on fundamental assumptions
and!our best available forecasts.
Unfortunately, we missed the mark twice
in 2004, costing us hard-won credibility
on Wall Street. Largely to biame was
the timing of new fuel-cost recovery
legislation in Virginia, a “miss” that | will
explain later in this letter.

For the first time in 10 years, our
quarterly dividend increased—hby 3 per-
cent. In 2005, we expect to pay $2.68 per
share, up from $2.60 the year before.
Priof to this increase, we paid a steady
dividend rate for a decade, even when
many in our industry cut theirs.

QOur expected cash flow and earnings
should enable us to make future dividend
increases when our board of directors

deems it financially prudent.

Size of Dividend Increase
Balances Shart-term, Long-term
Interests
Our yield is still below that of some com-
petitors. Some have enjoyed run-ups in
theirishare value with share repurchases
or even bigger dividend increases, moves
focused principally on the short term. To
generate sustainable long-term share-
holder value at Dominian, we have bal-
anced shart-term financial opportunities,
suchias dividend increases or debt reduc-
tion, with asset acquisitions and other
long-term investments.

In' the past five years, we have grown
our asset base profitably. Now, it's time

to grow returns on invested capital. Our

challenge will be to manage existing
assets 1o their highest potential—in
shart, to focus on what we own, not new
mergers or acquisitions. Exceptions
would include acquiring a Midwest,
Northeast or mid-Atlantic nuclear station;
replacing natural gas reserves through
acquisitions if it's more effective than
drilling; or continuing buying out
uneconomic power supply contracts at

Dominion Virginia Power.

Increased Free Cash Flow,
Improved Credit Metrics
In 2004, our businesses generated about
$323 million in free cash flow—cash
from operations minus our dividend
payment and net capital expenditures.
Free cash flow helps pay for acquisitions
expected 10 yield genuine long-term
benefits. It also helps to pay down debt.
Key credit metrics used by major rat-
ing agencies to assess the strength of
our balance sheet have improved. Our
company's adjusted debt as a percentage
of its total capital was slightly more than
b4 percent at the end of 2004, down
from nearly 57 percent in 2003. It's
expected to be just shy of 51 percent by
the end of 2005.




We have gained
rate certainty

at Dominion Virginia
Power, our

biggest operating
subsidiary, where
base rates are

frozen through 2010.

Another important measure indicating
the increasing strength of our credit pro-
file is the number of times funds from
operations can cover interest payments.
At year's end, we had hoosted this
adjusted measure to 4.4 times and
expect this critical metric to stand at
5 times by the end of 2005. Our credit
ratings at Standard & Poor's (BBB+) and
Moody's (Baa1) remain unchanged.

Reconciliations to GAAP of our free
cash flow, capitalization ratio and inter-
st coverage appear on pages 24 and 25.

Let's turn from the hard metrics to
some broader “hits and misses” on our
2004 scorecard that have longer-term

importance.

Hit: New Law That Creates
Rate Certainty in Virginia

An important new law passed by the
Virginia legislature last year ultimately
positions us to benefit by managing our
fuel use and fuel production in tandem.
Senate Bill 651 is unique in the nation.
We have gained rate certainty at
Dominion Virginia Power, our biggest
operating subsidiary, where base rates
are frozen through 2010.

In return, we have a powerful eco-
nomic incentive to manage fue! costs
smarter. The legisfation provides a fixed
allowance for fuel costs until mid-2007,
when it will be evaluated for adjustment.
Shareholders assume the risk if costs
exceed this allowance and may realize

benefits if the allowance exceeds costs.

Dominion Virginia Power customers
benefit knowing that electricity rates
won't be going up. Investors gain
revenue stahility and upside from produc-
tivity and other savings that I'll highlight
later. If we can run our plants even mare
efficiently than we already are, we can
invest these savings into growth opportu-
nities and share the benefits of earnings

growth with our shareholders.

Miss: Transitional Fuel Costs of
New Virginia Law

In the short-term, the new law reduces
our earnings. We didn't foresee that this
piece of legislation would be signed into
law until after we had already hedged
our 2004 natural gas and oil production.
This cost us dearly—to the tune of
$124 million in unrecovered after-tax
fuel costs.

In 2005, we project an estimated
$136 million in total after-tax under-
recovered fuel costs at Dominion Virginia
Power. This is based on expected usage,
actual prices for contracted fuel
volumes and projected market prices
for unhedged fuel.

However, as unhedged gas and oil
production becomes available, we will be
in a more balanced position with mare
production availahle for sale in today’s

price environment.

In the short-term,
the new
law reduces our

garnings.
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Long-time investors
know we keep
substantial portions
of our natural gas
and oil production
hedged under
contracts at
pre-determined

prices.

D 2004/Page 8

l.ong-time investors know we keep
substantial portions of our natural gas
and|oil production hedged under con-
tracts at pre-determined prices. lt's a
common and less risky way to buy and
sell energy in volatile natural gas and oil
markets. Remember that our strategy is
to produce stable cash flow and earnings.

It we could have waved a magic
wand, we would have made the new law
effective when we had sufficient
unhedged natural gas and oil production
available for immediate sale to offset
the utility fuel shortfall. Nevertheless,

I believe we will benefit in the lang term.
The trade-off between a fixed fuel

factar (scheduled to be evaluated for
adjustment in mid-2007) and base rate
certainty through 20710 should result in
greater shareholder value.

In my view, investors in companies
with traditional rate-of-return regulation
will face increasing uncertainty in
recovering today’s high fuel expense. In
caontrast, our approach balances
rewards, risks and responsibilities for

all stakeholders.

Hit: Big New Savings to
Mitigate Transitional Fue! Costs
In the meantime, we're offsetting this
interim shortfall with a bias for action
énd innovation to squeeze out—and
retain—abundant savings opportunitigs.

Are we working smarter? It's nat just
talk. At our nuclear stations—Ilong recog-
nized as industry leaders—we generated
nearly $13 miltion in after-tax savings in
2004 by reducing our forced outage
rates. At our North Anna station in
Virginia, we twice broke our own record
for getting units back on line after sched-
uled refueling outages. Likewise, the
folks at our fossil-fuel stations generated
nearly $23 million in after-tax savings by
improving the way we schedule outages
and by boosting production.

Are we finding new ways to offset
costs? You bet we are. At our coal-fired
stations, we expect to offset about
$15 million annually in after-tax costs by
hasting federally subsidized “synfuel”

facilities.

[t's a common and
less risky way to
buy and sell energy
in volatile natural

gas and oil markets.




TODAY?

1 This ad was part of
a 2004 Wall Street
campaign that built on
a successful 2003 cam-
paign posing the ques-
tion: “Have you seen D
today?” Z Russ Sivits
{foreground) and
George Keidel main-
tain equipment that
monitors S0, and NOy
at Mount Storm Power

Station. West Virginia's

. = THE LAST THREE YLARS, HAS
. DERS NEARLY $2.2 BILLION IN CASH DIVIDENDS. ¢ www.dom.com

| %A

Fy o

fodshere. & -

Department of

Environmental
Protection presented
the station with
its “Most Improved”
award in July.
3 Theresa A. Davis
{foreground) and
Cheryl Rhodes clear
debris at Appomattox
River Park in Virginia,
where Dominion
employee volunteers
cleared a trail, built
benches and mulched.
4 President and CEQ-
Dominion Resources
Services, Mary
Doswell, {eads her
team through a Six
Sigma process during
Green Belt training for
all Dominion officers
and director-level
employees. Six Sigma
produced nearly $100
million in savings in

2004.
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Last year | said
we'd target

$50 miltion in new
savings from

Six Sigma process
improvement pro-
jects for 2004, Qur
team likes a
challenge. It easily
beat this ambitious
goal, racking up
nearly $100 million

in hard savings.

Will we terminate above-market
power purchase contracts? Yes we will,
at @ moment’s notice when the econom-
ics work. Last year, we paid $153 million
and assumed $213 million in debt, to buy
out three old unecanomic pawer con-
tracts at Dominion Virginia Power. These
successful negotiations, now complete,
are expected to reduce annual capacity
payments by $75 million.

Discussions with other parties are
under way. By early 2005, we'd bought
out another contract expected to reduce

annual capacity payments by $18 million.

Hit: Six Sigma Savings Continue

Last year | said we'd target $50 million in
new savings from Six Sigma process
improvement projects for 2004, Our team
likes a challenge. It easily beat this ambi-
tious goal, racking up nearly $100 million
in hard savings. Our black belt experts
completed more than 400 projects that
uncovered new ways to work smarter
and take cost savings to the bottom line.

Forgive me for bragging, but I'm proud to

be the first Dominion officer to be trained

and certified as an executive green belt.
In 2005, we'll spread Six Sigma deeper
into our arganization, expanding the

number of employees trained, including

even our board of directors.

Hit: More Natural Gas and
Qil Production
Meanwhile, our profitable natural gas
and oil operations continue to grow.
QOur proved gas and oil reserves total
nearly & tritlion cubic feet equivalent
{Tcfe). Daily production fram more than
26,000 wells is nearly 1.2 billion cubic
feet equivalent (Bcfe). Based on these
measures, 0if & Gas Journal, a top trade
publication, ranked us seventh in U.S.
gas production and reserves and 13th in
oil and gas assets. We ranked second
in the total number of U.S. wells
drilled, according to the mast recently
available industry data.
In 2004, Devils Tower, the world’s
deepest spar platform, began operating

in the Gulf of Mexico more than

In 2004, Devils
Tower, the world's
deepest spar
platform, began
operating in

the Gulf of Mexico.
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Investors often asl
me why Dominien, a
gas and electric
generation, trans-
mission, distribution
and pipeline
company, should
invest money in
naturzal gas and oil
exploration and

production.
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Dominion's Expioration & Production Portfolio Model
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100 miles southeast of New Orleans. By
the end of the fourth quarter of 2005, we
are expecting eight wells to be up and
running. We hold firm capacity rights in
the spar of about 300 million cubic feet
equivalent (Mmcfe) of natural gas per
day. Meanwhile, the first of eight wells
at the Front Runner facility began produc-
ing in 2004. Our ownership share of

the Front Runner spar’s capacity is about

140 Mmcfe of natural gas per day.

Why Natural Gas and Oil
Exploration and Production?
Investors often ask me why Dominion, a
gas and electric generation, transmis-
sion, distribution and pipeline company,
should invest money in natural gas and
oil exploration and production. Regulated
and non-regulated energy businesses
appear very different. One attracts

investors who want to minimize risk

and gain reliable, steadily growing earn-
ings. The other beckans to investors with
an appetite for risk and roller-coaster
garnings.

My answer is simple: focus on finding
low-risk proved and probable reserves
that will contribute to a steady, growing
earnings stream. We emphasize produc-

tion over exploration.

Predictability in Natural Gas and
Qil Exploration and Production
Dominion's E&P business is dominated by
production from low-risk onshore fields.
They account for about three-fourths
of our gas and qil production and about
80 percent of our proved reserves. The
balance lies in our offshore operations
in the Gulf of Mexico.

The heart of our onshore business
encompasses "gas factories” which span
seven major basins in the U.S. and

western Canada. We call them factories

Dominion's

E&P business is
dominated by
production from
low-risk onshore

fields.




Despite the interim
fuel-cost challenge
| described earlier,
a critical long-term
goal is to operate
this business

to hedge our fuel
exposure at
Dominion Virginia

Power.

Existing

Generation Stations

| Coal
# Hydro
B Natural Gas

B Nuclear

because we can run these wells, driiling
rigs, compressor stations and pipelines
with more predictability than is typical in
the E&P business. They produce more
than 40 percent of Dominion’s total pro-
duction. Our drilling success rate at our
gas factories is in excess of 90 percent.
By comparison, the industry success rate
for an exploratory well is typically

about four out of ten. Qur gas factories
have the added advantage of spreading
production across a large number of
inexpensive wells with long lives—the

opposite of most offshore fields.

Current Gen

Kewaunee *

Why Bother Going Offshore?

The answer is stronger growth prospects
and patentially higher retumns on invest-
ment. To minimize our risks, we choose
our areas carefully, partner with other
established companies and keep to strict
financial targets.

We are not a stand-alone E&P com-
pany. Despite the interim fuel-cost chal-
lenge | described earlier, a critical long-
term geal is to operate this business to
hedge our fuel exposure at Dominion
Virginia Power. Qver time, it is expected
to counterbalance increasingly volatile
energy prices that have become a fact of
life. This should allow us to provide
steady earnings and cash flow for the

entire Dominion enterprise.

on Poertfolio (Major Dominion Operations)
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Brayton Point, Salem Harbor and Manchester Street power stations were acquired January 1, 2005. Rosemary Power Station was-acquired Feb)
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I'm proud that
our culture is 2 core

strength.
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Keep an eye on Dominian Retail as
another promising venue to build our
internal hedge. The pros at this unit of
our Dominion Delivery operating segment
are expanding our base of retail energy
customers in regions where retail choice
is a reality. At year end, Dominion Retail
had about 1.2 million customer accounts.
Such customers give us a ready market
for power or natural gas. For example,
we sold output from a Dominion mer-
chant generator in the Northeast to about

200,000 Dominicn Retail customers.

Miss: Hurricane Ivan

Dominion President and Chief Operating
Officer Tom Farrell says he doesn't like
hurricanes that start with “1.” In 2003,
Isabel took its terrible toll on investors
and customers. In 2004, lvan set back our

production in the Gulf of Mexico.

When Ivan, with record-high waves
and wind, passed by Devils Tower's off-
share platform, it darﬁaged the topsides
and sent the 90-foot tall completion rig
derrick to the battam of the Gulf, 5,600
feet below. The storm interrupted the

production of wells already on line and

delayed the completion of five other wells.

Fortunately, our insurance is expected

to cover our delayed production.

Hit: Superior Operations Across
Our Business Lines
I'm proud that our culture is a core
strength. The people who staff and oper-
ate Dominion’s businesses act decisively,
focus on safety, and derive great plea-
sure in a job well done.

In 2004, as in past years, our people
exceeded expectations.

A hias for decisive action; Recall
that Hurricane Ivan caused major
problems far beyond the Gulf of Mexico

and into regions where we have utility

Electric Generation Capacity Growth
Megawatts

2001

21,867

19,265

15,000 I
0

23,830

2003

24,408

2004 includes Brayton Point, Salem Harbor and Manchester Street power stations,

acquired January 1, 2005,

The pecple who
staff and operate
Dominien’s
businesses act
decisively, focus on
safety, and derive
great pleasure

in a job well done.
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Visibility: dead zero.
Outiook for suc-
cess? Let history
note he was
working entirely

by feel and by his

oW wits.

customers served by employees of our
Dominton Delivery operating unit. lvan's
torrential rains slammed the Northeast,
home to Dominion natural gas distribu-
tion utilities. Floods and landslides
affected more than 1,500 Dominion cus-
tomers. Heroic efforts by our employees
could fill an action movie.

In one small Pennsylvania town,
floodwater submerged & gas regulating
station, over-pressurizing the entire sys-
tem. Ron Orkis, a local supervisor and
certified scuba instructor, suited up in
underwater breathing gear and swam
into the station more than six feet under-
water. Visibility: dead zero. Outlook for
success? Let history note he was warking
entirely by feel and by his own wits.
Fortunately, this incredible individual cor-
rectly identified and shut down the prob-
lem valve on the first try,

Pride and satisfaction in a job
well done: In fact, 2004 represented the
worst storm season yet for the storm-
hardened vets at Dominion Delivery.
Flooding and the remnants cf Tropical
Storm Gaston created gigantic new chal-
lenges. They met the challenge directly,
with speed and competence and
showcased our embedded values—an
unflagging and extraordinary commitment

to safe and reliable service.

Superior operations: At our
Dominion Generation operating unit,
we've logged some of our best unit avail-
ability and capacity factors in recent
years. These metrics demenstrate our
success in keeping our plants up and run-
ning..Our nuclear fleet achieved a 92.8
percent capacity factor in 2004, the high-
est since acquiring our Millstone Power
Station in 2001, At our utility fossil fleet,
eight large and four small coal units had
100-plus-day runs, forced outages in our
coal units were reduced by 19 percent
from 2003, and peak availability stood
at an impressive 95 percent by the end of
2004. At our merchant fossil fleet,
the Kincaid and State Line facilities each
delivered record run times and impres-
sive summer availability exceeding
98 percent. Kincaid took top honors as
“Coal Plant of the Year” from the Powder
River Basin Coal Users Group. Top
performance also came from our Fairless
Energy station in Pennsylvania, where we
operated without a single unit trip since
commercial operations began in 2004.

Governor Honors Our Safety: Our
Millstone facility in Connecticut took a
top honor from the Occupational Safety

& Health Administration, prompting the

At our Dominion
Generation
eperating unit,
we've legged some
of our best unit
availability and
capacity facters in

recent years.
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Qur natural gas and
oil exploration unit
is the only operation
in its sector to be
nominated six
years running for
the federal govern-
ment's prestigious
Safety Award for

Excellence.
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Regulated & Nonregulated Retail Energy Customers
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governor to declare a state day in hanor
of the station. Our natural gas and oil
exploration unit is the only operation in
its sector to be nominated six years run-
ning for the federal government’s presti-
gious Safety Award for Excellence, which
recognizes safe and environmentally
responsible drilling operations. Overall,
safety incidents continued a five-year
decline. We ended 2004 ahead of our

ambitious annual safety goals.

Hit: Regional Transmission
Coardination Approved

Our electric operations will benefit from
our membership in PJM, the mid-Atlantic
grid operator. By mid-2005, Dominion
Virginia Power is expected 1o complete
regulatory approval and transfer manage-

ment of its 6,000-mile transmission

system as required by law. We will retain
ownership of these assets. Being part of
a larger, regional grid will further
enhance reliability, ensure adequate
power supplies for our customers and
foster mare efficient operations of our

electric markets.

Miss: Clearinghouse Trading

Dominion Clearinghouse, a business
group headquartered at our home office
in Richmond, works tc manage our com-
modity risks and find oppartunities to
meet our fuel needs economically and
make smart fuel sales. In its earlier
years, this group also was able to make
money through proprietary trading.

Last year, as more players, including
large Wall Street investment banks and
hedge funds, entered the fray, we decid-

ed to exit proprietary trading.

We like to be in
markets where our
knowledge of the
fundamentals of the
electric and gas
markets can gain us
a competitive
advantage, and will
bow out when we

can't.




The risks simply became too great. The
market was no longer trading on funda-
mentals which we knew well. We like to
be in markets where our knowledge of

the fundamentals of the electric and gas

markets can gain us a competitive advan-

tage, and will bow out when we can't.
Today, the Clearinghouse's primary
mission is to boost the earnings of other
Dominion business operations. It does
this by making commodity purchasing,
sales and contracting decisions. These
high-energy pros also negotiate to get
the best prices for the energy we pro-
duce by executing favorable contracts
with counterparties. For example, the
Clearinghouse sells output from
Dominion’s merchant stations such as
Fairless Energy in Pennsylvania and

Millstone in Connecticut.

Hit: New Stations Expected to
Add More Power Sales
Flexibility in New England
Last year, we made a successful bid and
paid $642 million for three fossil-fuel
power stations in New England, a
high-price power market heavily depen-
dent on natural gas-fired generation.
From the moment we announced the deal
in September until we closed it in early
January 2005, our employees jumped
into action 24/7. They pulled off a
smooth, glitch-free integration and
transfer of ownership in mere months.
I've been in this business narth of
two decades. Their accomplishment is
breathtaking.

Included in the purchase are the
1,521-megawatt coal- and oil-fired

Brayton Point Station and the 743-

megwatt coal- and oil-fired Salem Harbor

I've been in this
business north of
two decades. Their
accomplishment is

breathtaking.
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Botiom fine—right
assets, right price,

right market.
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Station, both in Massachusetts. We also
acquired the 426-megawatt combined-
cycle natural gas-fired Manchester
Street Station in Rhode Island. These
acquisitions are expected to be
immediately profitable and neutral to
our balance sheet.

With our existing Millstone Power
Station, they give us the ability to offer
competitive and customized power pack-
ages including base-load, intermediate
and peaking capacity. By early this vear,
we had placed 60 percent of this output

under centract for 2005.

Bottom line—right assets, right price,

right market.
Another important addition to our
merchant generating fleet took
place in mid-2004, when we placed our
1,096-megawatt, natural gas-fired
Fairless Energy station into commercial
operation in eastern Pennsylvania.
Adding these facilities increases our
generating capacity by about 15 percent,
from about 24,400 megawatts at the
beginning of 2004 to about 28,100

megawatts at the start of 2005.

Hit: Expanding The Crown
Jewel, Dominion Cove Point
Some have used the term “crown jewel”
of U.S. liquefied natural gas facilities to
describe our Dominion Cove Point LNG
facility, which is managed by our
Dominian Energy operating unit. The
facility averlooks the Chesapeake Bay

in Marytand.

Last year, we began designing
facilities to increase the plant's daily
sendout capacity from 1 Bcf per day
to 1.8 Bef per day. Storage capacity at
the terminal would increase to approxi-
mately 14.6 Bcf by 2008, if the plans are
approved by federal regulators.

Along with the expansion plan, we
announced a binding agreement with
Statoil—a major Norwegian oil and gas
producer and LNG exporter—to purchase
all the expanded capacity for 20 years
after service begins in 2008.

At the same time, demand for tradi-
tional, underground natural gas storage
remains strong. Accordingly, we've
invested $145 million to increase our
existing natural gas storege by about 15
Bef in the mid-Atlantic and Northeast
regions. The investments also will add
correspanding increases in our pipeline

capacity.

Hit: Avoiding Overhang with
“Equity on Demand”

Opportunities to add assets at prices that
add immediately to the bottom line don't
come around often. Companies can't time
them to their convenience. So when
opportunity has knocked, we've moved
ahead, even when we've had to issue
new shares ¢f comman stock to fund the

purchase.

Some have used the
term “crown jewel”
of U.S. liquefied
natural gas facili-
ties to describe

our Dominion Cove

Point LNG facility.




In early 2004, we
sold interests in
reserves represent-
ing about 83 billion
cubic feet of

future natural gas
production from
both onshore and
offshore wells for

about $413 million.

Gas "Ali"raﬁsmissio;lwl‘;i;eline;m& Storage/

Electric Transmission Lines
As of Year End

Natural Gas
Transmission Pipelines

Natural Gas
Transmission Pipelines
(Partnership)

Natural Gas
Underground Storage Pools

B Dominion Cove Point LNG Facility

M Electric Transmission Lines
(Bulk delivery)

In the past, we've had to take on
earnings dilution by issuing new equity
1o fund new acquisitions. But last year,
we sold forward 10 million shares
of Dominion’s common stock. It was a
unigue transaction that enables us to
draw down the capital and absorb
the share dilution only when and if it's
needed. Some call it "equity on

demand.”

Hit: Well-Timed Sale of Assets
to Raise Funds

In early 2004, we sold interests in
reserves representing about 83 hillion
cubic feet of future natural gas produc-

tion from both onshore and offshore

wells for about $413 millicn. In industry-
speak, it's called a “volumetric produc-
tion payment.” In plain English, it means

we sold rights to a portion of our

reserves for cash up front and will deliver

the gas to the buyer as it is produced
over four years. The transaction allows
us to monetize a portion of our reserves,
but keep control of the operating rights
to the wells and their future production.
In late 2004, we raised $476 million
through the sale of select natural
gas and oil properties in British

Columbia. Proceeds will help reduce
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debt. Substantial premiums on recent
sales of Canadian natural gas and oil
reserves helped prompt our decision to
sell the assets, which produced ahout
30 Befe annually. We'll hold onto our
remaining oil and gas assets north of the

border in Alberta.

“The Toughest Thing About
Sucecess”

Irving Berlin once said, “The toughest
thing about success is that you've got to
keep on being a success.”

As a team, Dominion investors, man-
agement and employees have conquered
a lot of adversity in the last five years—
Enron and the accounting scandals that
rocked our sectar; a tanking economy
spooked by 8/11; war and uncertainty;
volatile energy prices; blackouts and hur-
ricanes that begin with "1."

At the same time, the world, includ-
ing the investment community, has wired
up. Things mave 24/7. Frantic sorts think

long-term investing means 30 days. In

more patient cases, fong term might
extend to next quarter's earnings season.
Get things done, the world and its
investors rightly demand. We get things
done here. Getting things done is an
accomplishment. Getting things done
right is an achievement.

We've achieved much in the past five,
transfarming years. Ambitions for the
next five are high. We've missed a few,
had some bumps, but kept our eyes on
the ball and been rewarded with operat-
ing earnings growth and solid shareholder
value. As you read, we're now at the
hard work of “keeping on being a success.”

Thanks for the suppart.

Sincerely,

s

Thes. E. Capps

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

We've achieved
much in the past
five, transforming
years. Ambitions
for the next five

are high.



BILBAO KNUTSEN

# Enrique Urbano
inspects one of the
375,000-barrel LNG
storage tanks at our

Dominion Cove Point

facility. % Ron

Keraga and Don Bush
monitor the unloading
process of a ship from
Dominion Cove Point's
offshore control room.
On December 24th,
employees success-
fully completed
unloading the 100th
ship since Dominion
reactivated the
liquefied natural gas
import facility in
August 2003.
& Construction of the
fifth tank completes
the reactivation of
Dominion Cove Point
and positions it for
expansion. % Don
ing secures a line
from the Bilbao
Knutsen to the pier at

Dominion Cove Point.




Consolidated Dominion Resources, Inc.—Reconciliation of Operating Earnings te Reported Earnings (GAAP)

2000

Millions

EPS

Millions

2002
Milfions

2001

EPS EPS

2003
Millions

EPS

2004

Millions

EPS

Operating Earnings

After-tax items:
Valuation of long-term power-tolling contract
Hurricane lvan—De-designation and changes

in value of il hedges
Telecom related charges
Hurricane Isabel costs
CNG! assets held for sale
Severance costs for workforce reductions
Restructuring of certain electric sales contracts
Dominion Capital related charges
Termination of power|purchase contracts
Expenses related to the sale of E&P assets
Class action lawsuit settlement
Cumulative effect of changes
in accounting pringiples

Restructuring & acquisition-related charges
Loss on sale of Saxon Mortgage
Enron impairment
Gain on sale of Corby; Power Station
Other items

$ 787

(186)

21
(198}

12

$333

(0.79)

0.09
(0.84)

0.06

$1,053

(18
(13

(6
{2
{9

$4.17 $1,365 §$4.83 $

3) (0.73) 8)
6) (0.54)

{0.03)

8) (0.27) 5 0.02
5) {0.10)

7) {0.38)

1,449

(750)
(122)
(69)
(16)
(39)
(81)
(65}

$ 455

{2.35)
(0.38)
(0.22)
(0.06)
(0.12)
(0.25)
(0.20)

0.03

$1,523 § 4.61

{112)

(B1)
{13)
1
28
3)

(61)
(43)
(B}
{7

{7}

{0.34)

(0.18)
{0.04)
0.03
0.08
{0.01)

(0.18)
(0.13)
(0.02)
(0.02)

(0.02)

Total after-tax items

[351)

(1.48)

(509)

(2.02) {3) {0.01)

{1,131)

{3.55}

[274)

{0.83)

Reported Earnings (GAAP)

$436

$1.85

$ 544

$2.15 $1,362 $4.82

$ 318

$1.00

$1,249

$3.78

Reconciliation of Operating Return on Equity to Reported Return on Equity

2004

Millions

2003
% Millions

Common Shareholders’ Equity—13 mos. average
Operating Earnings—Twelve manths ended™
Return on average commgn equity—operating
Reported Earnings—Twelve months ended
Return on average common equity—reported

$10,552
1,523

1,249

$10,660
1,448

14.4%
318

11.8%

13.6%
3.0%

* See Reconciliation of Opefating Earnings to Reported Earnings.

Reconciliation of Debt to Capitalization to GAAP Measures

GAAP Measure
at 12/31/04

Adjusted Measure
at 12/31/04

Projected Adjusted Measure
at 12/31/05

Projected GAAP Measure
at 12/31/05

{dollars in millions)

$ 1.368
573

Securities due within ong year

Short-term debt

Long-term debt:
Equity-linked debt securities
Junior subordinated debentures
QOther long-term debt

330
1,429
13,748

$ 1,368
573

330
13,748

$ 2,478
825

$ 2476
825
330 330
1,441

12,353 12,353

Long-term debt-total 15,507

14,078

14,124 12,683

Total debt 17,448

59.9%

16,019

54.4%

17,425 56.0% 15,984

50.8%

Preferred stock 257
Junior subordinated debentures
Commaon shareholders' equity

Equity-tinked debt securities

11,426

257
1,429
11,426
330

257
1,441
13,442
330

257
13,442

Total equity and preferred stock 11,683

40.1%

13,442

45.6%

13,699 44.0% 15,470

49.2%

Total capitalization $29131

$29.481

$31,124 $31,454
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Reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to GAAP Measures

2004 2004 Projected 2005 Projected 2005
GAAP Based Cash Flows GAAP Based Cash Flows
Cash Flows (Non-GAAP) Cash Flows {Non-GAAP)
{dolars in millions)
Operating Activities
Net Income $1.249 $ 1249 $ 1572 31672
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,433 1,433 1,674 1674
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 554 554 646 646
QOther adjustments for non-cash items (50) (50}
Changes in working capital and other operating assets and liabilities {347) 226 (a) 207
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,839 3412 4,199 3992
investing Activities
Plant construction and other property additions (1.451) {1,342) (b) (1,572) (1,572)
Additions to gas and ail properties (1,299) {1,299) (1.260) (1,260}
Proceeds from sales of gas and ail properties 729 413 (¢}
Reimbursement from lessor (Fairless Energy) 806
Kewaunee acquisition (225)
USGen acquisition (632)
NUG acquisition (160)
Other investing cash flows (41) 71
Net cash used in investing activities (1,256) (2,228) (3.778) (2.832)
Financing Activities
Common dividend payments {861} (861) (926) (926)
Debt issuances net of repayments {1,285) 292
Common stock issuances 839 322
Other (13)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,320) (861) (312 {926)
Net Change in Cash $ 263 $ 109
Free Cash Flow $ 323 $ 234
(a) Represents changes in working capital and other operating assets and liabilities related te non-cash portion of items excluded from operating earnings.
{b) Excludes $109 million related to the acquisition of nan-utility generating facilities.
{c) Represents cash received under volumetric production payment agreement (VPP
Reconciliation of Funds from Operations Interest Coverage to GAAP Measures
Projected Projected
2004 Cashflow 2004 FFO 2004 Adjusted FFQ 2005 Cashfiow 2005 FFO

Interest Coverage

Interest Coverage

Interest Coverage Interest Coverage Interest Caverage

(dolfars in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities per

U.S. GAAP Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2,839 2,839 2,839 $4,199 $4,199
Adjustments to reconcile cash provided by
operating activities to FFO:

Changes in working capital and other - 347 347 - (207}

Capitalized interest - {70 {70} - {108}

Adjustments - - 226 - -

Funds from Operations {FFO) 2,839 3116 3,342 4,199 3,884

Interest expense per U.S. GAAP financial statements 923 923 923 875 875

Capitalized interest - 70 70 - 108

Total interest expense 923 993 593 875 983
4.1 44 5.8 50

FFO Interest Coverage 4.1

11)Represents changes in working capital and ather assets and liabilities related to non-cash portion of items excluded from operating earnings.

For factors that could cause actual results to differ, see Forward Looking
Statements, Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That May Affect
Future Results and Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk
Management in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in this report.

Page 3: The percentage of Operating Cash Flow Sources included in

the chart represents the operating segments’ net income, as adjusted by
adding back depreciation, depletion and amortization. If the Corporate
segment is included with the operating segments, the percentages

are as follows: VEPCO-Reg 42%; CNG-Reg 22%; CNG/DEI-E&P 45%;
DEI-Non-Reg 10%; Corporate segment {-19%).

Page 3: Definitions of abbreviations

VEPCO: Virginia Electric and Power Company
CNG: Consolidated Natural Gas Company
DE!: Dominion Energy, Inc.

E&P: Dominion Exploration & Production

Page 5: The range of estimated 2005 operating earnings excludes an
estimated after-tax charge of approximately $46 million related to

the acquisition of a non-utility generation facility which closed in the first
quarter of 2005.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financia! Condition and Results
of Operations (MD&A) discusses the results of operations and general
financial condition of Dominion. MD&A should be read in conjunction with
the Cansolidated Financial Statements. The term “Dominion” is used
throughout MD&A and, depending on the context of its use, may represent
any of the following: the legal entity, Dominion Resources, Inc.; one of
Dominion Resources, Inc.’s consolidated subsidiaries; or the entirety of
Dominion Resources, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Contents of MD&A

The reader will find the following information in this MORA:
o Forward-Looking Statements

e Introduction

e Accounting Matters

® Results of Operations

e Segment Results of Operations

e Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities

e Sources and Uses af Cash

e Future Issues and Other Matters

e Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management
* Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements that May Affect Future Results
e Selected Financial Data

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains statements concerning Dominion’s expectations,
plans, objectives, future financial performance and other statements that
are not historical facts. These statements are “forward-focking state-
ments” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. In most cases, the reader can identify these forward-locking state-
ments by words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “expect,”
“believe,” “should,” “could,” “plan,” "may” ar other similar words.

Dominian makes forward-looking statements with full knowledge that
risks and uncertainties exist that may cause actual results to differ materi-
ally from predicted results. Factors that may cause actual resuits to differ
are often presented with the forward-looking statements themselves.
Additionally, other risks that may cause actual results to differ from pre-
dicted results are set forth in Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That
May Affect Future Results.

Dominion bases its forward-looking statements on management’s
beliefs and assumptions using information available at the time the state-
ments are made. Dominion cautions the reader not to place undue reliance
on its forward-looking statements because the assumptions, beliefs,
expectations and projections about future events may, and often do, differ
materially from actual results. Dominion undertakes no obligation to
update any forward-looking statement to reflect developments occurring
after the statement is made.

Introduction

Dominion is a diversified, fully integrated electric and gas holding company
headquartered in Richmond, Virginia. Dominion concentrates its efforts
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largely in what Dominion refers to as the “MAIN to Maine” region. In the
power industry, “MAIN" means the Mid-America Interconnected Network,
which comprises all of llincis and portions of the states of Missouri, lowa,
Wisconsin, Michigan and Minnesota. Under this strategy, Dominion
focuses its efforts on the region stretching from MAIN, through its primary
Mid-Atlantic service areas in Ohio, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Virginia
and North Carolina, and up through New York and New England. The
MAIN-to-Maine region is home to approximately 40% of the nation’s
demand for energy.

Operating in all aspects of the energy supply chain allows Dominion to
optimize the value of its energy portfolio and enhance its return on
invested capital. Dominion has the capability to discover and produce gas,
store it, sell it or use it to generate power; it can generate electricity to sell
to customers in its retail markets or in wholesale transactions. These capa-
bilities give Dominion the ability to produce and sell energy in whatever
form it finds most useful and economic. Dominion also operates North
America’s largest natural gas storage system, which gives it the flexibility
to provide supply when it is most economically advantageous to do so.

Dominion’s businesses are managed through four primary aperating
segments: Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy, Dominion Delivery and
Dominion Exploration & Production. The contributions to net income by
Dominion’s primary operating segments are determined based on a mea-
sure of profit that executive management believes represents the seg-
ments’ core earnings. As a result, certain specific items attributable to
those segments are not included in profit measures evaluated by executive
management in assessing segment performance or allocating resources
among the segments. Those specific items are reported in the Corperate
and Other segment.

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of Dominion’s
electric utility and merchant fleet. The generation mix is diversified and
includes coal, nuclear, gas, ail, hydro and purchased power. Dominion's
strategy for its electric generation operations focuses on serving customers
in the MAIN to Maine region. Its generation facilities are located in Vir-
ginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, Connecticut, Illinois, Indiana, Pennsyl-
vania and Chio. In addition, Dominion completed the acquisition of three
USGen New England Inc. (USGen) power stations located in Massachu-
setts and Rhode Istand during January 2005 and expects to complete the
acquisition of the Kewaunee nuclear power plant located in northeastern
Wisconsin in the first half of 2005.

Utility generation operations represent Dominion Generation’s primary
source of revenue and cash flow. These operations are sensitive to external
factars, primarily weather and fuel prices. Currentty, revenue from utility
operations largely reflects the capped rates charged to customers in Vir-
ginia, the majority of its utility customer base. Under Virginia's current
deregulation legislation, electric rates are capped through 2010. Under
capped rates, changes in Dominion Generation's operating costs, particu-
larly with respect to fuel, relative to costs used to establish the capped
rates, will impact Dominion’s earnings. Dominion Generation has reduced
costs by terminating certain long-term power purchase agreements.

Prices received for electricity generated by its merchant fleet are mar-
ket-based, subjecting Dominion Generation to risks associated with recov-
ering capital expenditures and absorbing variability in fuel costs. Generally,
Dominion Generation manages these risks by entering into both short-term
and long-term fixed-price sales and purchase contracts.




Variability in expenses for Dominion Generation relates primarily to the
cost of fuel consumed, labor and benefits and the timing, duration and
costs of scheduled and unscheduled outages.

As discussed in further detail below, as a result of the reorganization
of the Dominion Energy Clearinghouse (Clearinghouse}, Dominion
Generation’s 2004 and 2003 results now reflect revenues and expenses
associated with coal and emissions trading and marketing activities
performed by the Clearinghouse that were previously reported in the
Dominion Energy segment.

Dominion Energy includes the following operations:

o Aregulated interstate gas transmission pipeline and storage system,
serving Dominion’s gas distribution businesses and other customers in
the Midwest, the Mid-Atlantic states and the Northeast;

e Aregulated electric transmission system principally located in Virginia
and northeastern North Carolina;

o Aliguefied natural gas (LNG} import and sterage facility in Maryland;

o (Certain gas production operations located in the Appalachian basin;
and

o Clearinghouse, which is responsible for energy trading, marketing,
hedging, arbitrage and gas aggregation activities.

Dominion Energy’s revenue and cash flows are derived from both regu-
lated and nonregulated operations,

Revenue and cash flow provided by regulated electric and gas trans-
mission operations and the LNG facility are based primarily on rates estab-
lished by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Variability in
revenue and cash flow provided by these businesses resuits primarily from
changes in rates and the demand for services. Variability in expenses
relates largely to operating and maintenance expenditures, including
decisions regarding use of resources for operations and maintenance or
capital-related activities.

Revenue and cash flow for Dominion Energy’s nonregulated businesses
are subject to variability associated with changes in commodity prices.
Dominion Energy’s nonregulated businesses use physical and financial
arrangements to hedge this price risk. Certain hedging and trading activi-
ties may require cash deposits to satisfy margin requirements. In addition,
reported earnings for this segment reflect changes in the fair value of cer-
tain derivatives; these values may change significantly from period to
period. Variability in expenses for these nonregulated businesses relates
largely to labor and benefits and the costs of purchased commaodities for
resale and payments under financially-settled contracts.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion performed an evaluation of
its Clearinghouse trading and marketing operations, which resulted in a
decision to exit certain energy trading activities and instead focus on the
optimization of company assets. Beginning in 2005, all revenues and
expenses from the Clearinghouse’s aptimization of company assets will be
reported as part of the results of the business segments operating the
related assets, in order to better reflect the performance of the underlying
assets. As a result of these changes, 2004 and 2003 results now reflect
revenues and expenses associated with coal and emissions trading and
marketing activities in the Dominion Generation segment.

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion's electric and gas distribution sys-
tems and customer service operations as wel! as retail energy marketing
operations. Electric distribution operations serve residential, commercial,
industrial and governmental customers in Virginia and northeastern North

Caralina. Gas distribution operations serve residential, commercial and
industrial gas sales and transportation customers in Ghio, Pennsylvania
and West Virginia. Retail energy marketing operatians include the market-
ing of gas, electricity and related products and services to residential and
small commercial customers in the Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest.

Revenue and cash flow provided by electric and gas distribution opera-
tions are based primarily on rates established by state regulatory authori-
ties and state law. Variability in Dominian Delivery's revenue and cash flow
relates largely to changes in volumes, which are primarily weather sensi-
tive. For local gas distribution operations, revenue may vary based upon
changes in levels of rate recovery for the cost of gas sold to customers.
Such costs and recoveries generally offset and do not materially impact net
income. Revenue from retail energy marketing operations may vary in con-
nection with changes in weather and commodity prices as well as the
acquisition and potential loss of customers.

Variability in expenses results from changes in the cost of purchased
gas and routine maintenance and repairs {including labor and benefits as
well as decisions regarding the use of resources for operations and mainte-
nance or capital-related activities). For gas distribution operations,
Dominion is permitted to seek recovery of the cost of gas sold to customers.

Dominion Exploratian & Production inctudes Dominion’s gas and oil
exploration, development and production operations. These operations are
located in several major producing basins in the lower 48 states, including
the outer continental shelf and despwater areas of the Guif of Mexico, and
Western Canada.

Dominion Exploration & Production maintains an active and ongoing
drilling program focused on low risk development drilling in several proven
onshore regions of the United States and Western Canada, while also
maintaining some exposure to higher risk exploration opportunities. Signif-
icant development drilling programs are currently underway in West Texas,
the Appalachians and the Rocky Mountains where Dominion Exploration &
Production holds sizable acreage positions and operational experience.
While each region provides Dominion Exploration & Production with explo-
ration opportunities, most exploratory drilling takes place in the Gulf Coast
region, including the deepwater Gulf of Mexico.

Revenue and cash flow provided by exploration and production opera-
tions are based primarily on the production and sale of company-owned
natural gas and oil reserves. Variability in Dominion Exploration & Produc-
tion's revenue and cash flow relates primarily to changes in commodity
prices, which are market based, and volumes, which are impacted by
numerous factors including drilling success, timing of development pro-
jects, as well as external factors such as the storm-related damage caused
by Hurricane lvan. Dominion manages commodity price volatility by hedg-
ing a substantial portion of its near term expected production.

Variability in Dominion Exploration & Production’s expenses relates pri-
marily to changes in operating costs and production taxes, which tend to
increase or decrease with changes in gas and oil prices and the prevailing
cost environment. Commodity price changes place upward or downward
pressure on refated exploration and production service industry costs,
while severance and property taxes vary based on changes in revenue. A
changing price environment impacts both operating costs and the cost of
acquiring, finding and developing natural gas and oil reserves.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

Corporate and Other includes:

s [Dominion’s corporate, service company and other operations, including
unallocated debt;

¢ The remaining assets of Dominion Capital, inc. {DCI), a financial
services subsidiary, which are being divested in accordance with a
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) order;

e The net impact of Dominion’s discontinued telecommunications opera-
tions that were sold in May 2004; and

» Specific items attributable to Dominion’s operating segments that are
reported in Corporate and Other.

Accounting Matters

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Dominion has identified the following accounting policies, including cer-
tain inherent estimates, that as a result of the judgments, uncertainties,
uniqueness and complexities of the underlying accounting standards and
operations involved, could result in material changes to its financial condi-
tion or results of operations under different conditions or using different
assumptions. Management has discussed the development, selection and
disclosure of each of these with Dominion’s Audit Committee.

Accounting for derivative contracts at fair value

Dominion uses derivative contracts (primarily forward purchases and sales,

swaps, options and futures) to buy and sell energy-related commodities
and to manage its commaodity and financial markets risks. Derivative con-
tracts, with certain exceptions, are subject ta fair value accounting and are
reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Accounting
requirements for derivatives and related hedging activities are complex
and may be subject to further clarification by standard-setting bodies.

Fair value of derivatives is based on actively quoted market prices, if
available. In the absence of actively guoted market prices, Dominion seeks
indicative price information from external sources, including broker quotes
and industry publications. If pricing information from external sources is
not available, Dominion must estimate prices based on available historical
and near-term future price information and use of statistical methods. For
options and contracts with option-like characteristics where pricing infor-
mation is not available from external sources, Dominion generally uses a
modified Black-Schales Model that considers time value, the volatility of
the underlying commodities and other relevant assumptions. Dominion
uses other option models when contracts involve different commodities or
commodity locations and when contracts allow either the buyer or seller
the ability to exercise within a range of quantities. For contracts with
unigue characteristics, Dominion estimates fair value using a discounted
cash flow approach. If pricing information is not available from external
sources, judgment is required to develop estimates of fair value. For indi-
vidual contracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions
could have a material effect on the contract’s estimated fair value.

For cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, Dominicn must esti-
mate the future cash flows represented by the forecasted transactions, as
well as evaluate the probability of occurrence and timing of such transac-
tions. Changes in conditions or the occurrence of unforeseen events could
require discontinuance of hedge accounting or could affect the timing for
reclassification of gains or losses on cash flow hedges from accumulated
other comprehensive income {loss) (ACCI) into earnings.
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Use of estimates in goodwill impairment testing

As of December 31, 2004, Dominion reported $4.3 hillion of goodwill on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet, a significant portion of which resulted from
the acquisition of CNG in 2000. Substantially all of this goodwill is allo-
cated to Dominion’s Generation, Transmission, Delivery and Exploration &
Production reporting units. In April of each year, Dominion tests its good-
will for potential impairment, and performs additional tests more fre-
quently if impairment indicators are present. The 2004 annual test did not
result in the recognition of any impairment of goodwill, as the estimated
fair values of Dominion’s reporting units exceeded their respective carrying
amounts. During the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion tested $72 million of
goodwill allocated to the Clearinghouse reporting unit after management
decided to exit certain energy trading activities and change the focus of the
business, which resulted in a reduction of the unit’s expected future cash
flows. This interim test indicated that no impairment existed and approxi-
mately $8 million of the unit’s goadwill was reallocated to other reporting
units as of December 31, 2004 in connection with management’s reorgani-
zation of that business. In 2003 and 2002, impairment charges of $78 mil-
lion and $13 million, respectively, were recognized as a result of interim
tests conducted for certain DCI subsidiaries and Dominion’s telecommuni-
cations business.

Dominion estimates the fair value of its reporting units by using a com-
bination of discounted cash flow analyses, based on its internal five-year
strategic plan, and other valuation techniques that use multiples of earn-
ings for peer group companies and analyses of recent business comhbina-
tions invalving peer group companies. These calculations are dependent on
subjective factors such as management’s estimate of future cash flows, the
selection of appropriate discount and growth rates, and the selection of
peer group companies and recent transactions. These underlying assump-
tions and estimates are made as of a point in time; subsequent modifica-
tions, particularly changes in discount rates or growth rates inherent in
management’s estimates of future cash flows, could result in a future
impairment of goodwill. Although Dominion has consistently applied the
same methads in developing the assumptions and estimates that underlie
the fair value calculations, such as estimates of future cash flows, and
based those estimates on relevant information available at the time, such
cash flow estimates are highly uncertain by nature and may vary signifi-
cantly from actual results. If the estimates of future cash flows used in the
2004 annual test had been 10% lower, the resulting fair values would have
still been greater than the carrying values of each of those reporting units,
indicating no impairment was present.

Use of estimates in long-lived asset impairment testing

Impairment testing for an individual or group of long-lived assets or intan-
gible assets with definite lives is required when circumstances indicate
those assets may be impaired. When an asset’s carrying amount exceeds
the undiscounted estimated future cash flows associated with the asset,
the asset is considered impaired to the extent that the asset’s fair value is
less than its carrying amount. Performing an impairment test on long-lived
assets involves management's judgment in areas such as identifying cir-
cumstances indicating an impairment may exist, identifying and grouping
affected assets and developing the undiscounted and discounted esti-
mated future cash flows (used to estimate fair value in the absence of mar-
ket-based value) associated with the asset, including the selection of an
appropriate discount rate. Aithough cash flow estimates used by Dominion



would be based on relevant information available at the time the estimates
are made, estimates of future cash flows are, by nature, highly uncertain
and may vary significantly from actual results. For example, estimates of
future cash flows would contemplate factors such as the expected use of
the asset, including future production and sales levels, and expected fluc-
tuations of prices of commodities sold and consumed.

During 2004, Dominion did not test any significant long-lived assets or
asset groups for impairment as no circumstances arose that indicated an
impairment may exist, In 2003, reflecting a significant revision in long-term
expectations for potential growth in telecommunications service revenue,
Dominion approved a strategy to sell its interest in the telecommunications
business. In connection with this change in strategy, Dominion tested the
network assets to be sold for impairment, using the revised long-term
expectations for potential growth. Dominion’s assets were determined to
be substantially impaired and were written down to fair value. Dominion
sold its telecommunications business in 2004.

Asset retirement obligations

Dominion recognizes liabilities for the expected cost of retiring tangible
long-lived assets for which a legal abligation exists. These asset retire-
ment obligations (ARCs) are recognized at fair value as incurred, and are
capitalized as part of the cost of the related tangible fong-lived assets. [n
the absence of quoted market prices, Dominion estimates the fair value of
its AROs using present value techniques, in which Dominion makes various
assumptions including estimates of the amounts and timing of future cash
flows associated with retirement activities, credit-adjusted risk free rates
and cost escalation rates. AROs currently reported on Dominion’s Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets were measured during a period of historically low
interest rates. The impact on measurements of new AROs, using different
rates in the future, may be significant. Dominion did not recognize any new,
significant AROs in 2004. In the future, if Dominian revises any assump-
tions used to calculate the fair value of existing ARGCs, Dominion will adjust
the carrying amount of both the ARQ ligbility and related long-lived asset.
Dominion records accretion expense, increasing the ARC liability, with the
passage of time. In 2004 and 2003, Dominion recognized $91 miltion and
$86 million, respectively, of accretion expense, and expects to incur

$95 million in 2005.

A significant portion of Dominion's AROs relate to the future decommis-
sioning of its nuclear facilities. At December 31, 2004, nuclear decommis-
sioning AROs, which are reported in the Dominion Generation segment,
totaled $14 billion, representing approximately 82% of Dominion’s total
ARGs. Based on their significance, the following discussion of critical
assumptions inherent in determining the fair value of AROs relates to those
associated with Dominion’s nuclear decommissioning obligations.

Oominion obtains from third-party experts periodic site-specific "base
year” cost studies in order to estimate the nature, cost and timing of
planned decommissioning activities for its utility nuclear plants. Dominion
uses internal cost studies for its merchant nuclear facility based on similar
methods. These cost studies are based on relevant information available at
the time they are performed; however, estimates of futurs cash flows for
extended periods are by nature highly uncertain and may vary significantly
from actual results. In addition, these cost estimates are dependent on
subjective factors, including the selection of cost escalation rates, which
Dominien considers to be a critical assumption.

Dominion determines cost escalation rates, which represent projected
cost increases over time, due to both general inflation and increases in the
cost of specific decommissioning activities, for each of its nuclear facili-
ties. The weighted average cost escalation used by Dominion was 3.18%.
The use of alternative rates would have been material to the liabilities rec-
ognized. For example, had Dominion increased the cost escalation rate by
0.5% to 368%, the amount recognized as of December 31, 2004 for its AROs
related to nuclear decommissioning would have been $269 million higher.

Employee benefit plans

Dominion sponsors noncontributory defined benefit pension plans and
other postretirement benefit plans for eligible active employees, retirees
and gualifying dependents. The costs of providing benefits under these
plans are dependent, in part, on historical information such as employee
demographics, the level of contributions made to the plans and earnings on
plan assets. Assumptions about the future, including the expected rate of
return on plan assets, discount rates applied to benefit obligations and the
anticipated rate of increase in health care costs and participant compensa-
tion, also have a significant impact on employee benefit costs. The impact
on pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations associated
with changes in these factors is generally recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Income over the remaining average service period of plan
participants rather than immediately.

The selection of expected long-term rates of return on plan assets,
discount rates and medical cost trend rates are critical assumptions,
Dominion determines the expected long-term rates of return on plan
assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by using
a combination of:

o Historical return analysis to determine expected future risk premiums;

o Forward-looking return expectations derived from the yield on long-
term bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock market indices;

o Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and

© |nvestment allocaticn of plan assets. Dominion’s strategic target asset
allocation for its pension fund is 45% U.S. equity securities, 8% non-

U.S. equity securities, 22% debt securities and 25% other, such as real

estate and private equity investments.

Assisted by an independent actuary, management develops assump-
tions, which are then compared to the forecasts of other independent
investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An internal committee
selects the final assumptions. Oominion calculated its pension cost using
an expected return on plan assets assumptian of 8.75% for 2004 and 2003,
compared to 95% for 2002. Dominion calculated its 2004 other postretire-
ment benefit cost using an expected return on plan assets assumption of
7.79%, compared to 7.78% and 782% for 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
rate used in calculating ather postretirement benefit cost is lower than
the rate used in calculating pension cost because of differences in the rela-
tive amounts of various types of investments held as plan assets and
because other postretirement benefit activity, unlike the pension activity, is
partially taxable.
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Discount rates are determined from analyses perfarmed by a third
party actuarial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows matching the
expected payments to be made under Dominion’s plans. Due to declines in
bond yields and interest rates, Dominion reduced the discount rate used to
calculate 2004 pension and other postretirement benefit cost to 6.25%
compared to the 6.75% and 725% discount rates that it used to calculate
2003 and 2002 pension and other postretirement benefit cost, respectively.

The medical cost trend rate assumption is established based on analy-
ses performed by a third party actuarial firm of various factors including the
specific provisions of Dominion's medical plans, actual cost trends experi-
enced and projected, and demographics of plan participants. Dominion’s
medical cost trend rate assumption as of December 31, 2004 is 9% and is
expected to gradually decrease to 5% in later years.

The following table illustrates the effect on cost of changing the critical
actuarial assumptions discussed above, while holding &ll other assump-
tions constant:

increase in
Net Periodic Cost

Otier

Actuarial Changein  Pansion  Postretirement

Assumption Assumption Benefits Benefits
{millions}

Discount rate (3.25%) $13 $6

Rate of return an plan assets (2.25%) 8 2

Hezlthcare cost trend rate 1% N/& 22

In addition to the effects on cost, a 0.25% decrease in the discount rate
would increase the projected pension benefit obligation by $122 million
and would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by
$45 million,

Accounting for regulated operations

Dominion’s accounting for its regulated electric and gas operations differs
from the accounting far nonregulated operations in that Dominion is
required to reflect the effect of rate regulation in its Consolidated Financial
Statements. Specifically, Dominion's regulated businesses record assets
and liabilities that nonregulated companies would not report under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
When it is probable that regulators will allow for the recovery of current
costs through future rates charged to customers, Dominion defers these
costs that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies and
recognizes regulatory assets in its financial statements. Likewise,
Dominion recognizes regulatory liabilities in its financial statements when
it is probable that regulators will require reductions in revenue associated
with customer credits through future rates and when revenue is collected
from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred.

Management evaluates whether or not recovery of its regulatory
assets through future regulated rates is probable and makes various
assumptions in its analyses. The expectations of future recovery are gener-
ally based on orders issued by regulatory commissions ar historical experi-
ence, as well as discussions with applicable regulatory authorities. If
recavery of regulatory assets is determined to be less than probable, the
regulatory asset will be written off and an expense will be recorded in the
period such assessment is made. Managament currently believes the
recovery of its regulatory assets is probable. See Notes 2 and 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Accounting for gas and oil operations

Oominion follows the full cost method of accounting for gas and oil explo-
ration and production activities prescribed by the SEC. Under the full cost
methad, all direct costs of praperty acquisition, exploration and develop-
ment activities are capitalized and subsequently depreciated using the
units-of-production method. The depreciable base of costs includes esti-
mated future costs to be incurred in developing proved gas and oil
reserves, as well as capitalized asset retirement costs, net of projected
salvage values. Capitalized costs in the depreciable base are subject to a
ceiling test prescribed by the SEC. The test limits capitalized amounts to &
ceiling—the present value of estimated future net revenues to be derived
from the production of proved gas and oil reserves assuming period-end
pricing adjusted far cash flow hedges in place. Dominion performs the ceil-
ing test quarterly, on a country-by-country basis, and would recognize asset
impairments to the extent that total capitalized costs exceed the ceiling. In
addition, gains or losses an the sale or other disposition of gas and oil
properties are not recognized, unless the gain or loss would significantly
alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of
natural gas and oil attributable to a country.

Dominion’s estimate of proved reserves requires a large degree of judg-
ment and is dependent on factors such as historical data, engineering esti-
mates of proved reserve quantities, estimates of the amount and timing of
future expenditures to develop the proved reserves, and estimates of
future production from the proved reserves. Given the volatility of natural
gas and oil prices, it is possible that Dominion’s estimate of discounted
future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves that is used
to calculate the ceiling could change in the near term.

The process to estimate reserves is imprecise, and estimates are sub-
jectto revision. In the last five years, revisions to Dominion's estimates of
proved developed and undeveloped reserves have averaged approximately
3% of the previous year's estimate. If there is a significant variance in any
of its estimates ar assumptions in the future and revisians to the value of
its proved reserves are necessary, related depletion expense and the calcu-
fation of the ceiling test would be affected and recognition of natural gas
and oil property impairments could occur. See Notes 2 and 28 to the Con-
solidated Financiat Statements.

Income Taxes

Judgment is required in developing Dominion’s provision for income taxes,
including the determination of deferred tax assets and any related valua-
tion allowance. Dominion evaluates the probability of realizing its deferred
tax assets on a quarterly basis by reviewing its forecast of future taxable
income and the availability of tax planning strategies that can be imple-
mented, if necessary, to realize deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve fore-
casted taxable income or successfully implement tax planning strategies
might affect the ultimate realization of deferred tax assets.

Newly Adopted Accounting Standards

Ouring 2004 and 2003, Dominion was required tc adopt several new
accounting standards, the requirements of which are discussed in Notes 2
and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The accounting standards
adopted during 2003 affect the comparability of Dominion’s Consolidated
Statements of Incame. The following discussion is presented to provide an
understanding of the impacts of those standards on that comparability.




FIN 46R

The adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpreta-

tion No. 46 {revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest

Entities, (FIN 46R) on December 31, 2003 with respect to special purpose

entities, affected the comparability of Cominion's 2004 Consolidated State-

ment of Incame to prior years as follows:

o Dominion was required to consolidate certain variable interest lessor
entities through which Dominion had financed and leased several new
power generation projects, as well as its corporate headguarters and
aircraft. As a result, the Consclidated Balance Sheet as of December
31,2003 reflects an additional $644 million in net property, plant and
equipment and deferred charges and $688 million of refated debt. In
2004, Dominion’s Consolidated Statement of Income reflects deprecia-
tion expense on the net praperty, plant and equipment and interest
expense on the debt associated with these entities, whereas in prior
years it reflected as rent expense in other operations and maintenance
expense, the lease payments tc these entities.

| addition, under FIN 48R, Dominion reports as long-term debt its junior
subordinated notes held by five capital trusts, rather than the trust pre-
ferred securities issued by those trusts. As a result, in 2004 Dominion
reparted interest expense an the junior subordinated notes rather than
preferred distribution expense on the trust preferred securities.

SFAS No. 143

Adopting Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) Na, 143,

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. on January 1, 2003, affected

the comparability of Dominion’s 2004 and 2003 Consolidated Statements of

Income to the prior year as follows:

¢ Accretion of the ARGs, including nuclear decommissioning, is reported
in other operations and maintenance expense. Previously, expenses
associated with the provision for nuclear decommissioning were
reported in depreciation expense and in other income {loss}); and

® Realized and unrealized earnings of trusts available for funding decom-
missioning activities at Dominion’s utility nuclear plants are recorded in
other income {loss) and AOCH, as appropriate. Previously, as permitted
by regulatory autharities, these earnings, along with an offsetting
charge to expense, for the accretion of the decommissioning liability,
were both reported in other income {loss).

EITF 023 and EITF 03-11

The adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 02-3, /ssues
Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes
and Contracts Involvad in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities,
and related EITF Issue No. 03-11, Reporting Realized Gains and Losses on
Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and
Not “Held for Trading Purposes " as Defined in Issue No. 02-3, changed the
timing of recognition in eamings for certain Clearinghouse energy-related
contracts, as well as the financial statement presentation of gains and

losses associated with energy-related contracts. The Consolidated State-

ment of Income for 2002 was not restated. Prior to 2003, all energy trading

contracts, including non-derivative contracts, were recarded at fair

value with changes in fair value and settiements reported in revenue on

a net basis. Specifically, adopting EITF 02-3 and EITF 03-11 affected the

comparability of Dominion’s 2004 and 2003 Consolidated Statements of

Income to the prior vear as follows:

o For derivative contracts not held for trading purposes that invalve phys-
ical delivery of commodities, unrealized gains and losses and settle-
ments on sales contracts are presented in revenue, while unrealized
gains and losses and settlements on purchase contracts are reported in
expenses; and

o Non-derivative energy-related contracts, previously subject to fair
value accounting under prior accounting guidance, are recagnized as
revenue or expense on a gross basis at the time of contract perfor-
mance, settlement or termination.

Qther
Dominion enters into buy/sell and related agreements as @ means to repo-
sition its offshore Gulf of Mexico crude oil production to more tiquid mar-
keting locations onshore. Dominion typically enters into either a single or a
series of buy/sell transactions in which it sells its crude oil production at
the offshore field delivery point and buys similar quantities at Cushing,
Oktahoma for sale to third parties. Dominion is able to enhance profitability
by selling to a wide array of refiners and/or trading companies at Cushing,
one of the largest crude oil markets in the world, versus restricting sales to
a limited number of refinery purchasers in the Gulf of Mexico. These trans-
actions require physical delivery of the crude oil and the risks and rewards
of ownership are evidenced by title transfer, assumption of environmental
risk, transportation scheduling and counter party nonperformance risk.
Under the primary guidance of EITF issue No. 99-19, Aeporting Revenue
Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent. Dominion prasents the sales
and purchases related to its crude oil buy/sell arrangements on a gross
basis in its Consolidated Statements of Income. The EITF is currently dis-
cussing Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory
with the Same Counterparty, which specifically focuses an purchase and
sale transactions made pursuant to crude oil buy/sell arrangements. The
EITF is evaluating whether these types of transactions should be presented
net in the Consolidated Statements of Income. While resolution of this
issue may affect the income statement presentation of these revenues and
expenses, there would be no impact on Dominion’s results of operations or
cash flows. The portion of Dominion’s operating revenue related to buy/sell
activity for the years 2004, 2003, and 2002 was 2.1%, 15%, and 16% respec-
tively. Reported production volumes are not impacted, as only the initial
sale of Dominion’s production is included in reported production volumes. It
is estimated that approximately 55% of Dominion’s 2004 oil production was
marketed through the use of ane or more crude oil buy/sell agreements,
See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Results of Operations

Presented below is a summary of contributions by operating segments t0
netincome;

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
[milligns, except per share amounts)
Nat Dituted Net Dituted Net DOituted
fncome £PS Income EPS Income EPS

Dominion Generation $ 5% $15 $ 512 $160 § 561 $198

Dominion Energy 140 657 346 1.03 268 0.95
Dominian Delivery 458 1.8% 453 1.42 422 1.43
Dominion Exploration &

Production 535 1.80 415 1.30 380 1.34

Primary operating

segments 1,778 537 1,726 541 1,631 5.76

Corporate and Other (827 {(359) (1,408} {4.41) (269)  (0.94)
Consalidated 31,249 $378 § 318  $100 $1.362 $482
Overview

2004 vs. 2003

Oominion earned $3.78 per diluted share on net income of $1.2 billion, an

increase of $2.78 per diluted share and $331 mitlion. The per share amount

includes approximately $0.14 of share dilution, reflecting an increase in the

average number of commeon shares outstanding during 2004.

The combined net income contribution of Dominion’s primary operating
segments increased $50 million during 2004. See Note 27 to the Consali-
dated Financial Statements for information about Dominion’s operating
segments. The increase is primarily due to:

o A fower contribution from regulated electric generation operations pri-
marily due to the elimination of fuel deferral accounting for the Virginia
jurisdiction, which resulted in the recogniticn of fuel expenses in
excess of amounts recovered in fixed fuel rates. These higher fuel costs
were partially offset by a reduction in capacity expenses due to the ter-
mination of certain long-term power purchase agreements and
increased revenue due to favorable weather and customer growth;

o Netrealized gains (including investment income} assaciated with
nuclear decommissioning trust fund investments as opposed to net
realized losses {including investment income) during the prior year;

o Aloss from energy trading and marketing activities, reflecting compar-
atively lower price volatility on natural gas option pasitions and the
effect of unfavorable price changes on electric trading margins, par-
tially offset by favorable margins in coal trading and marketing;

s Ahigher contribution from nonregulated retail energy marketing opera-
tions, primarily reflecting an increase in average customer accounts
and higher electric and gas margins; and

e A higher contribution from exploration and production operations due
to favarable changes in the fair value of certain oil options, higher
average realized prices for gas and oil and the recognition of business
interruption insurance revenue associated with the recovery of delayed
gas and oil production due to Hurricane fvan. Results were also
affected by the recognition of revenue in connection with deliveries
under volumetric production payment (VPP) agreements, partially offset
by lower gas production, reflecting the sale of mineral rights under the
VPP agreements.
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In addition to the higher contribution by the aperating segments in

2004, the consolidated results include the impact of several specific

items recognized in 2004 and reported in the Corporate and Other

segment, including:

e A $112 million after-tax charge reflecting Dominion’s valuation af its
interest in a long-term power tolling contract, which is subject to a
planned divestiture in the first quarter of 2005, as a result of its exit
from certain energy trading activities. The charge is based on
Dominion's evaluation of preliminary bids received from third parties,
reflecting the expected amount of consideration that would be required
by a third party for its assumption of Dominion’s interest in the contract;

o 361 million of after-tax losses related to the discontinuance of hedge
accounting for certain oil hedges resutting from an interruption of
oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane lvan, and
subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges during the
third quarter;

o $61 million of after-tax charges related to Dominion’s investment in and
planned divestiture of DCl assets;

e $43million of net after-tax charges resulting from the termination of
certain long-term power purchase agreements;

o $13 million of after-tax losses associated with Dominion’s telecommuni-
cations business, which was sold during 2004; partially offset by

o A $28 million after-tax benefit associated with the disposition of CNG
International’s (CNGI) investment in Australian pipeline assets that
were sold during 2004.

Additionally, the improved consclidated resuits reflect the impact of
significant specific items recognized in 2003. These items were reparted in
the Corporate and Other segment and are discussed in further detail below.

2083 vs. 2002

Dominion earned $1.00 per diluted share on net income of $318 million, a
decrease of $3.82 per diluted share and $1.0 billion. The per share decrease
includes approximately $0.13 of share dilution, reflecting an increase in the
average number of common shares outstanding during 2003.

The combined net income contribution of Dominion's primary operating
segments increased $35 million in 2003. This increase largely reflects the
benefits of higher natural gas prices during 2003 on sales of Dominion’s
gas and oil production as well as margins associated with gas trading
activities. This increased contribution by the operating segments was more
than offset by significant specific charges recognized in 2003 and reported
in the Corporate and Other segment, including:

o §750 million of after-tax losses assaciated with Dominion's discontin-
ued telecommunications busingss;

»  $122 million of after-tax incremental expenses associated with Hurri-
cane Isabel;

» $96 million of after-tax charges for DC! asset impairments;

¢ 369 million of after-tax charges for asset impairments related to certain
investments held for sale;

¢ $104 million of after-tax charges associated with the termination of cer-
tain long-term power purchase agreements and the restructuring of
power sales agreements; and

$16 million of after-tax severance costs for workforce reductions.




Analysis of Consolidated Operations
Presented below are selected amounts related to Dominion’s results
of operations:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

{millions]

Operating Revenue

Regulated electric sales $5,180 94876 94,856
Regulated gas sales 1,622 1,258 876
Nonregulated electric sales 1,243 1130 1.017
Nanregulated gas sales 2,082 1,718 778
(3as transpartation and storage 802 740 705
Gas and ail praductien 1,636 1,503 1,334
Other 1,601 853 652
Operating Expenses
Electric fuel and energy purchases, net 2,162 1,667 1,447
Purchased electric capacity 587 607 891
Purchased gas, net 2927 2175 1,158
Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases 1,807 468 159
QOther operations and maintenance 2,748 2,908 2,190
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,303 1216 1,258
Other taxes 519 476 429
Other income (loss) 185 {40) 103
Interest and related charges 939 975 345
Income tax expense 760 597 ¢ 681
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (15) (642} —
Cumulative effective of changes in accaunting
principles, net of taxes - n -

An analysis of Dominion's results of operations for 2004 compared to
2003 and 2003 compared to 2002 follows.

2004 vs. 2003

Operating Revenue
Regulated electric sales revenue increased 5% to $5.2 billion, primarily

reflecting:

o A $231 million increase due to the impact of a comparatively higher fuel
rate on increased sales volumes. The rate increase resulted from the
settlement of a fuel rate case in December 2003, This increase in regu-
lated electric sales revenue was more than offset by an increase in
Elsctric fuel and energy purchases, net expense,

e A $24 million increase associated with favorable weather;

e A $49 million increase from customer growth assaciated with new cus-
tomer connections; and

o An $18 million increase due to lost revenue in 2003 as a result of out-
ages caused by Hurricane Isabel.

Regulated gas sales revenue increased 13% to $14 billion, largely
resulting from a $198 million increase due to higher rates for regulated gas
distribution operations primarily related to the recovery of higher gas
prices and a $20 million increase resulting from the return of customers
from Energy Choice programs, partially offset by an $87 million decrease
associated with milder weather and lower industrial sales. The effect of
this net increase in regulated gas sales revenue was largely offset by a
comparable increase in Purchased gas, net expense.

Nonregulated electric sales revenue increased 11% to $1.2 billion,
primarily reflecting the combined effects of:

o A $181 million increase in revenue from nonregulated retail energy
marketing operations reflecting increased volumes ($165 million} and
higher prices {$16 million);

o A $97 million increase in revenue from merchant generation opera-
tions, largely due to the commencement of commercial operations at
the 1096 megawatt Fairless Energy power station (Fairless} in June
2004, partially offset by decreased revenue at certain other stations
resulting from lower generation volumes;

o A $140 million decrease in revenue from energy trading and marketing
activities reflecting decreased margins in electric trading due to unfa-
vorable price movements; and

o A $18 million decrease due to the sale of CNGI's generation assets in
December 2003,

Nonregulated gas sales revenue increased 21% to $2.1 billion, predomi-
nantly due to:

o A §279 million increase in revenue from producer services operations,
reflecting higher prices {$157 million) and increased volumes {$122 mil-
lion). This increase in nonregulated gas sales revenue was largely off-
set by a corresponding increase in Purchased gas, net expense;

o A $131 million increase in revenue from nonregulated retail energy mar-
keting aperations, reflecting increased volumes (§55 million) and higher
prices ($76 million);

o A $61 miilion increase in revenue from sales of gas purchased by explo-
ration and production operations to facilitate gas transportation and
satisfy other agreements. This increase in nonregulated gas sales rev-
enue was largely offset by a corresponding increase in Purchased gas,
net expenss, partiatly offset by

o A $108 million decrease in revenue from energy trading and marketing
activities due to comparatively lower price volatility on natural gas
option positions.

Gas transportation and storage revenue increased 8% to $802 million,
primarily reflecting:

o A $29 millionincrease due to the August 2003 reactivation of the
Cove Point LNG facility, which was acquired by Dominion in September
2002; and

o A$27 million increase in revenue from gas transmission operations
primarily reflecting increased transportation, storage, gathering and
extraction revenues.

Gas and oil production revenue increased 9% to §16 billion as a result of:

o A $37 million increase in revenue from oil production, largely reflecting
higher volumes; and

o A $180 miftion increase in revenue recognized related to deliveries
under VPP transactions; partially offset by

o A$72 million decrease in revenue from gas production, primarily
reflecting the sale of mineral rights under the VPP agreements.

Other revenue increased 88% to $16 billion, largely due to:

o A $384 million increase in coal sales revenue resulting from higher coal
prices and increased sales volumes;

e A $120 million increase in sales of emissions credits reflecting higher
prices and increased sales volumes; and '

o A $109 million increase in revenue from sales of purchased oil by explo-
ration and production operations.
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These increases in other revenue were largely offset by corresponding

increases in Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases expense. Other
revenue for 2004 alsa includes $100 million from the recognition of busi-
ness interruption insurance revenue associated with the recovery of
defayed gas and oil production due to Hurricane lvan.

Operating Expenses and Other Items

Electric fuef and energy purchases, net expense increased 30% to

$2.2 billion, primarily reflecting:

©

A $408 million increase related to regulated utility operations resulting
from the combined effects of an increase in the fixed fuel rate and the
elimination of fus! deferral accounting for the Virginia jurisdiction,
which resulted in the recognition of fuel expenses in excess of amounts
recovered in fixed fuel rates. The increase also reflects higher genera-
tion volumes in the current year;

A $162 million increase related to nonregutated retail energy marketing
operations reflecting increased volumes ($153 million) and higher prices
{$9 milfion};

An $88 million increase related to merchant generation operations,
largely due to the commencement of commercial operations at Fairless,
partially offset by decreased fuel expense at certain other stations
resulting from lower generation volumes; partially offset by

A $163 million decrease related to energy trading and marketing
activities.

Purchased gas, net expense increased 35% to $2.9 billion, principalty

resulting from:

&

A $274 miltion increase associated with producer services operations,
reflecting higher prices ($159 million) and increased volumes ($115 mil-
lion), as discussed above in Nonregulated gas sales revenue;

A $130 million increase associated with regulated gas sales discussed
above in Regulated gas sales revenue;

An $83 million increase associated with nonregulated retail energy
marketing operations, reflecting increased volumes ($56 million) and
higher prices ($27 million);

A $66 million increase from gas transmission operations due to
increased gathering and extraction activities and higher gas usage; and
A $58 million increase related to purchases of gas by exploration and
production operations to facilitate gas transportation and satisfy ottier
agreements, as discussed above in Nonregulated gas sales revenue.
Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases expense increased 115%

to $1.0 billion, primarily reflecting a $348 million increase in the cost of coal
purchased for resale, a $105 million increase in emission credits purchased
and a $108 million increase related to purchases of il by exploration and
production operations, each of which are discussed in Other revenue.

Other operations and maintenance expense decreased 6% to $2.7 bil-

lion, resulting from:

®
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A $113 million net benefit due to favorable changes in the fair value of

certain oil options related to exploration and production operations.

During 2004, Dominion effectively settled certain oil options not desig-

nated as hedges by entering into offsetting option positions that had

the effect of preserving approximately $120 million in mark-to-market

gains attributable to favorable changes in time valug; and

The impact of the following charges recognized in 2003:

e $197 million of incremental restoration expenses associated with
Hurricane Isabel;

e $108 million of charges from asset and goodwill impairments asso-
ciated with DCl's financial services operations;

o $105 million of charges associated with the termination of certain
long-term power purchase agreements;

e A $64 million charge for the restructuring of certain electric sales
contracts recorded as derivative assets;

» A $60 million goodwill impairment associated with the purchase of
the remaining interest in the telecommunications joint venture,
Dominion Fiber Ventures, LLC (DFV), held by anather party;

e A $28 million charge related ta severance costs for workforce
reductions; and

e A $22 million impairment related to CNGI's generation assets that
were sold in December 2003,

These benefits were partially offset by the following charges and incre-

mental expenses recognized in 2004:

[}

A $184 million charge related to the valuation of Dominion’s interest in
a long-term power tolling contract;

$96 million of losses related to the discontinuance of hedge accounting
far certain ail hedges resulting from an interruption of il praduction in
the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane [van, and subsequent changes
in the fair value of those hedges during the third quarter;

$72 million of charges associated with the impairment of retained
interests from mortgage securitizations and venture capital and other
equity investments hetd by OCI;

$71 milfion of net expenses associated with the termination of certain
long-term power purchase agreements;

An approximate $60 million increase in costs related to gas and oil pro-
duction activities;

An $18 million increase in reliability expenses associgted with utility
operations primarily due to increased tree-trimming;

A $13 million increase related to salaries, wages and benefits resulting
from a $60 million increase in pension and medical benefits and a

$46 million increase due to wage increases and ather factors, partially
offset by an $89 million decrease in incentive-based compensation
expense due to failure to meet targeted earnings goals; and

$10 million of expenses associated with the sale of natural gas and oil
assets in British Columbia, Canada.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense (DD & A} increased

7% to $1.3 billion, largely due to incremental depreciation expense result-
ing from property additions, including those resulting from the consolida-
tion of certain variable interest entities as a result of adopting FIN 46R at
December 37, 2003.

Other taxes increased 9% ta $519 million, primarily due to higher gross

receipts taxes and higher severance and property taxes associated with
increased commodity prices.

Other income increased to $186 million from a net loss of $40 million,

primarily reflecting:

@

A $61 mitlian increase resulting from net realized gains (including
investment income) associated with nuclear decommissioning trust
fund investments as opposed to net realized losses {including invest-
ment income) during the prior year,

A $23 million benefit associated with the disposition of CNGI's invest-
ment in Australian pipeline assets that were sold during 2004; and




o Theimpact of the following charges recognized in 2003, which did not
recur in 2004:

o $57 million of costs associated with the acquisition of DFV senior

notes,

o $27 million for the reallocation of equity losses between Dominion

and the minority interest owner of DFV; and

o A$62 million impairment of CNGI's investment in Australian

pipeline assets held for sale.

Income taxes—Dominion’s effective tax rate decreased 3.0% to 356%
for 2004, reflecting an increase in the valuation allowance for 2003 with no
comparable increase in 2004, partially offset by increases in 2004 in utility
plant differences and other factors.

Loss from discontinued aperations decreased to $15 million from $642
million, primarily reflecting the sale of Dominion’s discontinued telecom-
munications operations during May 2004 and the impact of the following
charges recognized in 2003:

o |mpairment of network assets and related inventories of $568 million.
Dominion did not recognize any deferred tax benefits related to the
impairment charges, since realization of tax benefits is not anticipated
at this time based on Dominion’s expected future tax profile. In addi-
tion, Dominion increased the valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets recognized by its telecommunications investment, resulting in a
$48 million increase in deferred income tax expense; and

o Telecommunications operating losses of $28 million.

2003 vs. 2002

Operating Revenue
Regulated electric sales revenue increased less than 1% to $4.9 billion,

primarily reflecting the combined effects of:

o A $54 million increase from customer growth associated with new cus-
tomer connections;

o A $42 million increase from higher fuel rate recoveries. Fuel rate recov-
eries were generally offset by a comparable increase in fuel expense
and did not materially affect net income; and

o A $103 miltion decrease associated with milder weather.

Regulated gas sales revenue increased 44% to $1.3 billion, primarily due
to the combined impact of a $288 million increase due to higher rates for
regulated gas distribution operations primarily related to the recovery of
higher gas prices and a $79 million increase associated with comparably
colder weather in the first and fourth quarters of 2003. The effect aof this
net increase in regulated gas sales revenue was largely offset by a compa-
rable increase in Purchased gas, net expense.

Nonregulated electric sales revenue increased 11% to $11 billion, pri-
marily reflecting the combined effects of;

o A $77 million increase in revenue from merchant generation opera-
tions, reflecting higher volumes (353 million) and higher prices ($18 mil-
lion). The increase in volumes can be attributed to fewer outage days at
the Millstone Power Station in 2003 and a full year’s sales fram gener-
ating units placed into service during 2002;

o A $78 million increase in revenue from nonregulated retail energy mar-
keting operations, primarily as a result of customer growth, including
the acquisition of new customers previously served by other energy
companies during 2003; and

o A $43 million decrease in revenue from energy trading and marketing
activities due to unfavorable changes in the fair value of derivative con-
tracts held for trading purposes and the impact of adopting EITF 02-3,
partially offset by increased margins.

Nonregulated gas sales revenue increased 121% to $1.7 billion,
primarily reflecting:

o An 382 million increase in revenue from retail energy marketing
operations, reflecting higher prices ($78 million) and higher volumes
{$4 million);

o A$653 million increase in revenue from producer services operations,
reflecting higher prices ($467 million) and higher volumes {$192 miflion);
and

o A $208 million increase in revenue from energy trading and marketing
activities due to higher margins, favorable changes in the fair value
of derivative contracts held for trading purposes and the impact of
adopting EITF 02-3.

Gas and oil production revenue increased 13% to $1.5 billion primarily
due to higher average realized prices for gas and oil. It also includes

$43 million of revenue recognized related to defiveries under a volumetric

praduction payment transaction.

Other revenue increased 31% to $853 million, primarily reflecting the
combined effects of:

o A $49million increase in coal sales revenue;

o A $115 million increase, resulting from a change in the classification of
coal purchases from other revenue to expense under EITF 02-3 begin-
ning in 2003;

o $94 million of emissions credit sales that began in 2003;

o A $26 million increase in sales of extracted products; and

o An $81 millian decrease in revenue associated with Dominion financial
services operations, reflecting the winding-down under Dominion’s
divestiture strategy.

Operating Expenses and Other ltems
Electric fuel and energy purchases expense increased 15% to $17 bil-

lion, primarily reflecting:

o A $154 million increase associated with energy trading and marketing
activities and nonregulated retail energy marketing operations, primar-
ily resulting from higher volumes purchased and the reclassification of
certain purchase cantracts due to the implementation of EITF 02-3; and

o A $68 million increase related to regulated utility operations, including
$42 million associated with rate recovery in 2003 revenue and the
recognition of $14 million of previously deferred fuel costs not recov-
ered under the 2003 settlement of the Yirginia jurisdictional fuel
rate case.

Purchased electric capacity expense decreased 12% to $807 million,
reflecting scheduled rate reductions on certain non-utility generation sup-
ply contracts {$54 million} and lower purchases of capacity for utility opera-
tions ($30 million), resulting from the termination of several long-term
supply contracts.

Purchased gas, net expense increased 88% to $2.2 billion, primarily
reflecting:

o A $647 million increase associated with producer services operations,
reflecting higher prices {8459 million) and higher volumes {$188 mil-
lion); and
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e A $363 million increase associated with regulated gas operations
discussed abave in Regulated gas sales revenue.

Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases expense increased 194%
to $468 million, reflecting primarily the reclassification of certain purchase
contracts for transportation, storage, coal and emissions allowances due
to the adoption of EITF 02-3.

Other operations and maintenance expense rose 33% to $2.9 billion,
primarily reflecting the following specific items:

e $197 million of incremental restoration expenses associated with Hurri-
cane Isabel;

® 3108 million of asset and goodwill impairments associated with DCI's
financial services operations;

o $105 million of expenses associated with the termination of certain
long-term power purchase contracts used in electric utility operations;

e A 364 million charge for the restructuring of certain electric sales con-
tracts recorded as derivative assets;

e A $60 miltion goodwill impairment associated with the purchase of the
remaining interest in the telecommunications joint venture held by
anather party;

© 386 million of accretion expense for AROs;

& An 387 million increase in expense resulting from a decrease in net
pension credits and an increase in other postretirement benefit costs;
partially offset by

s A $15million decrease in expenses associated with nuclear outages
for refueling.

Other taxes increased 11% to 3476 million, primarily due to higher sev-
erance taxes and gross receipts taxes, as well as the effect of a favorable
resolution of sales and use tax issues in 2002. Such benefits were not
recognized in 2003.

Other income decreased 138% to a net loss of $40 million, which
included the following items:
= §$57 million of costs associated with the acquisition of DFV senior notes;
e $27 million for the reallocation of equity losses between Dominion and

the minority interest owner of DFV;

s $62 million for the impairment of certain equity-method investments;
and

e A $32 million increase in net realized losses (including
investment income) associated with nuclear decommissioning
trust fund investments.

Partially offsetting these reductions to other income was an increase of
$28 million, reflecting equity losses on Dominion’s investment in DFV in
2002; DFV was consolidated beginning in the first quarter of 2003. In 2003,
the operating losses of DFV's subsidiary, Dominion Telecom, Inc., were
classified in discontinued operations.

income taxes—0Oominion’s effective tax rate increased 5.3% to 386%
for 2003, The increase primarily resulted from the expiration of nonconven-
tional fuel credits beginning in 2003, an increase in the valuation
allowance related to the impairment of goodwill associated with the
telecommunications investment and federal loss carryforwards at CNGi
and DCl that are not expected to be utilized, partially offset by a reduction
in Canadian tax rates applied to deferred tax balances.
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Loss from discontinued operations reflects the results of operations of
Dominion’s telecommunications business, which is classified as held for
sale. The loss includes the following:

» |mpairment of network assets and related inventories of $566 million.
Dominion did not recognize any deferred tax benefits related to the
impairment charges, since realization of tax benefits is not anticipated
at this time based on Dominion’s expected future tax profile. In addi-
tion, Dominion increased the valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets recognized by its telecommunications investment, resulting in a
$48 million increase in deferred income tax expense; and

» Telscommunications operating losses of $28 million.

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles—During 2003
Dominion was required to adopt several new accounting standards, result-
ing in a net after-tax gain of $11 millien which included the following:

o A $180 million after-tax gain (SFAS No. 143), partially offset by;

o A $67 million after-tax loss (EITF 02-3);

¢ A 375 million after-tax loss (Statement 133 Implementation Issue
No. C20); and

o A 327 million after-tax loss (FIN 46R).

Outiook—Dominion
Dominion believes its operating businesses will provide growth in net
income on a per share basis, including the impact of higher expected aver-
age shares outstanding, in 2005.
Growth factors include:
e Continued growth in utility customers;
e Reduced electric capacity expenses, resulting from the termination of
long-term power purchase agreements;
e (il production growth, reflecting a full year of Devils Tower and Front

Runner operations;

e Acontribution from the operations of three USGen power stations

acquired in January 2005;
¢ Higher contribution from Cove Point operations due to expansion of the

facility; and
e Acontribution from the Kewaunee nuclear power plant, expected to be

acquired in the first half of 2005.

The growth factors will be partially offset by:
¢ Higher expected Virginia jurisdictional fuel expenses;

* Alower contribution from Millstone resulting from an additional
refueling outage;

Higher expected operating expenses for gas and il production;

* Anincrease in incentive-based compensation expense if eamings
targets are met; and
e |Increased interest expense.

Based on these projections, Dominion estimates that cash flow from
operations will increase in 2005, as compared to 2004, Management
believes this increase will provide sufficient cash flow to maintain or grow
Dominion's current dividend to commaon shareholders.




Segment Results of Operations

Dominion Generation

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of Dominion’s
electric utility and merchant fleet as well as coal and emissians trading
and marketing activities.

2004 2003 2002

(miliions, except EPS)

Net income contribution $525 $512  §$561
EPS contribution $1.59  $160 $1.98
Etectricity supplied (miflions mwhrs) 112 105 101

mwhrs = megawatt hours

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting
Oominion Generation's operating results:

2004 vs. 2003

Increase {Decrease)

Amaount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Fuel expenses in excess of rate recovery $(115)  $(0.36)
Regulated electric sales:

Weather 10 0.03

Customer growth 20 0.05
Nuclear decommissioning trust performance I8 0.12
Coal trading and marketing n 0.10
Capacity expenses 36 0.19
Other 7 (0.02)
Share dilution —  (0.05)
Change in net income contribution $ 13 $(0.00)

Oominion Generation's net income contribution increased $13 million,
primarily reflecting:

o Higher fuel expenses incurred by the requiated utility operations due
to the elimination of fuel deferral accounting which resulted in the
recognition of fuel expenses in excess of amounts recovered in fixed
fuel rates. The increase in fuel expenses also reflects higher genaration
volumes;

e Higher regulated electric sales due to customer growth in the elactric
franchise service area, primarily reflecting an increase in new residen-
tial customers, comparably favorable weather, lost revenue in 2003 due
10 outages associated with Hurricane Isabel, and the impact of the
economy and other factors;

e Netrealized gains (including investment income) associated with
nuclear decommissioning trust fund investments as opposed to net
realized losses (including investment income) during the prior year;

> Ahigher contribution from coal trading and marketing primarily due to
higher coal prices and increased sales volumes; and

< Reduced purchased power capacity expenses due to the termination of
long-term power purchase agreements in connection with the purchase
of the refated nonutility generating facilities.

2003 vs, 2002

Increase (Decrease)

Amount EPS

{millions, except EPS)
Revenue reallocation $(57)  ${0.20)
Regulated electric sales:

Weather {42) {015}

Customer growth 23 0.08
Merchant generation margins 18 0.06
Capacity expenses 29 0.10
Fuel settlement 9 {0.03)
Utility outages {(13)  {0.04)
Other 2 0.01
Share dilution - {0.21)
Change in net income contribution $(49)  8i0.38)

Dominion Generation's net income contribution decreased $49 million,
primarily reflecting:

o Achange in the allocation of electric utility base rate revenue begin-
ning in 2003 among Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy and
Dominion Delivery;

o Adecrease inregulated electric sales due to comparably milder sum-
mer weather, resuiting from a decrease in cooling degree days in 2003,
partially offset by an increase in heating degree days in 2003;

o Anincrease in regulated electric sales due to customer growth in the
electric franchise service area, primarily reflecting an increase in new
residential customers;

o Ahigher contribution from merchant generation operations due to
fewer outage days at the Millstone Power Station in 2003 and a full
year's contribution from gas-fired generating units placed into service
during 2002,

o Scheduled decreases in capacity expenses under certain power pur-
chase agreements;

o Recognition of previously deferred fuel costs in connection with the
2003 Virginia fuel rate settlement; and

o Increased utility outage expenses, reflecting the refueling activities at
nuclear facilities in 2003,

Dominion Engrgy

Dominion Energy includes Dominion’s electric transmission, natural gas
transmission pipeline and storage businesses, an LNG facility, certain nat-
ural gas production, energy trading and marketing operations and producer
services which includes aggregation of gas supply and related wholesale
activities.

2004 2003 2002

{miltions, except £PS)

Net income contribution $180  $346 5288
EPS contribution $0.57 $109 3095
(as transportation throughput {bcf) 708 614 597

bef = billion cubic feet
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Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting
Dominion Energy’s operating results:

2006 vs. 2003

Increase (Decrease}

Dominion Delivery

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion’s regulated electric and gas distribu-
tion and customer service business, as well as nonregulated retail energy
marketing operations.

Amount EPS 2004 2003 2002
{miltions, except EPS) {millions, except EPS)
Energy trading and marketing 3118} 8(0.37) Net income contribution $435 $453 3422
Economic hedges (12)  (5.08) EPS contribution $1.41 3142 $1.49
Electric transmission revenue (35) (2.83) Electricity delivered (million mwhrs) 73 75 75
Other o (3 (8.08) Gas throughput {bef) 37 373 364
Share dilution - {0.02)
Change in net income contribution 3(156) $(0.52)

Dominion Energy’s net income contribution decreased $156 million, pri-
marily reflecting:

¢ Aloss from energy trading and marketing activities, reflecting compar-
atively lower price volatility on natural gas option positions and the
effect of unfavorable price changes on electric trading margins;

o Adecrease attributable to unfavorable price movements in 2004 on the
economic hedges of Dominion Exploration & Production gas preduction
described in Sefected information—Energy Trading Activities,

o Lower electric transmission revenue primarily due to decreased wheel-
ing revenue resulting from lower contractual volumes and unfavorable
market conditions; and

o Qther factors including losses from asset and price risk management
activities related to intersegment marketing.

2033 vs, 2802

Increase (Decraase)

Amount EPS
{millions, except EPS}
Energy trading and marketing $12 $0.05
Economic hedges 33 0.12
Electric transmission margins n 0.04
Cove Paint operations 39 0.03
Revenue reallocation 7 0.02
Other 6 0.02
Share dilution — {0.14)
Change in net income contribution ' $78  $014

Dominion Energy's net income increased $78 million, primarily reflecting:

e Anincrease in the contribution of energy trading and marketing activi-
ties, reflecting an increase in margins on settled contracts, partially off-
set by a decrease in net mark-to-market gains on derivative contracts;

o Anincrease attributable to a reduction in net losses on the economic
hedges of Dominion Exploration & Production gas production described
in Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities;

o Anincrease in glectric transmission margins due to customer growth
and other factors, partially offset by the impact of unfavorable weather;

e A contribution from the Cove Point LNG facility due to its reactivation in
August 2003; and

o Achange in the allocation of electric base rate revenue among
Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy and Dominion Delivery effec-
tive January 1, 2003;
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Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting
Dominion Delivery’s aperating resutts:

2094 vs. 2003

Increasa (Decrease)

Amount 34
{millions, except EPS)
Weather $ (5} 3062
Customer growth—utility operations S £.03
Nonregulated retail energy marketing operations 32 3.8
Reliability expenses (1) (8.83}
Other (t2)  (0.94)
Share dilution —  (9e3)
Change in net income contribution 813 §{0.01)

Dominion Delivery’s net income contribution increased $13 million,
primarily reflecting:

e Adecrease inregulated gas sales due to comparably milder winter
weather in regulated gas service territories; partially offset by an
increase in regulated electric sales resulting from comparably favor-
able weather in regulated electric service territories;

¢ Customer growth in the electric and gas franchise service areas, pri-
marily reflecting new residential electric customers;

s Ahigher contribution from nonregulated retail energy marketing opera-
tions, primarily reflecting an increase in average customer accounts
and higher electric and gas margins;

e Higher reliability expenses, primarily due to increased tree trimming;
and

e Qther factors, including a decrease in net pension credits.

2003 vs. 2002

Increase {Decrease}

Amount EPS
{millions, except EPS)
Revenue reallocation $50 $018
Customer growth—utility operations 10 0.03
Weather (50  {0.02)
Income taxes 9) {003
Other (15)  (0.05)
Share dilution - (0.18)
Change in net income contribution $£31  ${007)

Dominion Delivery's net income contribution increased $31 million, pri-
marily reflecting:
» Achange in the allocation of electric base rate revenue among
Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy and Dominion Delivery effec-
tive January 1, 2003,




o Customer growth in the electric and gas franchise service areas,
primarily reflecting new residential electric customers;

© A decrease in regulated electric sales due to comparably milder
weather in electric utility service territories, offset by an increase in
regulated gas sales due to comparably colder weather in gas utility
service territories;

e Adecrease in net pension credits and an increase in other postretire-
ment benefit costs; and

e The deferral of 2003 bad debt expenses as a regulatory asset, pending
future recovery under a bad debt rider approved by the Public Utility
Commission of Ohio, effective January 1, 2003.

Dominion Exploration & Production
Dominion Exploration & Production manages Dominion’s gas and cil explo-
ration, development and production business.

Dominicn Exploration & Production’s net income contribution increased

$180 million, primarily reflecting:

o

Recognition of revenue in connection with deliveries under the VPP
agreements;

The recognition of business interruption insurance revenue associ-
ated with the recovery of delayed gas and oil production due to
Hurricane tvan;

Lower gas production reflecting the sale of mineral rights under the
VPP agreements;

Higher oil production reflecting production related to the deepwater
Gulf of Mexico Devils Tower project;

Higher average realized prices for gas and oil;

Lower operations and maintenance expenses, primarily due to favor-
able changes in the fair value of certain oil options, partially offset by
an increase in production casts; and

2004 2003 2002 Ahigher rate for depreciation, depletion and amortization, primarily
{millions, except EPS) reflecting higher industry finding and development costs, increased
Net income contribution $56%5 § 45 § 380 acquisition costs and the effect of the reduction in reserves attributable
EPS contribution $ 1.80 $130 $134 to the VPP transactions.
Gas production {bcf) 338 384 385
0il production {miflion bbis) 10 g 10 2003 vs. 2002
Average realized prices with hedging results® Increase (Decrease)
Gas (per mef)f? $403 $395 $340 Amount EPS
Gil (per bbl) 24.88 24.29 23.28 millions, except E25]
Average prices without hedging resuits: A
Gas per mcf 585 458 308 gzz Z;g g;:—g::f;usction $1(?:) $(g.gé)
i 39.07 . '

0il (per bil) 807 2982 2444 VPP revenus 27 040
DD&A (per mcfe) $138 $120 $1.12 DD&A—rate (220 (0.08)
Average production (lifting) cost {per mcfe)® 0.92 0.80 0.60 DO&A—production 3 0.01
bbi < barrel Operations and maintenance (41 (0.15)
mcf = thousand cubic feet Severance taxes (8 (0.0}
mcfe = thousand cubic feet equivalent Income taxes (201 0.07)
{1) Excludes the effects of the econamic hedges discussed under Sefected Information— Other o 9 (0.03)

Energy Trading Activities. Share dilution — (017}
{2) Excludes $223 million and $43 million of revenue recognized in 2004 and 2003, respectively, Change in net income contribution $35  $(0.04)

under the VPP agreements described in Note 12 to the Consalidated Financial Statements.
{3) The exclusion of volumes produced and delivered under the VPP agreements accounted for

approximately 76% of the increase from 2003 to 2004 and 8% of the increase from 2002

10 2003.

Presented below, on an after-tax basis, are the key factors impacting
Dominion Exploration & Production’s operating results:

2004 vs, 2003

tncrease (Decrease)

Amount EPS

(millions, except EPS)

VPP revenue $114  $0.36

Business interruption insurance 61 0.99

Gas and oil—production (55)  {0.17)
Gas and oil—prices 48 0.15

Operations and maintenance 26 0.08

DD&A—production 13 0.04

DD&A—rate (30} {0.09)
Other 2 0.09

Share dilution - {0.07)
Change in net income contribution $180 $050

Dominion Exploration & Production’s net income contribution increased

$35 million, primarily reflecting:

o}

[e}

Higher average realized prices for gas and ail;

Lower oil production, reflecting declines in Gulf of Mexica shelf and
deepwater production. Lawer gas production, reflecting the sale of
mineral rights under a VPP agreement and declines in Rocky Mountain
and Michigan production, was largely offset by increased Gulf of Mex-
ico gas production;

Ahigher rate for depreciation, depletion and amortization in 2003, pri-
marily reflecting increased acquisition, finding and development costs;
Higher operations and maintenance expenses which increased in con-
nection with overall higher commodity prices in 2003, that caused an
increase in the demand for equipment, labor and services;

Higher severance taxes, resulting from higher gas and oil revenue asso-
ciated with higher commodity prices; and

Higher income taxes, primarily reflecting the expiration of Section

29 production tax credits beginning in 2003, partially offset by a
reduction in tax rates applied to deferred taxes associated with
Canadian operations.
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Corporate and Other
Presented below are the Corporate and Other segment’s after-tax results;

2004 2003 2002
(millions, except EPS amounts}
Specific items attributable to operating segments $(224) $(2200 $§ 7
DCl aperations (82) (96) 14
Telecommunications operationst! (13) {750) (26)
QOther corporate operations (208) (342) (264}
Total net expense (527)  (1.408) (269)
Earnings per share impact $(1.59) § (4.41)  §(0.94)

(1) $15 mitlion and $642 million are classified as discontinued operations in 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments—2004

During 2004, Dominion reported net expenses of $224 million in the Corpo-

rate and Cther segment attributable to its operating segments. The net

expenses in 2004 primarily related to the impact of the following:

o A $184 million charge ($112 million after-tax) related to the valuation of
Dominion’s interest in a long-term power telling contract, attributable
to Dominion Gensration;

e $96 million of losses ($61 million after-tax) related to the discontinu-
ance of hedge accounting for certain oil hedges, resulting from an
interruption of cil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane
lvan, and subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges during
the third quarter, attributable to Dominion Exploration & Production;
and

o §71million of charges ($43 million after-tax) resulting from the termina-
tion of certain long-term power purchase contracts, attributable to
Dominion Generation.

Specific Items Attributable to Operating Segments—2003

During 2003, Dominion reported net expenses of $220 million in the

Corporate and Other segment attributable to its operating segments.

The net expenses in 2003 primarily related to the impact of the following:

o $21 million net after-tax gain representing the cumulative effect of
adopting new accounting principles, as described in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including:

o SFAS No. 143: a $180 million after-tax gain attributable to:
Dominion Generation ($188 million after-tax gain); Dominion
Exploration & Production ($7 million after-tax loss); and Dominion
Delivery ($1 million after-tax loss);

e EITF02-3: a $67 million after-tax loss attributable to Dominion
Energy;

e Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20: a $75 million
after-tax loss attributable to Dominion Generation; and

o FIN 46R: a $17 million after-tax loss attributable to Dominion
Generation;

o $197 million of operations and maintenance expense (3122 million
after-tax), representing incremental restoration expenses associated
with Hurricane Isabel, attributable primarily to Dominion Delivery;

o A $105 million charge {$65 million after-tax) for the termination of
power purchase contracts attributable to Dominion Generation;

2 A $64 million charge ($39 million after-tax) for the restructuring and ter-
mination of certain electric sales contracts attributable to Dominign
Generation; and
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» 326 million of severance costs ($15 million after-tax) for workforce
reductions during the first quarter of 2003, attributable to:
* Dominion Generation ($8 million after-tax);
* Dominion Energy [$2 miliion after-tax);
o Dominion Delivery ($4 million after-tax); and
e Dominion Exploration & Production ($1 million after-tax).

DCI Qperations

DCl recognized a net loss of $82 million in 2004; a decrease of $14 million
as compared to 2003. The decrease primarily resulted from a $20 million
reduction in after-tax charges associated with asset impairments.

DCl recognized a net loss of $96 million in 2003, compared to net
income of $14 million in 2002. The loss resulted primarily from the recogni-
tion of the following charges recognized in 2003: $108 million ($70 million
after-tax) of impairments related to retained interests from securitizations,
goodwill and other investments, and the sale of financial assets; and a
$26 million valuation allowance established on certain deferred tax assets.

Telecommunications Operations

Dominion’s loss from its discontinued telecommunications business

decreased $737 million to $13 million in 2004, primarily as a result of its

sale in May 2004 and the impact of certain charges recognized during

2003 which are discussed below.

Dominion’s loss from its telecommunications business increased $724
million to $750 miltion in 2003, primarily reflecting:

o 3566 million associated with the impairment of network assets and
related inventories. Dominion did not recognize any deferred tax bene-
fits related to the impairment charges, since realization of tax benefits
is not anticipated at this time based on Dominion's expected future
tax profile;

¢ A $48 million increase in deferred tax expense as a result of the
increase in the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets;

* Dominion’s purchase of the remaining equity interest in DFV held by
another party for $62 million in December 2003, $80 million of which
was recorded as goodwill and impaired;

s $57 million {$35 million after-tax) for the costs assaciated with
Dominion’s acquisition of DFV senior notes; and

¢ $47 million of after-tax operating losses.

Other Corporate Operations

The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for 2004

decreased by $134 million as compared to 2003, predominantly due to a

$28 million after-tax benefit associated with the disposition of CNGI's

investment in Australian pipeline assets that were sold during 2004, lower

interest expense and the impact in 2003 of the charges discussed below.
The net expenses associated with other corporate operations for 2003

increased by $78 million as compared to 2002, primarily reflecting:

e A $22 million ($14 million after-tax) impairment related to CNGI's gener-
ation assets that were sold in December 2003;

e A $62 million ($55 million after-tax) impairment of CNGI's investment in
Australian pipeline assets held for sale; and

e A $16 million {$10 million after-tax) loss representing the cumulative
effect of adopting FIN 46R.




Selected Information—Energy Trading Activities

As previously described, Dominion manages its energy trading, hedging
and marketing activities through the Clearinghouse. Dominion believes
these operaticns complement its integrated energy businesses and facili-
tate its risk management activities. As part of these operations, the Clear-
inghouse enters into contracts for purchases and sales of energy-related
commodities, including coal, natural gas, electricity, oil and emissions
credits. Settlements of contracts may require physical delivery of the
underlying commaodity or cash settlement. The Clearinghouse enters into
contracts with the objective of benefiting from changes in prices. For exam-
ple, after entering into a contract to purchase a commodity, the Clearing-
house typically enters into a sales contract, or a combination of sales
contracts, with quantities and delivery or settlement terms that are identi-
cal or very similar to those of the purchase contract. When the purchase
and sales contracts are settied sither by physical delivery of the underlying
commodity or by net cash settlement, the Clearinghouse may receive a net
cash margin (a realized gain), or may pay a net cash margin (a realized
loss}. Clearinghouse management continually monitors its contract posi-
tions, considering location and timing of delivery or settlement for each
energy commodity in relation to market price activity.

In addition, the Clearinghouse held a portfolio of financial derivative
instruments to manage Dominion’s price risk associated with a portion of
its anticipated sales of 2004 natural gas production that had not been con-
sidered in the hedging activities of the Dominion Exploration & Production
segment (economic hedges). In 2004, Dominion Energy recognized a net
loss of $22 miliion on the economic hedges. As anticipated, Dominion
Exploration & Production sold sufficient volumes of natural gas in 2004 at
market prices, which, when combined with the settlement of the economic
hedges, resulted in a range of prices for those sales cantemplated by the
risk management strategy.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion performed an evaluation of
its Clearinghouse trading and marketing operations, which resuited in a
decision to exit certain energy trading activities and instead focus on the
optimization of company assets. Beginning in 2005, all revenues and
expenses from the Clearinghouse's optimization of company assets will be
reported as part of the results of the business segments operating the
related assets.

A summary of the changes in the unrealized gains and losses recag-
nized for Dominion’s energy-related derivative instruments held for trading
purposes, including the economic hedges, during 2004 follows:

Amount
{millions)
Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2003 $ 33
Contracts realized or otherwise settled during the period 15
Net unrealized gain at inception of contracts initiated during the period -
Changes in valuation technigues -
Other changes in fair value 98
Net unrealized gain at December 31, 2004 $145

The balance of net unrealized gains and losses recognized for
Dominion’s energy-related derivative instruments held for trading purposes,
including the economic hedges at December 31, 2004, is summarized in the

following table based on the approach used to determine fair value and
contract settlement or delivery dates:

isturity Based an Contract
Settlement or Belivery Data(s)

Less In Excess

Source of than -2 23 35 of
Fair Yalue year years years years Syears Tote!
{millions}
Actively quoted" $105 815 $5 - - $123
Other external sources? - 14 5 $2 - 21
Models and other valuation

methods - - - - - -
Total $105 $23 $50 82 - $148

{1} Exchange-traded and over-the-counter contracts.
{2} Values based on prices from over-the-counter broker activity and industry services and,
where applicable, conventional option pricing models.

Sources and Uses of Cash

Dominion and its subsidiaries depend on both internal and external sources
of liguidity to provide working capital and to fund capital requirements.
Short-term cash requirements not met by cash provided by operations
are generally satisfied with proceeds from short-term borrowings. Long-
term cash needs are met through sales of securities and additional
long-term financing.

At December 31, 2004, Dominion had cash and cash equivalents of
$389 million with $2.4 billion of unused capacity under its credit facilities.
For long-term financing needs, amounts available for debt or equity offer-
ings under currently effective shelf registrations totaled $2.5 billion at
February 1, 2005.

Operating Cash Flows

As presented on Dominion’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, net

cash flows from operating activities were $2.8 billion, $24 billion and

$2.4 billion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respec-

tively. Dominion’s management beligves that its operations provide a stable

source of cash flow sufficient to contribute to planned levels of capital

expenditures and maintain or grow the dividend on common shares.
Dominion’s operations are subject to risks and uncertainties that may

negatively impact the timing or amounts of operating cash flow, including:

o Cost-recovery shortfalls due to capped base and fuel rates in effect in
Virginia for its regulated electric utility;

o The collection of business interruption insurance proceeds
associated with the recovery of delayed gas and oil production due
to Hurricane Ivan;

o Unusual weather and its effect on energy sales to customers and
energy commodity prices;

o Extreme weather events that could disrupt gas and oil production or
cause catastrophic damage to Dominion’s electric distribution and
transmission systems;

o Exposure to unanticipated changes in prices for energy commodities
purchased or sold, including the effect on derivative instruments
that may require the use of funds to post margin deposits with
counterparties;
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o Effectiveness of Dominion’s risk management activities and underlying
assessment of market conditions and related factars, including energy
commodity prices, basis, liquidity, volatility, counterparty credit risk,
availability of generation and transmission capacity, currency exchange
rates and interest rates;

e The cost of replacement electric energy in the event of longer-than-
expected or unscheduled generation outages;

o Contractual or regulatory restrictions on transfers of funds among
Dominion and its subsidiaries; and

o Timeliness of recovery for costs subject to cost-of-service utility rate
regulation.

Credit Risk

Dominion's exposure to potential concentrations of credit risk results pri-
marily from its energy trading, marketing and hedging activities and sales
of gas and oil production. Presented below is a summary of Dominion’s
gross and net credit exposure as of December 31, 2004 for these activities.
Dominion calculates its gross credit exposure for each counterparty as the
unrealized fair value of derivative contracts plus any outstanding receiv-
ables (net of payables, where netting agreements exist), prior to the appli-
cation of collateral. '

Gross Net
Credit Credit Credit
Exzosure  Collatera!  Exposure
{mifligns)
Investment grade! $ 784 $23 $ 78t
Non-investment grade? 35 - 35
No external ratings:
Internally rated—investment grade®® 239 - 239
Internally rated—nan-investment grade® 12D — 150
Total 31,2623 $23  $1.2486

(1) Designations as investment grade are based upon minimum credit ratings assigned by
Moaody’s Investors Service (Moody's) and Standard & Poor’s Rating Group, a division of the
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. {Standard & Poor’s) . The five largest counterparty exposures,
combined, for this category represented approximately 16% of the total gross credit exposure.

{2} The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this categery represented
approximately 2% of the tatal gross credit exposure.

(3} The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented
approximately 14% of the total gross credit exposure.

(4] The five largest counterparty exposures, combined, for this category represented
approximately 3% of the total gross credit exposure.

Investing Cash Flows

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, investing activities resulted in net cash out-

flows of $13 billion, $34 biltion, and $4.0 billion respectively. Significant

investing activities for 2004 included:

e $15 hillion of capital expenditures for the construction and expansion
of generation facilities, environmental upgrades, purchase of nuclear
fuel, and construction and improvements of gas and electric transmis-
sion and distribution assets;

o $1.3 hillion of capital expenditures for the purchase and development of
gas and oil producing properties, drilling and equipment costs and
undeveloped lease acquisitions;

e §729 million of proceeds from sales of gas and oil mineral rights and
properties;

o $490 million for the purchase of securities and $466 million for the sale
of securities, primarily related to investments held in nuclear decom-
missioning trusts; and
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o $132 million in advances and $806 million in reimbursements related to
the Fairless generation project in Pennsylvania.

Financing Cash Flows and Liguidity
Dominion, Virginia Electric and Power Campany {Virginia Power) and Con-
solidated Natural Gas Company (CNG) {collectively the Dominion Compa-
nies) rely on bank and capital markets as a significant source of funding far
capital requirements not satisfied by cash provided by the companiss’
operations. As discussed further in the Credit Ratings section below, the
Dominion Companies' ability to borrow funds or issue securities and the
return demanded by investors are affected by the issuing company’s credit
ratings. In addition, the raising of external capital is subject to certain
regulatory approvals, including autharization by the SEC and, in the
case of Virginia Power, the Virginia State Corporation Commission
(Virginia Commission).

During 2004, net cash used in financing activities was $1.3 billion. Dur-
ing 2003 and 2002, net cash flows from financing activities were $853 mil-
lion and $1.3 billion, respectively. During 2004, the Dominian Companies
issued long-term debt (net of exchanged debt) and common stock totaling
approximately $1.7 billion. The proceeds were used primarily to repay debt.

Credit Facilities and Short-Term Debt

The Dominion Companies use short-term debt, primarily commercial paper,
to fund working capital requirements, as a bridge to long-term debt financ-
ing and as bridge financing for acquisitions, if applicable. The levels of bor-
rowing may vary significantly during the course of the year, depending
upon the timing and amount of cash requirements not satisfied by cash
from operations. At December 31, 2004, the Dominion Companies had com-
mitted lines of credit tataling $3.75 billion. Although there were no loans
outstanding, these lines of credit support commercial paper borrowings
and letter of credit issuances. At December 31, 2004, the Dominion Compa-
nies had the following commercial paper and letters of credit outstanding
and capacity available under cradit facilitiss:

Cuistending Cutstanding Facility
Fecility Commercial Letiers of Cenecity
Limit Paper Credit Availablz
{millions}
Three-year revolving
credit facitityt §1,588
Three-year revolving
credit facility@ 730
Total joint credit facilities 2,230 $273 $783 $1,424
Three-year CNG
credit facility® 1,560 — B35 043
Totals 83,755 8573 $738 $2,439

{1) The 815 billion three-year revolving credit facility was entered into in May 2004 and
terminates in May 2007 This credit facility can also be used to support up to $500 miltion of
letters of credit.

{2) The $750 million three-year revolving credit facility was entered into in May 2002 and can
also be used to support up to $200 million of letters of credit. Dominian expects to renew this
facility prior to its maturity in May 2005,

{3) The $15 hillion three-year credit facility is used to support the issuance of letters of credit
and commercial paper by CNG to fund collateral requirements under its gas and oil hedging
program. The facility was entered into in August 2004 and terminates in August 2007.

In addition to the facilities above, in June and August of 2004, CNG
entered into two $100 million letter of credit agreements that terminate in
June 2007 and August 2008, respectively. Additionally, in October 2004,




CNG entered into three letter of credit agreements totaling $700 million
that terminate in April 2005 and are not expected to be renewed. These
five agreements support letter of credit issuances, providing collateral
required on derivative financial contracts used by CNG in its risk manage-
ment strategies for gas and oil production. At December 31, 2004, outstand-
ing latters of credit under these agreements totaled $300 million.

Dominion’s financial policy precludes issuing commercial paper in
excess of its supporting lines of credit. At December 31, 2004, the total
amount of commercial paper cutstanding was $573 million and the total
amount of fetter of credit issuances was $738 million, leaving approxi-
mately $24 billion available for issuance. The Dominion Companies are
required to pay minimal annual commitment fees to maintain the
credit facifities.

In addition, these credit agreements contain various terms and condi-
tions that could affect the Dominion Companies” ability to borrow under
these facilities. They include maximum debt to total capital ratios, material
adverse change clauses and cross-default provisions.

All of the credit facilities include a defined maximum total debt to
total capital ratio. As of December 31, 2004, the calculated ratio for
the Dominion Companies, pursuant to the terms of the agreements, was
as follows:

Maximum Actual

Compeny Ratio Ratio™
Dominion Resources, Inc. 65% 55%
Virginia Power 60% 55%
CNG 60% 51%

{1} Indebtedness as defined by the bank agreements excludes certain junior subordinated notes
payable to affitiated trusts and mandatorily convertible securities that are reflected on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

These provisions apply separately to Bominion Resources, Inc., Virginia
Power and CNG. if any one of the Dominion Campanies or any of that spe-
cific company’s material subsidiaries fail to make payment on various debt
obligations in excess of $25 million, the lenders could require that respec-
tive company to accelerate its repayment of any outstanding borrowings
under the credit facility and the lenders could terminate their commitment
to lend funds to that company. Accordingly, any defaults on indebtedness
by CNG or any of its material subsidiaries would not affect the lenders’
commitment to Virginia Power. Similarly, any defaults on indebtedness by
Virginia Power or any of its material subsidiaries would not affect the
lenders’ commitment to CNG. However, any default by either CNG or Vir-
ginia Power would also affect in like manner the lenders’ commitment to
Dominian Resources, Inc. under the joint credit agreements.

Although the joint credit agreements contain material adverse change
clauses, the participating lenders, under those specific provisions, cannot
refuse to advance funds to any of the Dominion Companies for the repur-
chase of its outstanding commercial paper.

Long-Term Debt
During 2004, Dominion Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries issued the fol-
lowing long-term debt:

Issuing
Type Principal Rate Maturity Company
{millions}
Senior notes $200 5.20% 2016 Dominicn
Resources, Inc.
Senior notes 160 Yariable 2008 Dominion
Resources, (ac,
Senior notes 409 5.00% 2014 CNG
Senior notes 177 4.92% 2009 Dominicn
Canada Finance
Carporation
Total {ong-term debt issued $877

During 2004, Dominion Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries repaid
$13 billion of long-term debt securities.

In 2004, Dominion exchanged $219 million of outstanding contingent con-
vertible senior notes for new notes with a conversion feature that requires
that the principal amount of each note be repaid in cash upon conversion.

In 2004, in connection with the acquisition of certain generating facili-
ties, Virginia Power assumed $109 million of private placement bonds and
3104 million of pollution control bonds. Virginia Power exchanged $106 mil-
lion of its 2004 Series A 725% senior notes due 2017 for $106 million of the
private placement bonds. The senior notes have the same financial terms
as the private placement bonds, but are registered securities.

Common Stock

Ouring 2004, Dominion issued 14 million shares of common stock and
received proceeds of $839 million. Of this amount, 7 million shares and
proceeds of $413 million resulted from the settlement of stock purchase
contracts associated with Dominion’s 2000 issuance of equity-linked debt
securities. The remainder of the shares issued and proceeds receivad were
through Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvestment and open enrollment
direct stock purchase plan), employee savings plans and the exercise of
employee stock options. In 2005, Dominion Direct® and the Dominion
employee savings plans will purchase Dominion common stock on the open
market with the proceeds received through these programs, rather than
having additional new cammaon shares issued.

In July 1998, Dominion was authorized by its Board of Directors to
repurchase up to the lesser of 16.5 million shares, or $650 million of its out-
standing common stock. As of December 31, 2004, Dominion had repur-
chased approximately 12 million shares for $537 million, with its last
repurchase occurring in 2002. In February 2005, in order to recognize the
significant increase in the size of the company and the market value of its
commgn stock since the time of the previous authorization, Dominion's
Board of Directors superseded this authority, with new authority, to repur-
chase up to the lesser of 25 million shares or $2.0 billion of Dominion’s
outstanding common stock.

Forward Equity Transaction

In September 2004, Dominion entered into a forward equity sale agree-
ment (forward agreement) with Merrilt Lynch International (MLI), as for-
ward purchaser, relating to 10 million shares of Dominion’s common stack.
The forward agreement provides for the sale of two tranches of Dominion
common stock, each with stated maturity dates and settlement prices. In
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connection with the forward agreement, ML! borrowed an equal number of
shares of Dominion’s common stock from stock lenders and, at Dominion’s
request, sold the borrowed shares to J.P. Margan Securities Inc. (JPM)
under a purchase agreement among Dominion, MLI and JPM. JPM subse-
quently offered the borrowed shares to the public. Dominion accounted for
the forward agreement as equity at its initial fair value but did not receive
any proceeds from the sale of the borrowed shares.

The use of a forward agreement allows Dominion to avoid equity
market uncertainty by pricing a stock offering under then existing market
conditions, while mitigating share dilution by postponing the issuance of
stock until funds are needed. Except in specified circumstances or events
that would require physical share settlement, Dominion may elect to settle
the forward agreement by means of a physical share, cash or net share set-
tlement and may also elect to settle the agreement in whole, or in part,
earlier than the stated maturity date at fixed settlement prices. Under
either a physical share or net share settlement, the maximum number of
shares deliverable by Dominion under the terms of the forward agreement
was limited to the 10 million shares specified in the two tranches. Assum-
ing gross share settlement of all shares under the forward agreement,
Dominion would have received aggregate proceeds of approximately
$644 million, based on maturity forward prices of $64.52 per share for the
2 million shares included in the first tranche and $64.34 per share for the
8 million shares included in the second tranche.

However, Dominion elected to cash settle the first tranche in December
2004 and made a payment to MLI for $5.8 million, representing the differ-
ence between Dominion’s share price and the applicable forward sale
price, multiplied by the 2 mitlion shares. Dominion recorded the settlement
payment as a reduction to common stock in its Consolidated Balance
Sheet. Additionzlly, Dominion elected to cash settle 3 million shares of
the second tranche in February 2005 and made a payment to MLI for
$174 million.

The remaining 5 million shares of the second tranche must be settled
by May 17 2005. If gross share settlement were elected for the remainder
of the second tranche at its maturity date, Dominion would receive aggre-
gate proceeds of approximately $322 million and would deliver 5 million of
its common shares. In the event any or all of the proceeds are not needed,
Dominion has the option to either cash settle or net share settle the
remainder of the second tranche of the forward agreement in whole, or in
part, and may elect settiement earlier than the stated maturity date. If
Dominion elects to cash or net share settle any portion of the remainder of
the second tranche, the payment is based on the difference between
Dominion’s share price and the applicable forward sale price for the second
tranche, multiplied by the number of shares being settled.

If, at December 31, 2004, Dominion had elected a cash settlement of
the 8 million shares in the second tranche, Dominian would have owed MLI
$28 million, of which, $18 million would have represented settlement of the
5 million shares remaining in the second tranche after the February 2005
settlement. If, at the time of cash settlement, Dominion’s current share
price were lower than the forward sale price, Dominion would receive a
payment from MLI. For every dollar increase {decrease) in the value of
Dominion’s stock, the value of the settlement of the shares remaining in
the second tranche fram MLI's perspective would increase (decrease) by
$5 million.
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Dominion expects to use proceeds received from physical share settle-
ments under the remainder of the second tranche of the forward agree-
ment to fund part of the cost of acquiring the Kewaunee nuclear power
plant in Wisconsin for $220 million (which is expected to close in the first
half of 2005) and the acquisition of three electric generating stations from
USGen for $642 miliion (which closed on January 1, 2005).

Amounts Available under Shelf Registrations

At February 1, 2005, Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Power, and CNG had
approximately $941 million, $670 million, and $900 million, respectively, of
available canacity under currently effective shelf registrations. Securities
that may be issued under these shelf registrations, depending upon the
registrant, include senior notes (including medium-term notes), subordi-
nated notes, first and refunding mortgage bonds, trust preferred securities,
preferred stock and commeon stock.

In addition, Dominion Resaurces, Inc., under a separate shelf registra-
tion has 6.9 million shares of common stock available exclusively for deliv-
ery against stock purchase contracts associated with outstanding
equity-linked debt securities.

In December 2004, the SEC granted Dominion’s request for financing
authorization under the 1935 Act through December 31, 2007 This authority
replaced the previous financing authority granted by the SEC, which
expired December 31, 2004.

Credit Ratings

Credit ratings are intended to provide banks and capital market partici-
pants with a framewark for comparing the credit quality of securities and
are not a recommendation to buy, seil or hold securities. Management
believes that the current credit ratings of the Dominion Companies provide
sufficient access to the capital markets. However, disruptions in the bank-
ing and capital markets not specifically related to Dominion may affect the
Dominion Companies” ahility to access these funding sources or cause an
increase in the return required by investors.

Both quantitative {financial strength) and qualitative {business or oper-
ating characteristics) factors are considered by the credit rating agencies in
establishing an individual company’s credit rating. Credit ratings should be
evaluated independently and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any
time by the assigning rating organization. The credit ratings for the
Dominion Companies are most affected by each company’s financial pro-
file, mix of regulated and nonregulated businesses and respective cash
flows, changes in methodologies used by the rating agencies and “event
risk,” if applicable, such as major acquisitions.




Credit ratings for the Dominion Companies as of February 1,
2005 follow:

Standard
& Poor's Moodys

Dominion Resources, Inc.

Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ Baal
Preferred securities of affiliated trusts BBB- Baa2
Commercial paper A-2 P-2
Virginia Power
Mortgage bonds A~ A2
Senior unsecured {including tax-exempt) debt securities BBB«+ A3
Preferred securities of affiliated trust BBB- Baal
Preferred stock B3B- Baa2
Commercial paper A-2 P-1
CNG
Senior unsecured debt securities BBB+ A3
Preferred securities of affitiated trust BBB- Baal
Commercial paper A-2 P-2

As of February 1, 2005, Moody's maintains a negative outiook for its rat-
ings of CNG and Standard & Poor’s maintains a negative outlook for its rat-
ings of Dominion Resources, Inc., Virginia Power and CNG.

Generally, a downgrade in an individual company’s credit rating would
not restrict its ability to raise short-term and long-term financing so long as
its credit rating remains “investment grade,” but it would increase the cost
of borrowing. Dominion works closely with both Standard & Poor's and
Moody's with the objective of maintaining its current credit ratings. As
discussed in Risk factors and Cautionary Statements That May Affect
Future Results, in order to maintain its current ratings, Dominion may find it
necessary to modify its business plans and such changes may adversely
affect its growth and earnings per share.

Debt Covenants

As part of borrowing funds and issuing debt (both short-term and long-

term) or preferred securities, the Dominion Companies must enter into

enabling agreements. These agreements contain covenants that, in the
event of default, could result in the acceleration of principal and interest
payments; restrictions on distributions related to its capital stock, including
dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments or guarantee
payments; and in some cases, the termination of credit commitments
unless a waiver of such requirements is agreed to by the lenders/security
holders. These provisions are customary, with each agreement specifying
which covenants apply. These provisions are not necessarily unique to the

Dominion Companies. Some of the typical covenants include:

e The timely payment of principal and interest;

¢ |nformation requirements, including submitting financial reports filed
with the SEC to lenders;

e Performance obligations, audits/inspections, continuation of the basic
nature of business, restrictions on certain matters related to merger or
consolidation, restrictions on disposition of substantial assets;

e Compliance with collateral minimums or requirements related to mort-
gage bonds; and

@ Limitations on liens.

Dominicn monitors the covenants on a regular basis in order to ensure
that events of default will not occur. As of December 31, 2004, there were
no events of default under the Dominion Companies' covenants.

Future Cash Payments (or Contractual Shligations and Planned
Capital Expenditures

Dominion is party to numerous contracts and arrangements obligating
Dominion ta make cash payments in future years. These contracts include
financing arrangements such as debt agreements and leases, as well as
contracts for the purchase of goods and services and financial darivatives.
Presented below is a table summarizing cash payments that may result
from contracts to which Dominion is a party as of December 31, 2004. For
purchase obligations and other liabilities, amounts are based upon contract
terms, including fixed and minimum quantities to be purchased at fixed or
market-based prices. Actual cash payments will be based upon actual
quantities purchased and prices paid and will likely differ from amounts
presented below. The table excludes all amounts classified as current lia-
bilities on the Consclidated Balance Sheets, other than current maturities
of long-term debt and interest payable. The majority of current liabilities
will be paid in cash in 2005.

Less ore
Thant 13 3-5 thend
year years years years Total
{millions)
Long-term debt® $0,368 33248 $9.807 S 9810 $16333
Interest payments'? 874 1,382 1.346 7,332 11,341
Leases 133 225 184 285 £07
Purchase Obligations®:
Purchased electric capacity
for utility operations 589 838 858 3,103 5,433
Fuel used for utility
operations 691 673 245 51 1,880
Fuel used for nonregutated
operations 43 76 70 - 194
Production handling 56 103 ) 27 248
Pipeline transportation ,
and storage 82 118 85 85 280
Energy commodity purchases
for resalei! 527 131 3 ~ €61
Other 352 254 35 5 646
Other long-term liabilities®:
Financial derivatives-
commadities®! 1,084 838 1 ~ 1,243
Other contractual obligatians 25 32 14 32 103
Total cash payments $3,849 39,070 84709  $20,827  $40,455

(1) Based on stated maturity dates rather than the earlier redemption dates that could be
elected by instrument holders.

(2] Does not reflect Dominion's ability to defer distributions related to its junior subordinated
notes payable to affiliated trusts.

(3} Amounts exclude open purchase orders for services that are provided on demand, the timing
of which cannot be determined.

(4} Represents the summation of settlement amounts, by contracts, due from Bominion if all
physical or financial transactions among Dominion and its counterparties were liquidated
and terminated.

{5) Excludes regulatory liabilities, AROs and employee benefit plan cbligations that are not
contractually fixed as to timing and amount. See Notes 14, 15 and 21 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Deferred income taxes are aiso excluded since cash payments are
based primarily on taxable income for each discrete fiscal year.

Dominion’s planned capital expenditures during 2005 are expected to
total approximately $36 billion, which includes the cost of acquiring USGen
and certain non-utility generating facilities. For 2006, pianned capital
expenditures are expected to be approximately $3.0 billion. These expendi-
tures include construction and expansion of generation facilities, environ-
mental upgrades, construction improvements and expansion of gas and
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electric transmission and distribution assets, purchases of nuclear fuel and
expenditures to explore for and develap natural gas and oil properties.
Dominion expects to fund its capital expenditures with cash from operations
and a combination of sales of securities and short-term borrowings.
Dominion may choose to postpone or cancel certain planned capital
expenditures in order to mitigate the need for future debt financings.

Use of §ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Leasing Arrangements
Dominion has an agreement with a voting interest entity (fessor) to lease
the Fairless power station in Pennsylvania, which began commercial opera-
tions in June 2004. During construction, Dominion acted as the construc-
tion agent for the lessor, cantrolled the design and construction of the
facility and has since been reimbursed for all project costs advanced to the
lessor. Project costs tataled $898 million at December 31, 2004, Dominion
will make annual lease payments of $53 million. The lease expires in 2013
and at that time, Dominion may renew the lease at negotiated amounts
based on original project costs and current market conditions, subject to
lessor approval; purchase Fairless at its original construction cost; or sell
Fairless, on behalf of the lessor, to an independent third party. If Fairless is
sold and the proceeds from the sale are less than its original construction
cost, Dominion would be required to make & payment to the lessor in an
amount up to 70.75% of original project costs adjusted for certain other
costs as specified in the lease. The ease agreement does not contain any
provisions that invalve credit rating or stock price trigger events.
Benefits of this arrangement include:
¢ Certain tax benefits as Dominion is considered the owner of the leased
property for tax purpases. As a tesult, it is entitled to tax deductions for
depreciation not recognized for financial accounting purposes; and
& As an operating lease for financial accounting purposes, the asset and
related borrowings used to finance the construction of the asset are not
included an Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Although this
improves measures of leverage calculated using amounts reported in
Dominion's Consolidated Financial Statements, credit rating agencies
view lease obligations as debt equivalents in evaluating Dominion’s
credit profile.

Securitizations of Mortgages and Loans

As of December 31, 2004, Dominion held $335 million of retained interests
from securitizations of mortgage and commercial loans completed in prior
years. Dominion did not securitize or ariginate any loans in 2004. Investors
in the securitization trusts have no recourse to Dominion's other assets for
failure of debtors to repay principal and interest on the underlying loans
when due. Therefore, Dominion's exposure to any future losses from this
activity is limited to its investment in retained interests.

Forward Equity Transaction

As described in Financing Cash Flows and Liquidity—Farward Equity Trans-
action, in September 2004, Dominion entered into a forward equity sale
agreement relating to 10 million shares of Daminion’s common stock. The
use of a forward agreement allows Dominion to avoid equity market uncer-
tainty by pricing a stock offering under then current market conditions,
while mitigating share dilution by pastponing the issuance of stock until
funds are needed. If Dominion decides it does not need any or all of the
proceeds, it has the option to cash settle or net share settle the forward
sale agreement in whole, or in part.
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Future Issues and Other Matters

Status of Electric Deregulation in Yirginia

The Virginia Electric Utility Restructuring Act {Virginia Restructuring Act)

was enacted in 1999 and established a plan to restructure the electric util-

ity industry in Virginia. The Virginia Restructuring Act addressed amang
other things: capped base rates, regional transmissian organization {RTQ}
participation, retail choice, the recovery of stranded costs and the func-
tional separation of a utility’s electric generation from its electric transmis-
sion and distribution operations.

Retail choice has been available to all of Dominion's Virginia regulated
electric customers since January 1, 2003. Dominion has also separated its
generation, distribution and transmission functions through the creation of
divisions. Virginia codes of conduct ensure that Dominion’s generation and
other divisions operate independently and prevent crass-subsidies
between the generation and other divisions.

Since the passage of the Virginia Restructuring Act, the competitive
environment has not developed in Virginia as anticipated. In April 2004, the
Governor of Virginia signed into law amendments to the Virginia Restruc-
turing Act and the Virginia fuel factor statute. The amendments extend
capped base rates by three and one-half years, to December 31, 2010,
uniess modified or terminated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act.
[n addition to extending capped rates, the amendments:

& |Lock in Dominion's fuel factor provisions until the earlier of July 1, 2007
or the termiration of capped rates;

s Provide for a one-time adjustment of Dominion's fuel factor, effective
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010 (unless capped rates are termi-
nated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act), with no adjustment
for previously incurred over-recovery or under-recovery, thus eliminat-
ing deferred fuel accounting for the Virginia jurisdiction; and

e End wires charges on the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termination of
capped rates, consistent with the Virginia Restructuring Act’s original
timetable.

The risk of fuel factor-related cost recovery shortfalls may adversely
impact Dominion’s cost structure during the transition period, and
Dominion could realize the negative economic impact of any such adverse
event. Conversely, Dominion may experience a positive economic impact to
the extent that it can reduce its fuel factor-related costs for its efectric util-
ity generation-related operations.

Dominion anticipates that its unhedged natural gas and il production
will act as a natural internal hedge for electric generation. If gas and oil
prices rise, it is expected that Dominion’s exploration and production opera-
tions will earn greater profits that will help offset higher fuel costs and
lower profits in Dominion’s electric generation operaticns. Conversely, if
gas and oil prices fall, it is expected that Dominion’s electric generation
operations will incur lower fuel costs and sam higher profits that will off-
set lower profits in Dominion's explaration and production operations.
Dominion also anticipates that the fixed fuel rate will lessen the impact of
seasonally mild weather on its electric generation operations. During peri-
ods of mild weather it is expected that electric generation operations will
burn less high-cost fuel because customers will use less electricity,
thereby offsetting decreased revenues. Alternatively, in periods of
extreme weather, Dominion’s higher fuel costs from running costlier
plants are expected to be mitigated by additional revenue as customers
use more electricity.




Other amendments to the Virginia Restructuring Act were also enacted
with respect to @ minimum stay exemption program, a wires charges
exemption program and allowing the development of a coal-fired generat-
ing plant in southwest Virginia for serving default service needs. Under
the minimum stay exemption program, large customers with a load of
500 kW or greater would be exempt from the twelve-maonth minimum stay
obligation under capped rates if they return to supply service from the
incumbent utility at market-based pricing after they have switched to sup-
ply service with a competitive service provider. The wires charge exemp-
tion program would allow large industrial and commercial customers, as
well as aggregated customers in all rate classes, to avoid paying wires
charges by agreeing to market-hased pricing upon return to the incumbent
electric utility. In January 2005, Dominion filed compliance plans for both
of these programs.

&TO

fn September 2002, Dominion and PJM Interconnection, LLC (PJM) entered
into an agreement that provides for, subject to regulatory approval and cer-
tain provisions, Dominion to become a member of PJM, transfer functional
control of its electric transmission facilities to PJM for inclusion in a new
PJM South Region and integrate its control area inta the PJM energy
markets. The agreement also allocates costs of implementation of the
agreement amang the parties.

In October 2004, the FERC issued an order conditionally approving
Dominian’s application to join PJM. In its order, FERC determined that: (i)
Oominien’s proposed transmission rate treatment must conform ta a
regional transmissian rate design, and {ii) Dominian must assess all avail-
able evidence and determine whether the requested deferral of expendi-
tures related to the establishment and operation of an RTO should be
recorded as a regulatory asset until the end of the Virginia retail rate cap
periad. In a separate order issusd in September 2004, FERC granted author-
ity to Dominion subsidiaries with market based rate authority to charge
market based rates for sales of electric energy and capacity to loads
located within Dominion’s service territory upon its integration into PJM.

Dominion has made filings with both the Virginia Commission and
Narth Carolina Utilities Commissian (North Caralina Commission) request-
ing authorization to become & member of PJM. In October 2004, Dominion
filed a settlement agreement with the Virginia Commission resolving most
of the issues raised by interested parties in the proceeding, and hearings
were held to address the remaining issues. The Virginia Commission
approved Dominion’s application 1o join PJM in November 2004 subject to
the terms and conditions of the settlement agreement. The North Carclina
Commission evidentiary hearing was held in January 2005. Dominion can-
not predict the autcome of this matter at this time. ’

North Carolina Rate Matter

In connection with the North Carolina Commission’s approval of the CNG
acquisition, Dominion agreed nat to request an increase in North Caralina
retail electric base rates before 2006, except for certain events that would
have a significant financial impact on Dominion’s electric utility operations.
Fuel rates are still subject to change under the annual fuel cost adjustment
proceedings. However, in April 2004, the North Carolina Commission com-
menced an investigation intae Dominion’s North Carolina base rates and
subsequently ordered Dominion 1o file a general rate case to show cause
why its North Carolina base rates should not be reduced. The rate case

was filed in September 2004 and in February 2005, Dominion reached a
tentative settlement with parties in the case that is subject to North
Carolina Commission approval before becoming effective.

Dominien Transmission, Inc. (3T} Rete Matter

At the request of the Public Service Commission of the State of New York
(PSCNY), DTl has engaged in negotiations with PSCNY regarding the
potential for a prospective reduction of DT 's transportation and storage
service rates to address concerns about the level of DTI's earnings. As a
result of these negotiations, DTi and PSCNY have reached an agreement in
principle that establishes parameters for a potential rate settlement, which
must be finalized by DT! and its customers. DT is negotiating with its cus-
tomers to reach a possible settlement agreement. The settlement parame-
ters envision reduced rates to DTI's customers and a five-year moratorium
on future changes to DTI's transportation and storage service rates. If DTl is
able ta reach an agreement with its customers in the first quarter of 2005,
FERC approval of a filed settlement could be obtained in the second quarter
of 2008

Recovery of Stranded Costs

Stranded costs are those generation-related costs incurred or commit-
ments made by utilities under cost-based regulation that may not reason-
ably be expected to be recovered in a competitive market. At December 37,
2004, Dominion’s exposure to potentially stranded costs included long-term
power purchase contracts that could ultimately be determined to be above
market; generating plants that could possibly become uneconomical in a
deregulated environment; and unfunded obligations for nuctear plant
decommissioning and postretirement benefits not yet recognized in the
financial statements. Dominion believes capped electric retail rates and,
where applicable, wires charges will provide an opportunity to recover a
portion of its potentially stranded costs, depending on market prices of
electricity and other factors. Recovery of Dominion’s potentially stranded
costs remains subject to numerous risks even in the capped-rate environ-
ment. These include, among others, exposure to long-term power purchase
commitment losses, future environmental compliance requirements,
changes in tax laws, nuclear decommissioning costs, inflation, increased
capital costs and recovery of certain other items.

The enactment of deregulation legislaticn in 1999 not only caused the
discontinuance of SFAS No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types
of Regulation, for Dominion’s Virginia jurisdictiona! utility generation-
related aperations hut also caused Dominion to review its utility genera-
tion assets for impairment and long-term power purchase contracts for
potential losses at that time. Significant assumptions considered in that
review included possible future market prices for fuel and electricity, load
growth, generating unit availability and future capacity additions in
Dominion’s market, capital expenditures, including those related to envi-
ronmental improvements, and decommissioning activities. Based on those
analyses, no recognitian of plant impairments or contract losses was
appropriate at that time. In response to future events resulting from the
development of a competitive market structure in Virginia and the expira-
tion or termination of capped rates and wires charges, Dominion may have
to reevaluate its utility generation assets for impairment and long-term
power purchase contracts for potential losses. Assumptions about future
market prices for electricity represent a critical factor that affects the
results of such evaluations. Since 1999, market prices for electricity have
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fluctuated significantly and will continue to be subject to valatility. Any
such review in the future, which would be highly dependent on assump-
tions considered appropriate at the time, could possibly result in the recog-
nition of plant impairment or contract losses that would be material to
Dominion’s results of operations or its financial position.

Changes to Cost Structure—In April 2004, the Governor of Virginia
signed into law amendments to the Virginia Restructuring Act and the Vir-
ginia fuel factor statute. The amendments extend capped base rates until
December 31, 2010, unless capped rates are terminated earlier under the
Virginia Restructuring Act. The generation-related cash flows provided by
the Virginia Restructuring Act are intended to compensate Dominion for
continuing to provide generation services and to allow Dominion to incur
costs to restructure such operations during the transition period. As a
result, during the transition period, Dominion’s earnings may increase ta
the extent that it can reduce operating costs for its utility generation-
related operations. Canversely, the same risks affecting the recovery of
Dominion’s stranded costs, discussed above, may also adversely impact its
cost structure during the transition period. Accardingly, Dominion could
realize the negative economic impact of any such adverse event. In addi-
tion to managing the cost of its generation-related operations, Dominion
may also seek opportunities to sell available electric energy and capacity
to customers beyond its electric utility service territory. Using cash flows
from operations during the transition period, Dominion may further alter its
cost structure or choose to make additional investment in its business.

The capped rates were derived from rates established as part of the
1998 Virginia rate settlement and do not provide for specific recovery of
particular generation-related expenditures, except for certain regulatory
assets. To the extent that Dominion manages its operations to reduce its
overall operating costs below those lsvels included in the capped rates,
Dominion's earnings may increase. Since the enactment of the Virginia
Restructuring Act, Dominion has been reviewing its cost structure to
identify opportunities to reduce the annual operating expenses of its
generation-related operations. In the period 2001 through 2004,

Dominfon negotiated the termination of several long-term power
purchase agreements that is expected to reduce capacity payments in
2005 by $179 miltion.

Common Stock Dividend Increase

in July 2004, Dominion announced that its fourth-quarter dividend payable
December 20, 2004, would be increased by 2 cents per share to 66.5 cents
per share. In February 2005, the quarterly dividend rate increased again
from 66,5 cents per share to 67 cents per share for an annual rate in 2005
of $2.68 per share. Dominion’s expected cash flow and earnings should
enable it to make future annual increases when its board of directors
deems it financially prudent. Common stock dividends are declared on &
quarterly basis by the board of directors.

Statoil ASA (Statoil) Agreement

In June 2004, Dominion executed 20-year contracts with Statoil for the
increased capacity planned for its Cove Point LNG facility and related gas
transmission services. Under the terms of the agreements, Statoil will pur-
chase firm LNG tanker discharge services and related transportation ser-
vice from Cove Point, as well as downstream firm transportation and
storage services from DTI. Plans call for increasing the Cove Point storage
tank capacity to 14.6 bef and the plant’s deliverability by 0.8 bef perday to a
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total of 18 bef per day. To provide the transmission services, Dominion also
plans to expand its pipeline originating at Cove Paint to deliver more nat-
ural gas to interstate pipeline connections in the Mid-Atlantic region as
well as to build a pipeline and two compressor stations in central Pennsyl-
vania. These projects are subject to regulatory approval and are expected
to be placed in service in 2008,

Environmental Matters

Dominion is subject to costs resulting from a number of federal, state and
local laws and regulations designed to protect human health and the envi-
ronment. These laws and regulations affect future planning and existing
operations. They can result in increased capital, operating and other costs
as a result of compliance, remediation, containment and monitoring obliga-
tions. Historically, Dominion recovered such costs arising from regulated
electric operations through utility rates. However, to the extent that envi-
ronmental costs are incurred in connection with operations regulated by
the Virginia Commission, during the period ending December 31, 2010, in
excess of the level currently included in the Virginia jurisdictional electric
retail rates, Dominion’s results of operations will decrease. After that date,
recovery through regulated rates may be sought for only those environmen-
tal costs related to regulated electric transmission and distribution opera-
tions and recovery, if any, through the generation component of rates will
be dependent upon the market price of electricity. Dominion also may seek
recovery through regulated rates for environmental expenditures related to
regulated gas transmission and distribution operations.

Environmental Protection and Monitoring Expenditures

Dominion incurred approximately $132 miltion, $113 million and $123 mil-
lion of expenses {including depreciation) during 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, in connection with environmental protection and monitoring
activities, and expects these expenses to be approximately $203 millicn in
2005 and $215 million in 2006. In addition, capital expenditures related to
environmental controls were $34 million, $210 miltion and $280 million for
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These expenditures are expected to be
approximately $123 million for 2005 and $207 million for 2006. The 2005
and 2006 amounts include planned expenditures for the newly acquired
USGen electric generating facilities.

Clean Air Act Compliance

The Clean Air Act requires Dominion to reduce its emissions of sulfur

dioxide (SO,} and nitrogen oxide {NO,), which are gaseous by-products

of fossit fuel combustion. The Clean Air Act’s SO, and N, reduction

programs include;

¢ Theissuance of a limited number of SO, emission allowances. Each
allowance permits the emission of one ton of S0, into the atmosphere.
The allowances may be transacted with a third party; and

» NGO, emission limitations applicatle during the ozone season months of
May through September and on an annual average basis.
Implementation of projects to comply with SO, and NO, limitations are

ongoing and will be influenced by changes in the regulatory environment,

availability of allowances, various state and federal control programs and

emission control technology. In response ta these requirements, Dominian

estimates it will make capital expenditures at its affected generating facili-

ties (including the newly acquired electric generating facilities from

USGen) of approximately $700 miltion during the period 2005 through 2009

for S0, and NO, emission centrol equipment.




Other EPA Matters

In relation to a Notice of Violation received by Virginia Pawer in 2000 from
the EPA, Dominion entered into a Consent Decree settiement in 2003 and
committed to improve air guality. Dominion has already incurred certain
capital expenditures for environmental improvements at its coal-fired sta-
tions in Virginia and West Virginia. Dominion continues to commit to addi-
tional measures in its current financial plans and capital budget to satisfy
the requirements of the Consent Decree.

Other

As part of its review of Dominion's request related to the reissuance of a
pollution discharge elimination permit for the Milistone Power Station, the
Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection is evaluating the eco-
logical impacts of the cooling water intake system. Until the permit is reis-
sued, it is not possible to predict the financial impact that may result.

In October 2003, the EPA and the Massachusetts Department of Envi-
ronmental Protection jointly issued a new National Pollutant Discharge
Efimination System permit for the USGen, Brayton Point Power Station. The
new permit contained conditions that in effect require the installation of
cooling towers to address cancerns over the withdrawal and discharge of
cooling water. In November 2003, an appeal was filed with the EPA Envi-
ronmental Appeals Board and the Division of Administrative Law Appeals
in Massachusetts. Until the appeals process is completed, the outcome
cannot be predicted.

Future Environmental Regulations

In January 2004, the EPA proposed additional requlations addressing poliu-
tion transport from electric generating plants as well as the regulation of
mercury and nickel emissions. These regulatory actions, in addition to
revised regulations to address regional haze, are expected to be finalized
in 2005 and could require additional reductions in emissions from
Dominion’s fossil fuel-fired generating facilities. If these new emission
reduction requirements are imposed, significant additional expenditures
may be required.

The U.S. Congress is considering various legislative proposals that
would require generating facilities to comply with more stringent air emis-
sions standards. Emission reduction requirements under consideration
would be phased in under a variety of periods of up to 15 years. If these
new proposals are adopted, additional significant expenditures may
be required.

[n 1997, the United States signed an international Protocol 1o limit
man-made greenhouse emissions under the United Nations Framewark
Convention on Climate Change. However, the Protoco! will not become
binding unless approved by the U.S. Senate. Currently, the Bush Adminis-
tration has indicated that it will not pursue ratification of the Pratocol
and has set a voluntary goal of reducing the nation’s greenhause gas emis-
sion intensity by 18% over the next 10 years. Several legisiative proposals
that include provisions seeking to impose mandatory reductions of green-
house gas emissions are under consideration in the United States Can-
gress. Several Northeast states have already or are considering the
imposition of mandatory carbon dioxide {CO,) reductions through the cevel-
opment of a regional cap-and-trade program. The cost of campliance with
the Protocol or other mandatery greenhouse gas reduction obligations
could be significant. Given the highly uncertain outcome and timing of
future action, if any, by the U.S. federal government on this issue, Dominion

cannot predict the financial impact of future climate change actions on its
operations at this time.

Other Matters

USGen Power Stations

in January 2005, Dominion closed on its purchase of three electric power
generation facilities from USGen for $642 million. The acquisition was part
of a bankruptey court-approved divestiture of generation assets by USGen.
The plants include the 1521-megawatt Brayton Point Station in Somerset,
Massachusetts; the 743-megawatt Salem Harbor Station in Salem, Massa-
chusetts; and the 426-megawatt Manchester Street Station in Providence,
Rhode Island. These assets will be included in the Dominion Generation
operating segment. Dominion did not acquire any of the facilities’ debt in
the transaction and plans to finance the acquisition with a combination of
debt and equity.

Kewaunee Nuclear Power Plant

During the fourth quarter of 2003, Dominion announced an agreement
with Wisconsin Public Service Corporation, a subsidiary of WPS Resources
Corporation {WPS), and Wisconsin Power & Light Company (WP&L), a
subsidiary of Alliant Energy Corporation, to purchase the Kewaunee
nuclear power plant, located in northeastern Wisconsin. Under terms of
the agreement, the aggregate purchase price is $220 million in cash,
including $35 million for nuclear fuel. Dominion will sell 100% of the
facility'’s output to WPS (59%) and WP&L {41%) under a power purchase
agreement that expires in 2013. in November 2004, the Public Service
Commission of Wiscansin vated to deny the sale. The transaction had
received all other applicable regulatory approvals. During January 2005,
the commission granted Dominion’s request for a rehearing of the case.

If approved by the commission, the transaction is expected to close in the
first half of 2005. If approved, Kewaunee would be included in the
Dominion Generation operating segment.

Restructuring of Contract with Nen-Utility Generator

In February 2005, Dominion paid $42 million in cash and assumed $62 mil-
lion of debt in connection with the termination of & long-term power pur-
chase agreement and acquisition of the related generating facility used by
Panda-Rosemary LP, a non-utility generator, to provide electricity to
Dominion. The transaction is part of an ongoing program that seeks to
achieve competitive cost structures at Dominion’s utility generation busi-
ness and is expected to reduce annual capacity payments by $18 million.
The purchase price for the acquisition was allocated to the assets and lia-
bilities acquired based on their estimated fair values as of the date of
acquisition. In connection with the termination of the agreement, Dominion
expects to record an after-tax charge of approximately $46 miflion.

Long-Term Power Tolling Contract

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion recorded a $112 million after-tax
charge related to its interest in a long-term power tolling contract with a
551 megawatt combined cycle facility located in Batesville, Mississippi.
Dominion decided to divest its interest in the long-term power tolling
contract in connection with its reconsideration of the scope of certain
activities of the Clearinghouse, including those conducted on behaif of
Dominion’s business segments, and its ongoing strategy to facus on busi-
ness activities within the MAIN to Maine region. The charge is based on
Dominion's evaluation of preliminary bids received from third parties,

D 2004/ Page 49




Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

reflecting the expected amount of consideration that would be required by
a third party for its assumption of Dominion’s interest in the contract in the
first quarter of 2005.

Future Acquisitions

In 2005, Dominion expects to focus on managing its existing assets rather
than acquiring new assets thraugh mergers or acquisitions. Exceptions
wauld include acquiring a Midwest, Northeast or Mid-Atlantic nuclear sta-
tion; replacing gas and ol reserves through acquisitions if more cost effec-
tive than drilling; or continuing to buy out unecanomic long-term power
purchase agreements.

Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management

Dominion’s financial instruments, commodity contracts and related deriva-
tive financial instruments are exposed to potential losses due to adverse
changes in interest rates, equity security prices, foreign currency exchange
rates and commodity prices. Interest rate risk generally is related to
Dominion’s outstanding debt. Commodity price risk is present in Dominion's
electric operations, gas and oil production and procurement operations,
and energy marketing and trading operations due to the exposure to market
shifts in prices received and paid for natural gas, electricity and other com-
madities. Dominion uses derivative commodity contracts to manage price
risk exposures for these operations. In addition, Dominion is exposed to
equity price risk through various portfalios of equity securities.

The following sensitivity analysis estimates the potential loss of future
earnings or fair value from market risk sensitive instruments over a
selected time period due to a 10% unfavorable change in commaodity prices,
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.

Commedity Price Risk—Trading Activities

As part of its strategy to market energy and to manage related risks,
Dominion manages a portfolio of cammodity-based derivative instruments
held for trading purposes. These contracts are sensitive to changes in the
prices of natural gas, electricity and certain other commadities. Dominian
uses established policies and procedures to manage the risks associated
with these price fluctuations and uses derivative instruments, such as
futures, forwards, swaps and options, to mitigate risk by creating offset-
ting market positions.

A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in commodity prices would
have resulted in a decrease of approximately $23 million and $56 million
in the fair value of Dominion’s commodity-based financial derivative
instruments held for trading purposes as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Commodity Price Risk—Non-Trading Activities

Dominion manages the price risk associated with purchases and sales of
natural gas, oil and electricity by using derivative commodity instruments
including futures, forwards, options and swaps. For sensitivity analysis pur-
pases, the fair value of Dominion’s non-trading derivative commadity
instruments is determined based on models that consider the market prices
of commodities in future periods, the volatility of the market prices in each
period, as well as the time value factors of the derivative instruments.
Market prices and volatility are principally determined based on quoted
prices an the futures exchange. A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in
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market prices of Dominion’s non-trading commodity-based financial deriva-
tive instruments would have resulted in a decrease in fair value of approxi-
mately $576 million and $424 million as of December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, respectively. .

The impact of a change in energy commaodity prices on Dominion’s non-
trading derivative commodity-based financial derivative instruments at a
point in time is not necessarily representative of the results that will be
realized when such contracts are ultimately settled. Net losses from deriv-
ative commodity instruments used for hedging purposes, to the extent real-
ized, are substantially offset by recognition of the hedged transaction, such
as revenue from sales.

interest Rate Risk
Dominion manages its interest rate risk exposure predominantly by main-
taining a balance of fixed and variable rate debt. Dominion also enters into
interest rate sensitive derivatives, including interest rate swaps and inter-
est rate lock agreements. For financial instruments outstanding at Decem-
ber 31, 2004, a hypothetical 10% increase in market interest rates would
decrease annual earnings by approximately $10 million. A hypothetical 10%
increase in market interest rates, as determined at December 31, 2003,
waould have resulted in a decrease in annual earnings of approximately
$6 million.

fn addition, Dominion, through subsidiaries, retains ownership of mort-
gage investments, including subordinated bonds and interest-only residual
assets retained from securitizations of mortgage loans originated and pur-
chased in prior years. Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
discusses the impact of changes in value of these investments.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Dominion’s Canadian natural gas and oil exploration and production activi-
ties are relatively self-contained within Canada. As a result, Dominion's
expaosure to foreign currency exchange risk for these activities is limited
primarily to the effects of translation adjustments that arise from including
that operation in its Consolidated Financial Statements. Dominign’s man-
agement monitors this exposure and believes it is not material. In addition,
Dominion manages its foreign exchange risk exposure associated with
anticipated future purchases of nuclear fuel processing services denomi-
nated in foreign currencies by utilizing currency forward contracts. As a
result of holding these contracts as hedges, Daminion’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal. A hypothetical 10% unfavorable change in rele-
vant fareign exchange rates would have resulted in a decrease of approxi-
mately $13 million and $19 million in the fair value of currency forward
contracts held by Dominion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

investment Price Risk
Daominion is subject to investment price risk due to marketable securities
held as investments in decommissioning trust funds. in accordance with
current accounting standards, these marketable securities are reported on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Dominion recognized a net
realized gain (net of investment income) on nuclear decommissioning
trust investments of $51 million in 2004 and a net realized loss (net of
investment income) of $10 million in 2003. Dominion recorded, in AOC!, net
unrealized gains an decommissioning trust investments of $84 million and
$263 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Dominion also sponsors employee pension and other postretirement
benefit plans that hold investments in trusts to fund benefit payments. To




the extent that the values of investments held in these trusts decline, the
effect will be reflected in Dominion’s recognition of the periodic cost of
such employee benefit plans and the determination of the amount of cash
to be cantributed to the employee benefit plans. Dominion’s pension plans
experienced net realized and unrealized gains of $453 million and $627 mii-
lion in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Risk Management Policies

Dominion has operating procedures in place that are administered by expe-
rienced management to help ensure that proper internal controls are main-
tained. In addition, Dominion has established an independent function

at the corporate level to monitor compliance with the risk management
palicies of all subsidiaries. Dominion maintains credit policies that include
the evaluation of a prospective counterparty’s financial condition, collateral
requirements where deemed necessary, and the use of standardized agree-
ments that facilitate the netting of cash flows associated with a single
counterparty. In addition, Dominion also monitors the financial condition of
existing counterparties on an ongoing basis. Based on credit policies and
the December 31, 2004 provision for credit losses, management belisves
that it is unlikely that a material adverse effect on its financial position,
results of operations or cash flows would occur as a result of counterparty
nonperformance.

Risk Factors and Cautionary Statements That May Affect
Future Results

Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from those indi-
cated in any forward-looking statement include weather conditions; gov-
ernmental regulations; cost of environmental compliance; inherent risk in
the operation of nuclear facilities; fluctuations in energy-related commodi-
ties prices and the effect these could have on Dominion’s earnings, liquidity
position and the underlying value of its assets; trading counterparty credit
risk; capital market conditions, including price risk due to marketable secu-
rities held as investments in trusts and benefit plans; fluctuations in inter-
est rates; changes in rating agency requirements or ratings; changes in
accounting standards; collective bargaining agreements and labor negotia-
tions; the risks of operating businesses in regulated industries that are sub-
ject to changing regulatory structures; changes to regulated gas and
electric rates recovered by Dominion; receipt of approvals for and the tim-
ing of the closing dates for pending acquisitions; realization of expected
business interruption insurance proceeds; the transfer of control over elec-
tric transmission facilities to a regional transmission organization; board
approval of future dividends; political and econemic conditions {including
inflation and deflation); and completing the divestiture of investments held
by DCI. Other more specific risk factors are as follows:

Dominion's operations are weather sensitive. Dominion’s results of
operations can be affected by changes in the weather. Weather conditions
directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas and affect the
price of energy commodities. In addition, severe weather, including hurri-
canes, winter storms and droughts, can be destructive, causing outages,
production delays and property damage that require Dominion to incur
additional expenses.

Dominion is subject to complex government regulation that couid
adversely affect its operations. Dominion’s operations are subject to exten-

sive federal, state and local regulation and may require numerous permits,
approvals and certificates from various governmental agencies. Dominion
must also comply with environmental legislation and associated regula-
tions. Management believes the necessary approvals have been obtained
for Dominion’s existing operations and that its business is conducted in
accordance with applicable laws. However, new laws or regulations, or the
revision or reinterpretation of existing laws or regulations, may require
Dominion to incur additional expenses.

Costs of environmental compliance, liabilities and litigation could
exceed Dominion’s estimates which could adversely affect its results of
operations. Compliance with federal, state and local environmental laws
and regulations may result in increased capital, operating and other costs,
including remediation and containment expenses and monitoring obliga-
tions. In addition, Dominion may be a responsible party for environmental
clean-up at a site identified by a regulatory body. Management cannot
predict with certainty the amount and timing of all future expenditures
related to environmental matters because of the difficulty of estimating
clean-up and compliance costs, and the possibility that changes will be
made to the current environmental laws and regulations. There is also
uncertainty in quantifying liabilities under environmental laws that impose
joint and several liability on all potentially responsible parties.

Dominton is exposed to cost-recovery shortfalls because of capped .
base rates and amendments to the fuel factor statute in effect in Virginia for
its regulated electric utility. Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, as
amended in April 2004, Dominion’s base rates (excluding, generally, a fuel
factor with limited adjustment provisions, and certain other allowable
adjustments) remain unchanged until December 31, 2010 unless modified or
terminated consistent with the Virginia Restructuring Act. Although the Vir-
ginia Restructuring Act allows for the recovery of certain generation-
related costs during the capped rates periods, Dofninion remains exposed
to numerous risks of cost-recovery shortfalls. These include exposure to
patentially stranded costs, future environmental compliance requirements,
tax law changes, costs related to hurricanes or other weather events, infla-
tion, the cost of obtaining replacement power during unplanned plant out-
ages and increased capital costs. In addition, under the 2004 amendments
to the Virginia fuel factor statute, Dominion’s current Virginia fuel factor
provisions are locked-in until the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termination
of capped rates by order of the Virginia State Corporation Commissian.

The amendments provide for a one-time adjustment of Dominion’s fuel
factor, effective July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010, with no adjust-
ment for previously incurred over-recovery or under-recovery, thus eliminat-
ing deferred fuel accounting. As a result of the locked-in fuel factor and the
uncertainty of what the one-time adjustment will be, Dominion is exposed
to fuel price risk. This risk includes exposure to increased costs of fuel,
including the energy portion of certain purchased power costs.

Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of
Dominion's electric utility operations is open to competition and resulting
uncertainty. Under the Virginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of
Dominion’s electric utility operations in Virginia is open to competition and
is no longer subject to cost-based regulation. To date, the competitive mar-
ket has been slow to develop. Consequently, it is difficult to predict the
pace at which the competitive environment will evolve and the extent to
which Dominion will face increased competition and be able to operate
profitably within this competitive environment.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Continued

Dominion's merchant power business is operating in a challenging mar-
ket which could adversely affect its results of operations and future
growth. The success of Dominion’s approximately 9,700-megawatt mer-
chant power business depends upon favorable market conditions as well
as its ability to find buyers willing to enter into power purchase agree-
ments at prices sufficient to cover operating costs. Dominion attempts to
manage these risks by entering into hoth short-term and long-term fixed
price sales and purchase contracts. However, depressed spot and forward
wholesale power prices, high fuel and commodity costs and excess capac-
ity in the industry could result in lower than expected revenues in
Dominion’s merchant power business.

There are inherent risks in the operation of nuclear facilities. Dominion
operates nuclear facilities that are subject to inherent risks. These include
the threat of terrorist attack and ability to dispose of spent nuclear fuel,
the disposal of which is subject to compiex federal and state regulatory
constraints. These risks also include the cost of and Dominion’s ability to
maintain adeguate reserves for decommissioning, costs of plant mainte-
nance and exposure to potential liabilities arising out of the operation of
these facilities. Dominion maintains decommissioning trusts and external
insurance coverage to manage the financial exposure to these risks. How-
ever, it is possible that casts arising from claims could exceed the amount
of any insurance coverage.

The use of derivative instruments could result in financial losses and
liquidity constraints. Dominion uses derivative instruments, including
futures, forwards, options and swaps, to manage its commodity and finan-
cial market risks. in addition, Dominion purchases and sells commodity-
based contracts in the natural gas, electricity and oil markets for trading
purposes. In the future, Dominion could recognize financial losses on these
contracts as a resuit of volatility in the market values of the underlying
commodities or if a counterparty fails to perform under a contract. In the
absence of actively quoted market prices and pricing information from
external sources, the valuation of these contracts involves management's
judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying
assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could affect the
reported fair value of these contracts.

In addition, Dominion uses financial derivatives to hedge future sales
of its gas and oil production. These hedge arrangements generally include
margin requirements that require Dominion to deposit funds or post letters
of credit with counterparties to cover the fair value of covered contracts in
excess of agreed upon credit limits. When commadity prices rise to levels
substantially higher than the levels where it has hedged future sales,
Dominion may be required to use a material portion of its available liquidity
to cover these margin reguirements. in some circumstances, this could
have a compounding effect on Dominion’s financial liquidity and results.

For additional information concerning derivatives and commodity-based
trading contracts, see Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk Man-
agement and Notes 2 and 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Dominion is exposed to market risks beyond its control in its energy
clearinghouse operations which could adversely affect its results of opera-
tions and future growth. Dominion’s energy clearinghouse and risk manage-
ment operations are subject to multiple market risks including market
liquidity, counterparty credit strength and price volatility. Many industry
participants have experienced savere business downturns resulting in
some companies exiting or curtailing their participation in the energy trad-
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ing markets. This has led to a reduction in the number of trading partners
and lower industry trading revenues. Declining creditwarthiness of some of
Dominion’s trading counterparties may limit the level of its trading activi-
ties with these parties and increase the risk that these parties may not per-
form under a contract.

Dominion’s exploration and production business is dependent on factors
that cannot be predicted or controlled and that could damage facilities, dis-
rupt production or reduce the book value of its assets. Factors that may
affect Dominion’s financial results include weather that damages or causes
the shutdown of its gas and oil producing facilities, fluctuations in natural
gas and crude oil prices, results of future drilling and well completion
activities and Dominion’s ability to acquire additional land positions in
competitive lease areas, as well as inherent operational risks that could
disrupt production.

Short-term market declines in the prices of natural gas and oil could
adversely affect Dominion’s financial results by causing a permanent write-
down of its natural gas and il properties as required by the full cost
method of accounting. Under the full cost method, all direct costs of prop-
erty acquisition, exploration and development activities are capitalized. if
net capitalized costs exceed the present value of estimated future net rev-
enues based on hedge-adjusted period-end prices from the production of
proved gas and ol reserves (the ceiling test} in a given country at the end
of any quarterly period, then a permanent write-down of the assets must
be recognized in that period.

An inability to access financial markets could affect the execution of
Dominion's business plan. Dominion and its Virginia Power and CNG sub-
sidiaries rely on access to both short-term money markets and longer-term
capital markets as a significant source of liquidity for capital requirements
not satisfied by the cash flows from its operations. Management believes
that Dominion and its subsidiaries will maintain sufficient access to these
financial markets based upon current credit ratings. However, certain dis-
ruptions outside of Dominion’s control may increase its cost of borrowing or
restrict its ability to access one or more financial markets. Such disruptions
could include an economic downturn, the bankruptey of an unrelated
energy company or changes to Dominion’s credit ratings. Restrictions on
Dominion’s ability to access financial markets may affect its ability to exe-
cute its business plan as scheduled.

Changing rating agency requirements could negatively affect Dominion's
growth and business strategy. As of February 1, 2005, Dominion’s senior
unsecured debt is rated BBB+, negative outlook, by Standard & Poor's and
Baal, stable outlook, by Moody's. Both agencies have implemented more
stringent applications of the financial requirements for various ratings lev-
els. In order to maintain its current credit ratings in light of these or future
new requirements, Dominion may find it necessary to take steps or change
its business plans in ways that may adversely affect its growth and earn-
ings per share. A reduction in Dominion’s credit ratings or the credit ratings
of its Virginia Power and CNG subsidiaries by either Standard & Poor’s or
Moody's could increase Dominion’s borrowing costs and adversely affect
operating results and could require it to post additional margin in connec-
tion with some of its trading and marketing activities.

Potential changes in accounting practices may adversely affect
Dominion's financial results. Dominion cannot predict the impact that future
changes in accounting standards or practices may have on public compa-
nies in general, the energy industry or its operations specifically. New




accounting standards could be issued that could change the way Dominion
records revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. These changes in
accounting standards could adversely affect Dominion’s reported earnings
or could increase reported liabilities.

Failure to retain and attract key executive officers and other skilled
professional and technical employees could have an adverse effect on the

Selected Financial Data

operations of Dominion. Implementation of Dominion’s growth strategy is
dependent on its ability to recruit, retain and motivate employees. Compe-
tition for skilled employees in some areas is high and the inability to retain
and attract these employees could adversely affect Dominion's business
and future financial condition.

2004 2003 2002 20018 20001

{millions, except per share amounts}
Operating revenue $13.972 $12,078 $10,218 $10,558 $ 9,245
Income from continuing aperations before cumulative effect of changes in :

accounting principles 1,268 949 1,362 544 415
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxest® (15) (642) - - -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of taxes - " - - 21
Net income 1,249 318 1,362 544 436
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles per common share—basic 384 2.99 485 217 1.76
Net income per commaon share—basic 3.80 1.00 485 217 1.85
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting

principles per common share—diluted 382 298 482 215 178
Net income per common share—diluted 378 1.00 482 215 1.85
Dividends paid per share 2.60 258 258 2.58 258
Total assets 45,045 43,548 38,238 36,044 30,448
Long-term debt® 15,597 15,776 12,060 12,118 10,101
Preferred securities of subsidiary trusts/! - — 1,397 1,132 385

{1) Dominion's 2004 results include a $112 million after-tax charge reflecting Dominion’s valuation of its interest in a long-term power tolting contract and $61 million of after-tax losses related to the
discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain oil hedges, resulting from an interruption of oil praduction in the Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane Ivan, and subsequent changes in the fair value of

those hedges.

{2) Dominion’s 2003 results include $122 million of after-tax incremental restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel. Also in 2003, Dominion adopted accounting standards that resulted in the
recognition of the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
{3) Dominion's 2001 results include a $97 million after-tax charge representing exposure ta the Enron Corp. bankruptcy and $68 million of after-tax charges asscciated with a senior management

restructuring initiative.

{4} Dominion's 2000 results include $198 million of after-tax restructuring and other acquisition-related costs resulting from the merger with Consolidated Natural Gas Company.

{5} Reflects the net impact of Dominion's discontinued telecommunications operations that were sold in May 2004. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

{6) Upon adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003}, Consolidation of Variable interest Entities, on December 31, 2003 with respect to special
purpase entities, Dominian began reparting as long-term debt its junior subordinated notes held by five capital trusts, rather than the trust preferred securities issued by those trusts. See Note 3 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Dominion Resources, Inc. {Dominion} understands and
accepts responsibility for its financial statements and related disclosures
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (internal
control). Dominian continuously strives to identify opportunities to enhance
the effectiveness and efficiency of internal control, just as it does through-
out all aspects of its business.

Management maintains a system of internal contral designed to pro-
vide reasonable assurance, at a reasonable cost, that Dominions and its
subsidiaries’ assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition and that transactions are executed and recorded in accordance
with established procedures. This system includes written palicies, an
organizational structure designed to ensure appropriate segregation of
responsibilities, careful selection and training of qualified personnel and
internal audits.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Dominion, composed
entirely of independent directors, meets periodically with the independent
registered public accounting firm, the internal auditors and management to
discuss auditing, internal control, and financial reporting matters of
Dominion and to ensure that each is properly discharging its responsibili-
ties. Both the independent registered public accounting firm and the inter-
nal auditors periodically meet alone with the Audit Committee and have
free access to the Committee at any time.

SEC rules implementing Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
require Dominion’s 2004 Annual Report to contain a management's report
and a report of the independent registered public accounting firm regarding
the effectiveness of internal control. As a basis for management's report,
Dominion tested and evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls. Based on its assessment as of December 31, 2004,
Dominion makes the following assertion:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting of Dominion,
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There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal con-
trol, including the passibility of human error and the circumvention or over-
riding of contrals. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation.
Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal
control may vary over time.

On December 31, 2003, Dominion adopted Financial Accounting Stan-
dards Board Interpretation No. 46 {revised December 2003}, Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities, for its interests in special purpose entities,
referred to as SPEs. As a result, Dominion has included in its consolidated
financial statements certain SPEs. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, as of
December 31, 2004, reflects $621 million of net property, plant and equip-
ment and deferred charges and $688 million of related debt attributable to
these SPEs. As these SPEs are owned by unrelated parties, Dominion does
not have the authority to dictate or modify, and therefore could not assess
the internal controls in place at these entities. Management’s concfusion
regarding the effectiveness of Dominion’s internal control does not extend
to the internal controls of these SPEs.

Management evaluated Dominion’s internal controf over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004. This assessment was based on criteria
for effective internal control over financial reporting described in internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment,
management believes that Dominion maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

The independent registered public accounting firm that audited the
financial statements has issued an attestation report on Dominion’s
assessment of the internal control over financial reporting.

February 28, 2005




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Sharehalders and Board of Directors of
Dominion Resaurces, Inc.
Richmaond, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Dominion Resources, In¢. and subsidiaries {the "Company”) as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consclidated statements of income,
common shareholders” equity and comprehensive income, and of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Pub-
lic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We beligve that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinian, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financia! position of Dominion Resources, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2004, in canformity with accounting principles genar-
ally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, in
2003 the Company changed its methods of accounting to adopt new
accounting standards for: asset retirement obligations, contracts involved
in energy trading, derivative contracts not held for trading purposes, deriv-
ative contracts with a price adjustment feature, the consolidation of vari-
able interest entities, and guarantees.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Frame-
work issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread-
way Commissian and our report dated February 28, 2005, expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control aver financial reporting and an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting.

Lot b drach LLP

Richmond, Virginia
February 28, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Dominion Resources, Inc.
Richmond, Virginia

We have audited management’s assessment, included in paragraphs 5-9 of
the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, that Dominion Resources, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control~
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiza-
tions of the Treadway Commission. As described in Management's Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management excluded
from their assessment the internal control over financial reporting at cer-
tain special purpose entities consolidated under Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003}, Consol/-
dation of Variable Interest Entities. The Company's Consclidated Balance
Sheet, as of December 31, 2004, reflects $621 million of net property, plant
and equipment and deferred charges and $688 million of refated debt
attributable to these special purpase entities. As these special purpose
entities are owned by unrelated parties, the Company does not have the
authority to dictate or modify, and therefore could not assess the internal
controls in place at these entities. Accordingly, our audit did not include the
internal control aver financial reporting at those special purpose entities.
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective inter-
nal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinicn on management's assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control aver financial reporting
based an our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal contro! over financial reporting was main-
tained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understand-
ing of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal contrel, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a rea-
sonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions,
and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other

D 2004/ Page 56

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposi-
tions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accardance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made anly in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the com-
pany; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal contral over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evalua-
tion of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inade-
quate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our gpinion, management’s assessment that the Company main-
tained effective internal control over financial reparting as of December 31,
2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria estab-
lished in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opin-
ion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the cri-
teria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framewaork issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2004 of the Company and our reparts dated Feb-
ruary 28, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial state-
ments and financial statement schedule.

Bt & Jpuche LLP

Richmond, Virginia
February 28, 2005




Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 33, 2004 2003 2002
{mitlions, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenue $13,972 $12,078 $10,218
Operating Expenses
Electric fuel and energy purchases, net 2,152 1,667 1,447
Purchased electric capacity 587 607 691
Purchased gas, net 2,927 2,175 1,159
Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases 1,807 468 159
Other operations and maintenance 2,748 2,908 2,190
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,303 1,216 1,258
Other taxes 5719 475 429
Total operating expenses 11,255 9,517 7,333
Income from operations 2.7 2,561 2,885
Other income (loss) 185 (40) 103
Interest and related charges:
Interest expense 811 849 826
Interest expense — junior subordinated notes payable to affiliated trusts 112 — —
Distributions —mandatorily redesmable trust preferred securities - m 103
Subsidiary preferred dividends 1% 15 16
Total interest and related charges 939 975 945
Income before income taxes 1,984 1,546 2,043
Income tax expense 700 597 681
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles 1,264 949 1,362
Loss from discontinued operations {net of income tax benefit of $4 and expense of $15, in 2004
and 2003, respectively) (13) (642) —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (net of income taxes of $7) — 1 —
Net Income $ 1,249 § 318 $ 1,362
Earnings Per Common Share —Basic:
Income from continuing operations bafore cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 3% § 299 § 485
Loss from discontinued operations (0.04) {2.02) -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles — 03 —
Net income $ 380 $ 1.00 $ 485
Earnings Per Common Share — Diluted:
income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 382 $ 298 $ 482
Loss from discontinued operations {0.04) (2.01) -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles — 03 —
Net income $ 378 $ 1.00 $ 482
Dividends paid per common share $ 280 $ 258 $ 258

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31, 2004 2003
{millions)
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 389 $ 126
Customer accounts receivable (net of allowance of $43 and $51) 2,585 2,308
Other accounts receivable 329 828
Inventorigs:
Materials and supplies 323 296
Fossil fuel 180 154
Gas stored 285 420
Derivative assets 1,713 1,436
Deferred income taxes 594 240
Prepayments 157 202
Other 47% 531
Total current assets 7122 6,541
Investments
Available for sale securities ; 335 413
Nuclear decommissioning trust funds 2,023 1,872
Other 810 802
Total investments 3,168 3,087
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, ptant and equipment 38,683 37107
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization {11,347} {11,257
Total property, plant and equipment, net 28,716 25,850
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Goodwill, net 4,238 4,300
Regulatory assets 788 832
Prepaid pension cost 1,347 1,839
Derivative assets 705 402
Other 702 595
Total deferred charges and other assets 8440 8,068
Total assets $§ 45,446 $ 43,546
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At December 37, 2004 2003
{millions)
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Securities due within one year $ 1,368 $ 1,252
Short-term debt 573 1,452
Accounts payable, trade 1,984 1,929
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 578 619
Derivative liabilities 2,358 2,082
Other 623 750
Total current liabilities 8,038 8,084
Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt 14,0678 14,336
Junior subcrdinated notes payable to affiliated trusts 1,429 1,440
Total long-term debt 15,507 15,776
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 5,424 4614
Deferred investment tax credits 7% 92
Asset retirement obligations 1,783 1,651
Derivative liabilities 1,583 1,185
Regulatory liabilities 610 587
Other 813 762
Total deferred credits and other liabilities 10,200 8,891
Total liabilities 33,763 32,751
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 22)
Subsidiary Preferred Stock Not Subject To Mandatory Redemption 257 257
Common Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock—no part™ 10,888 10,052
Other paid-in capital 92 61
Retained earnings 1,442 1,054
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (338) (629}
Total common shareholders” equity 11,426 10,538
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $45,443 $43,546

{1) 500 million shares authorized; 340 million shares and 325 million shares cutstanding at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders’ Equity and

Comprehensive Income

Accumulated

Qiher Other
Camman Stock Paid-tn Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income {Loss) Total
{millions}
Balance at December 31, 2001 265 $7.129 $28 $ 922 $ 289 $ 8,368
Comprehensive income: .
Net income 1,362 1,362
Net deferred losses on derivatives —hedging activities,
net of $345 tax benefit (663) (863)
Unrealized losses on investment securities, net of $41 tax benefit (68) (68)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 6 6
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of $1 tax benefit (2) (2)
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net derivative gains—hedging activities, net of $4 tax expense {8) (8)
Total comprehensive income 1,362 (735) 527
Issuance of stock—public offering 38 1,712 1,712
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stack purchase plans 3 199 199
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in
unearned compensation) 3 13 113
Stock repurchase and retirement (1) (68) (66)
Accrued contract payments— equity-tinked securities (36) (36)
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 21 21
Dividends and other adjustments (2) (723) (725)
Balance at December 31, 2002 308 9.051 47 1,561 (448) 10,213
Comprehensive income:
Netincome 318 318
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities,
net of $479 tax benefit (791} (791)
Unrealized gains on investment securities,
net of §78 tax expense 12 112
Foreign currency translation adjustments £8 68
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net realized losses on investment securities,
net of $29 tax benefit 49 49
Net losses on derivatives—hedging activities,
net of $225 tax benefit 379 379
Total comprehensive income 318 (183) 135
Issuance of stock— public offering K 683 683
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 206 206
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in
unearned compensation) 3 112 112
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 14 14
Dividends {825) (825)
Balance at December 31, 2003 325 10,052 61 1,054 (629) 10,538
Comprehensive income:
Net income 1,269 1,242
Net deferred derivative losses—hedging activities,
net of $632 tax benefit {£,118) {1,118)
Unrealized gains on investment securities,
net of $18 tax expense 37
Foreign currency transtation adjustments 0 0
Amounts reclassified to net income:
Net realized losses on investment securities,
net of $12 tax benefit 23 23
Net losses on derivatives—hedging activities,
net of $407 tax benefit 703 %3
Foreign currency translation adjustments (! {44) {44)
Total comprehensive income 1,268 (387) 232
Issuance of stock—equity-linked securities 7 413 413
Issuance of stock—employee and direct stock purchase plans 3 208 238
Stock awards and stock options exercised (net of change in
unearned compensation) 5 223 223
Cash settlement—forward equity transaction (8) {6)
Tax benefit from stock awards and stock options exercised 3 n
Dividends {as1) {85%)
Balance at December 31, 2004 349 $10,888 $32 85,482 $(0o8) $11,428

(1) Reclassified to earnings due to the sale of CNG International investments.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
{millions}
Operating Activities
Net income $ 1,249 $ 318 $1.362
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Impairment of telecommunications assets - 566 —
DCl impairment losses 72 85 13
impairment (recovery) of CNG's international assets {18) 84 —
Net unrealized gains on energy trading contracts {113) (54) (5)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,433 1,334 1,379
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits, net 554 452 714
Other adjustments for non-cash items 9 22 34
Changes in:
Accounts receivable (238} (507) {442)
fnventories (24) {234) (55)
Deferred fuel and purchased gas costs, net 89 (244) (143)
Prepaid pension cost (8 (229) (198)
Accounts payable, trade 35 372 155
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 9 42 58
Deferred revenue (223} (43) —
Margin deposit assets and liabilities {6) (18) (186)
Other operating assets and liabilities 87 409 (238)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,839 2,355 2,448
Investing Activities
Plant construction and other property additions {1,451) (2138) {1,339)
Additions to gas and oil properties, including acquisitions (1.283) {1,300} (1,489)
Proceeds from sales of gas and oil properties 729 305 15
Acquisition of businesses - - (410)
Proceeds from sale of loans and securities 488 912 572
Purchases of securities {450) (777) {482)
Escrow release {deposit) for debt refunding — 500 (500}
Purchase of Dominion Fiber Ventures senior notes — (633} —
Advances to lessor for project under construction (132) (385) {240}
Reimbursement from lessar for project under construction 0 — —
Other 115 143 {107)
Net cash used in investing activities {1,255} (3,373} {3,960)
Financing Activities
Issuance (repayment) of short-term debt, net (879) 259 (6686}
tssuance of long-term debt and preferred stock 877 3.393 2434
Repayment of long-term debt and preferred stock {1,283} (2,922) (1,904)
Issuance of preferred securities by subsidiary trusts — — 400
Repayment of preferred securities of subsidiary trusts - - {135}
Issuance of comman stock 839 930 2,020
Repurchase of comman stock ’ - — (66)
Common dividend payments (887) (825) {723)
Other (13) (42) (43)
Net cash provided by {used in] financing activities {1,320} 853 1,317
increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 283 (165} (195)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 128 299 486
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 389 $ 126 $ 29

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid {received) during the year for:

Interest and related charges, excluding capitalized amounts $ 926 $ 94 $ 912

Income taxes {8) (32) {8)
Noncash transactions from investing and financing activities:

Assumption of debt related to acquisitions of non-utility generating facilities 213 — —

Proceeds held in escrow from sale of gas and oil properties 158 — —

Exchange of debt securities 325 500 567

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

D 2004/Page 61




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Qperations

Dominion Resources, Inc. (Dominion) is a holding company headquartered
in Richmond, Virginia. Its principal subsidiaries are Virginia Electric and
Power Company {Virginia Power), Consolidated Natural Gas Company
(CNG) and Dominicn Energy, Inc. (DEI). Dominion and CNG are registered
public utility holding companies under the Public Utility Helding Company
Act 0f 1935 (1935 Act),

Virginia Power is a regulated public utility that generates, transmits and
distributes electricity within an area of approximately 30,000-square-miles
in Virginia and northeastern North Carolina. Virginia Power serves approxi-
mately 2.3 million retail customer accounts, including governmental agen-
cies and wholesale customers such as rural electric cooperatives,
municipalities, power marketers and other utilities. Virginia Power has trad-
ing relationships beyond the geographic limits of its retail service territory
and buys and sells natural gas, electricity and other energy-related com-
madities.

CNG operates in all phases of the natural gas business, explores for
and produces gas and oil and provides a variety of energy marketing ser-
vices. Its regulated gas distribution subsidiaries serve approximately
1.7 million residential, commercial and industrial gas sales and transporta-
tion customer accounts in Ohio, Pennsylvania and West Virginia and its
nonregulated retail energy marketing businesses serve approximately
1.2 mitlion residential and commercial customer accounts in the Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic and Midwest. CNG operates an interstate gas transmission
pipeline system in the Midwest, Mid-Atlantic states and the Northeast and
a liquefied natural gas {LNG) import and storage facility in Maryland. Its
producer services operations involve the aggregation of natural gas supply
and related wholesale activities. CNG's exploration and production opera-
tions are located in several major gas and oil producing basins in the
United States, both onshore and offshore.

DEl is involved in merchant generation, energy trading and marketing
and natural gas and oil exploration and production.

Dominion has substantially exited the core operating businesses of
Dominion Capital, Inc. {DCI), as required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC} under the 1935 Act. Currently, Dominion is required to
divest all remaining OCl haldings by January 2008. DC's primary business
was financial services, including loan administration, commercial lending
and residential martgage lending.

Dominion manages its daily operations through four primary operating
segments: Dominion Generation, Dominion Energy, Dominion Delivery and
Dominion Exploration & Production. In addition, Dominion reports a Carpo-
rate and Other segment that includes the operations of Dominion’s corpo-
rate, service company and other operations (including unallocated debt),
DCl and the net impact of Dominion’s discontinued telecommunications
operations that were sold in May 2004. Assets remain wholly owned by its
legal subsidiaries.

The term “Dominion” is used throughout this report and, depending on
the context of its use, may represent any of the following: the legal entity,
Dominion Resources, Inc., one of Dominion Resources, Inc.’s consolidated
subsidiaries or the entirety of Dominion Resources, Inc. and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

General

Daominion makes certain estimates and assumptions in preparing its Con-
solidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America {generally accepted
accounting principles). These estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include, after eliminating inter-
company transactions and balances, the accounts of Dominion and all
majority-owned subsidiaries, and those variable interest entities (VIEs)
where Dominion has been determined to be the primary beneficiary.

Certain amounts in the 2003 and 2002 Consolidated Financial
Statements and footnotes have been reclassified to conform to the
2004 presentation.

Operating Revenue

Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendered, commodi-

ties delivered or contracts settled and includes amounts yet to be billed to

customers. Dominion’s customer accounts receivable at December 31, 2004

and 2003 included $384 million and $342 million, respectively, of accrued

unbilled revenue based on estimated amounts of electric energy or natural
gas delivered but not yet billed to its utility customers. Dominion estimates
unbilled utility revenue based on historical usage, applicable customer
rates, weather factors and, for electric customers, total daily electric gen-
eration supplied after adjusting for estimated losses of energy during
transmission.

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as operating
revenue include:

® Regulated electric sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail elec-
tric sales and federally regulated wholesale electric sales and electric
transmission services subject to cost-of-service rate regulation;

® Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail natural
gas sales and related distribution services;

* Nonregulated electric sales consist primarily of sales of electricity from
utility and merchant generation facilities at market-based rates, sales
of electricity to residential and commercial customers at contracted
fixed prices and market-based rates and electric trading revenue;

¢ Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas at mar-
ket-hased rates, sales of gas purchased from third parties and gas trad-
ing revenue;

¢ Gas transportation and sterage consists primarily of regulated sales of
gathering, transmission, distribution and storage services. Also
included are regulated gas distribution charges to retail distribution
service customers opting for alternate suppliers;

s Gas and oil production consists primarily of sales of natural gas, oil and
condensate produced by Dominion including the recognition of revenue
previously deferred in connection with the volumetric production pay-
ment (VPP) transactions described in Note 12. Gas and oil production
revenue is reported net of royalties; and




©  Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service revenug from
electric and gas distribution operations; sales of coal and extracted
products; gas and oil processing; gas transmissian pipeline capacity
release; sales of emissions credits; business interruption insurance
revenue associated with delayed gas and oil production caused by Hur-
ricane lvan; and sales activity related to agreements used to facilitate
the marketing of oil production.

See Derivative Instruments below for a discussion of accounting
changes, effective January 1, 2003 and October 1, 2003, which impacted the
recognition and classification of changes in fair value, including settle-
ments, of contracts held for energy trading and other purposes.

Crude Oil Buy/Sell Arrangements
Dominion enters into buy/sell and related agreements as a means to repo-
sition its offshore Gulf of Mexico crude oil production ta more liquid mar-
keting locations onshore. Dominion typically enters into either a single or a
series of buy/sell transactions in which it sells its crude oil production at
the offshore field delivery point and buys similar quantities at Cushing,
Oklahoma for sale to third parties. Dominion is able to enhance profitability
by selling to a wide array of refiners and/or trading companies at Cushing,
one of the largest crude oil markets in the world, versus restricting sales to
a limited number of refinery purchasers in the Gulf of Mexico. These trans-
actions require physical detivery of the crude oil and the risks and rewards
of ownership are evidenced by title transfer, assumption of environmental
risk, transportation scheduling and counter party nonperformance risk.
Under the primary guidance of Emerging Issues Task Farce (EITF) Issue
No. 9819, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,
Dominian presents the sales and purchases related to its crude oil buy/sell
arrangements on a gross basis in its Consolidated Statements of Income.
The EITF is currently discussing Issue No. 04-13, Accounting for Purchases
and Sales of Inventory with the Same Counterparty, which specifically
focuses on purchase and sale transactions made pursuant to crude oil
buy/sell arrangements. The EITF is evaluating whether these types of trans-
actions should be presented net in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
While resolution of this issue may affect the income statement presentation
of these revenues and expenses, there would be no impact on Dominion’s
results of operations or cash flows. Amounts currently shown on a gross
basis in Dominion's Consolidated Statements of Income that could be
impacted by further EITF deliberations in this area are summarized below.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
{millions}

Sale activity included in operating revenue 8220 3181 §164
Purchase activity included in operating expensest! 21 183 147

{1) Included in Liquids, pipeline capacity and other purchases

Eleciric Fuel, Purchased Energy and Purchased Gas—

Deferred Costs

Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the differences between actual
electric fuel, purchased energy and purchased gas expenses and the levels
of recovery for these expenses in current rates are deferred and matched
against recoveries in future periods. The deferral of costs or recovery of
fuel rate revenue in excess of current period expenses is recognized as a
regulatory asset or liability.

As for electric fuel and purchased energy expenses, effective January 4,
2004, Dominicn's fuel factor provisians for its Virginia retail customers are
locked in until the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termination of capped rates,
with a one-time adjustment of the fuel factor, effective July 1, 2007 through
December 31, 2010, with no adjustment for previously incurred over-recov-
ery or under-recovery, thus eliminating deferred fuel accounting for the Vir-
ginia jurisdiction. As a result, approximately 12% of the cost of fuel used in
electric generation and energy purchases used to serve utility customers is
subject to deferral accounting. Prior to the amendments to the Virginia
Electric Utitity Restructuring Act (Virginia Restructuring Act) and the Vir-
ginia fuel factor statute in 2004, approximately 93% of the cost of fuel used
in electric generation and energy purchases used to serve utility customers
had been subject to deferral accounting. Deferred costs associated with
the Virginia jurisdictional portion of expenditures incurred through 2003
continue to be reported as regulatory assets, pending recovery through
future rates.

Income Taxes

Dominion and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return.
Where permitted by regulatory authorities, the treatment of temporary dif-
ferences can differ from the requirements of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Accordingly, a regulatory asset has been recognized if it is probable that
future revenues will be provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities.
Dominion establishes a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not
that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will nat be realized. Deferred
investment tax credits are amortized over the service lives of the properties
giving rise to the credits.

Steck-hased Compensation

Dominion sponsors a plan that provides stock-based awards to directors,
executives and other key employees. Under the plan, Dominion grants
stock aptions and restricted stock awards that vest over periods ranging
from one to five years. Options have contractual terms that range from six
and a half to ten years. Thirty miltion shares of common stock are regis-
tered under the plan, with approximately eight million shares available for
new grants as of December 31, 2004.

Dominion also had three plans under which its directors were granted
their stock retainers, deferred their cash fees and accumulated stock equiv-
alents. In December 2004, these three directors’ pians were amendead to
freeze participation and prohibit deferral of compensation or granting of
new benefits after December 31, 2004 to comply with new deferred com-
pensation requirements of Section 885 of the American Jobs Creation Act
of 2004 {the Act) and Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the Code). A new directors’ plan was approved by the Board
to permit the deferral of compensation earned by Dominion’s non-employee
directors after December 31, 2004 in accordance with the Act and Section
409A of the Code and provides comparable benefits to those previously
included under the three frozen directors’ plans. The new directors’ plan is
subject to shareholder approval.

Dominion measures compensation expense for stock-based awards
issued to its employees using the intrinsic value method prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board Opinion Na. 25, Accounting for Stock {ssued to
Employees, and related interpretations. Under this method, compensation
expense for restricted stock awards equals the fair value of Dominion’s
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

common stock on the date of grant. Stock option awards generally do not
result in compensation expense since their exercise price is typically equal
to the market price of Dominion’s comman stack on the date of grant.
Compensation expense, if any, for both types of awards is recognized on &
straight-ling basis over the stated vesting period of the award.

The following table illustrates the pra forma effect on net income and
garnings per share (EPS) if Dominion had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to
stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
{milfions)
Net income—as reported $1,246 §$318 31362
Add: actual stock-based compensation expense,

net of tax? 0 10 5
Deduct: pro farma stock-based compensation expense,

net of tax (28) {36) (52)
Net income—pro forma %1238 $292  $1.315
Basic EPS—as reported $38 $1.00 3485
Basic EPS—pro forma 377 0.92 4568
Diluted EPS—as reported 3.78 1.00 482
Diluted EPS—pro forma 315 092 465

(1) Actual stock-based compensation expense reflects primarily the issuance of restricted stock.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to be funded
until actually presented for payment. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
accounts payable includes $158 million and $123 miltion, respectively of
checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment. For purposes of the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Dominion considers cash and
cash equivalents to include cash on hand, cash in banks and temporary
investments purchased with a remaining maturity of three months or less.

Inventories

Materials and supplies and fossil fuel inventaries are valued primarily
using the weighted-average cost method. Stored gas inventory used in
local gas distribution operations is valued using the last-in-first-out (LIFQ)
methad. Under the LIFQ method, those inventories were valued at $59 mil-
lion at both December 31, 2004 and 2003. Based on the average price of
gas purchased during 2004, the cost of replacing the current portion of
stored gas inventory exceeded the amount stated on a LIFO basis by
approximately $302 million. Stored gas inventory held by certain nonregu-
lated gas operations is valued using the weighted-average cost methad.

Derivative instruments

Dominion uses derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, forwards
and options to manage the commodity, currency exchange and financial
market risks of its business operations. Dominion also manages a portfolio
of commodity contracts held for trading purposes as part of its strategy to
market energy and to manage related risks.

All derivatives, except those for which an exception applies, are
reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. One of the
exceptions—normal purchases and normal sales—may be elected when
the contract satisfies certain criteria, including a requirement that physical
delivery of the underlying commadity is probable. Expenses and revenue
resulting from deliveries under normal purchase contracts and normal sales
contracts, respectively, are included in earnings at the time of contract
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performance. Derivative contracts that are subject to fair value accounting,
including unrealized gain positions and purchased options, are reported as
derivative assets. Derivative contracts representing unrealized losses and
options sald are reported as derivative liabilities. For derivatives that are
not designated as hedging instruments, any changes in fair value are
recorded in earnings.

Valuation Methods

Fair valug is based on actively quoted market prices, if available. In the
absence of actively quoted market prices, Dominion seeks indicative price
information from external sources, including broker quotes and industry
publications. If pricing information from external sources is not available,
Dominicnh must estimate prices based on available historical and near-term
future price information and certain statistical methods, including
regression analysis.

For aptions and contracts with option-like characteristics where pricing
information is not available from external sources, Dominion generally uses
a modified Black-Scholes Model that considers time value, the volatility of
the underlying commadities and ather relevant assumptions when estimat-
ing fair value. Other option models are used by Dominion under special cir-
cumstances, including a Spread Approximation Model, when contracts
include different commodities or commadity locations and a Swing Option
Model, when contracts allow either the buyer or seller the ability to exer-
cise within a range of quantities. For contracts with unique characteristics,
Dominion estimates fair value using a discounted cash flow approach
deemed appropriate in the circumstances and applied consistently from
period to period. If pricing information is not available from external
sources, judgment is required to develop the estimates of fair value. For
individual contracts, the use of different valuation models or assumptions
coutd have a material effect on the contract’s estimated fair value.

Derivative Instruments Designated as Hedging Instruments

Dominion designates a substantial portion of derivative instruments, held
for purposes other than trading, as fair value or cash flow hedges for
accounting purposes. For all derivatives designated as hedges, the relation-
ship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item is formally docu-
mented, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for using
the hedging instrument. Dominion assesses whether the hedge relationship
between the derivative and the hedged item is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows both at the inception of the hedge and on
an ongoing basis. Any change in fair value of the derivative that is not effec-
tive in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item
is recognized currently in earnings. Also, management may elect to exclude
certain gains or losses on hedging instruments from the measurement of
hedge effectiveness, such as gains or losses attributable ta changes in the
time value of options or changes in the difference between spot prices and
forward prices, thus requiring that such changes be recorded currently in
earnings. Dominion discontinues hedge accounting prospectively for deriva-
tives that have ceased to be highly effective hedges.

Cash Flow Hedges—A significant partion of Dominion’s hedge strate-
gies represents cash flow hedges of the variable price risk associated with
the purchase and sale of electricity, natural gas and oil. Dominion also uses
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the variability in foreign
exchange rates and interest rate swaps to hedge its expasure to variable
interest rates on long-term debt. For cash flow hedge transactions in which




Dominion is hedging the variability of cash flows, changes in the fair value
of the derivative are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income
{loss){AQCI), to the extent effective in offsetting changes in the hedging
relationship, until earnings are affected by the hedged item. For cash flow
hedge transactions that involve a forecasted transaction, Dominion would
discontinue hedge accounting if the occurrence of the forecasted transac-
tion was determined to be no longer probable. Dominion would reclassify
any derivative gains or fosses reported in AOCT to earnings when the fore-
casted item is included in earnings, if it should accur, or earlier, if it
becomes probable that the forecasted transaction would not occur.

Fair Value Hedges—Dominion also engages in fair value hedges by
using derivative instruments to mitigate the fixed price exposure inherent
in firm commodity commitments and certain natural gas inventory. In addi-
tion, Dominion has designated interest rate swaps as fair value hedges to
manage its interest rate exposure on certain fixed rate long-term debt. For
fair value hedge transactions, changes in the fair value of the derivative
will generally be offset currently in earnings by the recognition of changes
in the hedged item’s fair value.

Statement of Income Presentation—Gains and losses on derivatives
designated as hedges, when recognized, are included in operating revenue,
operating expenses or interest and related charges in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Specific line item classification is determined based
on the nature of the risk underlying individual hedge strategies. The portion
of gains or losses on hedging instruments determined to be ineffective and
the portion of gains or losses on hedging instruments excluded from the
measurement of the hedging relationship’s effectiveness, such as gains or
losses attributable to changes in the time value of options or changes in
the difference between spot prices and forward prices, are included in
other operations and maintenance expense.

Derivative Instruments Held for Trading and Other Purposes

As part of its strategy to market energy and to manage related risks,

Dominion manages a portfolio of commadity-based derivative instruments

held for trading purposes, primarily natural gas and electricity. Dominion

uses established policies and procedures to manage the risks associated
with the price fluctuations in these energy commodities and uses various
derivative instruments to reduce risk by creating offsetting market pasitions.

Dominion may also hold certain derivative instruments that are not held
for trading purposes and are not designated as hedges for accounting pur-
poses. However, to the extent Dominion does not hold offsetting positions
for such derivatives, management believes these instruments would repre-
sent economic hedges that mitigate exposure to fluctuations in commodity
prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Statement of Income Presentation:

» Derivatives Held for Trading Purposes: All changes in fair value, includ-
ing amounts realized upon settlement, are presented in revenue on a
net basis as nonregulated electric sales, nonregulated gas sales and
other revenue.

© Financially-Settled Derivatives—Not Held for Trading Purposes or Des-
ignated as Hedging Instruments: All unrealized changes in fair value
and settlements are presented in other operations and maintenance
expense on a net basis.

e Physically-Settled Derivatives—Not Held for Trading Purposes or Des-
ignated as Hedging Instruments. Effective October 1, 2003, all state-
ment of income related amounts for physically settled derivative sales

contracts are presented in revenue, while all statement of income
related amounts for physically settled derivative purchase contracts are
reported in expenses. For periods prior to October 1, 2003, unrealized
changes in fair value for physically settled derivative contracts are pre-
sented in other operations and maintenance expense on a net basis.

Effective January 1, 2003, Dominion recognizes revenue or expense
from all non-derivative energy-related contracts on a gross basis at the
time of contract performance, settlement or termination. Prior to 2003, all
energy trading contracts, including non-derivative contracts, were recorded
at fair value with changes in fair value reported in revenue on a net basis.

Investment Securities

Dominion accounts for and classifies investments in marketable equity and
debt securities in two categories. Debt and equity securities purchased and
held with the intent of selling them in the near term are classified as trad-
ing securities. Trading securities are reported at fair value with net realized
and unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. All other debt and
equity securities are classified as available-for-sale securities. These are
reported at fair value with realized gains and {osses and any other-than-
temporary declines in fair value included in earnings and unrealized gains
and losses reported as a component of AGCI, net of tax.

Dominion analyzes all securities classified as available-for-sale to deter-
mine whether a decline in fair value should be considered other-than-tem-
porary. Retained interests from securitizations of financial assets are
evaluated in accordance with EITF Issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest
Income and Impairments of Furchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial Assets. For other securities, Dominion uses several cri-
teria to evaluate other-than-temporary declines, including length of time
over which the market value has been lower than its cost, the percentage of
the decline as compared to its average cost and the expected fair value of
the security. If the market value of the security has been less than cost far
greater than nine months and the decline in value is greater than 50% of its
average cost, the security is written down to its expected recovery value. If
only one of the above criteria is met, a further analysis is performed to eval-
uate the expected recovery value based on third party price targets. If the
third party price quotes are below the security’s average cost and ane of the
other criteria has been met, the decline is considered other-than-temporary
and the security is written down to its expected recavery value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including additions and replacements, is
recorded at ariginal cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs,
other direct costs and capitalized interest. The cost of repairs and mainte-
nance, inciuding minor additions and reptacements, is charged to expense
as incurred. In 2004, 2003 and 2002, Bominion capitalized interest costs of
$70 million, $96 million and $95 million, respectively.

For electric distribution and transmission property and natural gas prop-
erty subject to cost-of-service utility rate regulation, the depreciable cost
of such property, less salvage value, is charged to accumulated deprecia-
tion at retirement. Cost of removal collections from utility customers and
expenditures not representing asset retirement obligations (AROs) are
recorded as regulatory liabilities or regulatory assets.

For generation-related property, cost of removal not associated with
AROs is charged to expense as incurred. Dominion records gains and
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fosses upon retirement of generation-related property based upon the dif-
ference between proceeds received, if any, and the property’s undepreci-
ated basis at the retirement date.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed on the
straight-line method based on projected service lives. Dominion’s deprecia-
tion rates on property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

{percent)

Gengration 21 195 234
Transmission 22% 222 226
Distribution 318 318 37
Storage 303 281 247
Gas gathering and processing 288 239 231
General and other 548 567 574

Amortization of nuclear fuel used in electric generation is provided on a
units-of-production basis sufficient to fully amortize, over the estimated
service life, the cost of the fuel plus permanent storage and disposal costs.

In 2002, Dominion extended the estimated useful lives of most of its
fossil fuel power stations and electric transmission and distribution prop-
erty based on depreciation studies that indicated longer lives were appro-
priate. The change reduced annual depreciation expense for those assets
by approximately $68 million.

Dominion follows the full cost methad of accounting for gas and oil
exploration and production activities prescribed by the SEC. Under the full
cost method, all direct costs of property acguisition, exploration and devel-
opment activities are capitalized. These capitalized costs are subject i a
quarterly ceiling test. Under the ceiling test, amounts capitalized are lim-
ited to the present value of estimated future net revenues to be derived
from the anticipated production of proved gas and oil reserves, assuming
period-end pricing adjusted for cash flow hedges in place. If net capitalized
costs exceed the ceiling test at the end of any quarterly period, then a per-
manent write-down of the assets must be recognized in that period. The
ceiling test is performed separately for each cost center, with cost centers
established an a country-by-country basis. Approximately 16% of
Dominion’s anticipated production is hedged by qualifying cash flow
hedges, for which hedge-adjusted prices were used to calculate estimated
future net revenue. Whether period-end market prices or hedge-adjusted
prices were used for the portion of production that is hedged, there was no
ceiling test impairment as of December 31, 2004, Dominion adopted Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 106 (SAB 106) as of December 31, 2004 and,
accordingly, excludes future cash flows associated with settling AROs that
have been accrued on the balance sheet pursuant to SFAS No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, from its calculations under
the full cost ceiling test.

Depreciation of gas and oil producing properties is computed using the
units-of-production method. Under the full cost method, the depreciable
base of costs subject to amortization also includes estimated future costs
to be incurred in developing proved gas and oil reserves, as well as capital-
ized asset retirement costs, net of projected salvage values. The costs of
investments in unproved properties are initially excluded from the depre-
ciable base. Until the properties are evaluated, a ratable portion of the
capitalized costs is periodically reclassified to the depreciable base, deter-
mined on a property by property basis, over terms of underlying leases.
Once a property has been evaluated, any remaining capitalized costs are
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then transferred to the depreciable base. In addition, gains or losses on the
sale or other disposition of gas and oil properties are not recognized,
unless the gain or loss would significantly alter the relationship between
capitalized costs and proved reserves of natural gas and oil attributable to
a country. See Asset Retirement Obligations for a discussion of gas and oil
abandonment and dismantlement costs.

Goodwill and iztangible Assets

Dominion evaluates goodwill for impairment annually, as of April 1st, and
whenever an event occurs or circumstances change in the interim that
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below
its carrying amount. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over
their estimated useful lives.

impairmsnt of Leng-Lived and Intangible Assets

Dominion performs an evaluation for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived
assets or intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. These
assets are written down to fair value if the sum of the expected future
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amounts.

Regulatery Assets and Liabifities

For utility operations subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate regula-
tion, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting periods may differ
from accounting methods generally applied by nonregulated companies.
When it is probable that regulators will allow for the recovery of current
costs through future rates charged to customers, Dominion defers these
costs and recognizes regulatory assets in its financial statements that oth-
erwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise,
Dominion recognizes regulatory liabilities in its financial statements when
it is probable that regulators will allow for customer credits through future
rates and when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures that
are not yet incurred.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Beginning in 2003, Dominion recognizes its AROs at fair value as incurred,
capitalizing these amounts as costs of the related tangible long-lived
assets. Due to the absence of relevant market information, fair value is
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses. Dominion reports the
accretion of the liabilities due to the passage of time as an operating
expense. In addition, beginning in 2003, Dominion classifies all invest-
ments held by its decommissioning trusts as available-for-sale, and recog-
nizes realized gains and losses in other income {lass) and records
unrealized gains and losses in AQCI.

Nuclear Decommissioning—2002

Utility Nuclear Plants—In accordance with the accounting policy recognized
by regulatory authorities having jurisdiction aver its electric utility opera-
tions, Dominion recognized an expense for the future cost of decommis-
sioning in amounts equal to the sum of amounts collected from ratepayers
and earnings on trust investments dedicated to funding the decommission-
ing of Dominion’s utility nuclear plants. The trust investments were
reported at fair value with the accumulated provision for decommissioning
reported as a liability. Net realized and unrealized earnings on the trust
investments, as well as an offsetting expense to increase the accumulated
provision for decommissioning, was recorded as a component of other
income {loss).




Merchant Nuclear Plant—Dominion recognized, as a liahility on the
Consolidated Balance Shest, an obligation to decommission its merchant
nuclear plant. The obligation was based upon its estimated fair value,
using discounted cash flows of expected costs to perform the decommis-
sioning activities. Accretion of the obligation was reparted as depreciation
expense. The external trusts were accounted for as available-for-sale
investments with realized gains and losses recognized in other income
{loss) and unrealized gains and losses reported in AQC.

Gas and 0il Dismantlement and Abandonment Costs—2002

Priar to 2003, Dominion’s accounting and reporting practices for future dis-
mantlement and restoration activities for its gas and oil wells and plat-
forms recognized such costs as a component of depletion expense and
inctuded them in accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization.

Amertization of Debt lssuance Costs

Dominion defers and amortizes debt issuance costs and debt premiums or
discounts over the expected lives of the respective debt issues, considering
maturity dates and, if applicable, redemption rights held by others. As per-
mitted by regulatory authorities, gains or losses resulting from the refi-
nancing of debt allocable to utility operations subject to cost-based rate
regulation have also been deferred and amortized over the lives of the

new issues.

3. Newly Adopted Accounting Standards

2064

FSP FAS 142-2

Dominion adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff
Pasition 142-2, Application of FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, to Qil- and Gas-Producing Entities, (FSP 142-2) in
September 2004. FSP 142-2 was issued to clarify that an exception cutlined
in SFAS No. 142 includes the balance sheet classification of drilling and
mineral rights of oil and gas producing entities. In accordance with the guid-
ance in FSP 142-2, Dominion continues to present its oil and gas drilling
rights as tangible assets classified in property, plant and equipment.

FIN 46R

Dominion adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, (FIN 46R) for its interests in VIEs
that are not considered special purpose entities on March 31, 2004. As dis-
cussed below, Dominion adopted FIN 46R for its interests in special pur-
pose entities on December 31, 2003. FIN 46R addresses the identification
and consclidation of VIEs, which are entities that are not controllable
through voting interests or in which the VIEs' equity investors do not bear
the residual economic risks and rewards in proportion to voting rights.
There was no impact on Dominion’s results of operations or financial posi-
tion related to this adoption.

Dominion is & party to long-term contracts for purchases of electric
generation capacity and energy from qualifying facilities and independent
power producers. Certain variable pricing terms in some of these contracts
cause them to be considered potential variable interests that require evalu-
ation under the provisions of FIN 46R. If a power generator that holds one
of these specific types of contracts is determined to be a VIE and Dominion
is determined to be the primary beneficiary, Dominion would be required to

consolidate the entity in its financial statements. Consalidation of one of
these potential VIEs would primarily result in the addition of property, plant
and equipment, long-term debt and minority interest to Dominion’s Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets. The impact on Dominion’s Consolidated Statements
of Income would be that purchased energy and capacity expenses attribut-
able to the long-term contract with the VIE would be replaced by the VIE's
operations, maintenance and interest expenses. The VIE's results of opera-
tions would be reported as income attributable to a minority interest, and
would not affect Dominion’s net income. The debt of these potential VIEs,
even if included in Dominion’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, would be non-
recourse to Dominion.

At March 31, 2004, Dominion had determined that its power purchase
agreements with ten of these entities would require further analysis under
FIN 46R. Each of these facilities began commercial operations and service
to Dominion under the long-term contracts prior to December 31, 2003, Since
these entities were established and are legally owned by parties not affili-
ated with Dominion, Dominion submitted requests for information needed
to evaluate the entity and its contractual relationship with the entity under
FIN 46R. in addition, Dominion informed the entities that, if the results of its
evaluation were to indicate that Dominion should consolidate the entity, it
would also require periodic financial information in order to perform the
accounting required to consolidate the entity in its financial statements.
The objectives of the FIN 48R evaluation are to determine: {1) whether
Dominion’s interest, represented by the power purchase contract, is a signif-
icant variabte interest; (2) whether the supplier entity is a VIE; and (3} if the
supplier entity is a VIE, whether Dominion is the primary beneficiary.

In response to these requests, five of the potential VIE supplier entities
provided some, but limited, information. After completing its analysis of
this information, Dominion concluded that one of the supplier entities is a
VIE, its power purchase contract represented a significant variable interest
in the VIE, but Dominion is not its primary beneficiary. In addition, using the
fimited information received, Dominion concluded that it does not hold sig-
nificant variable interests in two of the potential VIE supplier entities.

Since the enactment of the Virginia Restructuring Act, Dominion has
sought to renegotiate or terminate long-term power purchase contracts in
its efforts to reduce the cost'structure of its generation-related operations.
In November 2004, Dominion paid $32 million to terminate its power pur-
chase agresment and to acquire the related generating facility from one of
the potential VIE suppliers that had not provided information in response to
Dominion’s FIN 46R request. Dominion had purchased $20 million, $20 mil-
lion and $21 million of electric generation capacity and $4 million, $7 mil-
lion and $3 million of electric energy under this power purchase agreement
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, in February 2005,
Dominion paid $42 mitlion in cash and assumed $82 million of debt to ter-
minate its power purchase agreement and to acquire the related generat-
ing facility from the supplier entity that Dominion had determined to be a
VIE and, in which, its power purchase agreement represented a significant
variable interest. Dominion purchased $23 million, $23 miliion and $24 mil-
lion of electric generation capacity and $8 million, $10 mitlion and $5 mil-
lion of electric energy under this power purchase agreement in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

For those six potential VIE supplier entities that have not provided suffi-
cient information, Dominion will continue its efforts to obtain information
and will complete an evaluation of its relationship with each of these
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potential VIEs, if sufficient information is ultimately obtained. Dominion
has remaining purchase commitments with these six potential VIE supplier
entities of $26 billion at December 31, 2004. These commitments are incor-
porated in Dominion’s disclosure of unconditional purchase obligations
included in Note 22. Dominion paid $249 million, $250 million and

$300 million for electric generation capacity and $185 million, $168 million
and $120 million for electric energy to these entities in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Dominion's exposure to losses from its involvement with
these entities cannot be determined since losses, if any, would be repre-
sented by either: 1) the difference between (a) the amount payable by
Dominion for energy and capacity under the long-term contract and (b}
amounts recoverable through sales to retail electric customers in its ser-
vice territory or wholesale market transactions; or 2) if the potential VIE
supplier fails to perform, any amount paid by Dominion to obtain replace-
ment energy and capacity in excess of the amounts otherwise payable
under the long-term contract with the potential VIE supplier entity.

The EITF has added a project to its agenda to consider what variability
should be considered when determining whether an interest is a variable
interest. It is uncertain how this EITF project or other future efforts to fur-
ther interpret FIN 46R could impact Dominion’s conclusions based on its
use of information received.

EITF04-8

On December 31, 2004, Dominion adopted EITF Issue No. 04-8, The Effect
of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share,
which requires the shares issuable under contingently convertible instru-
ments to be included in the diluted EPS calculation regardless of whether
the market price trigger (or other contingent feature) has been met. Prior to
adoption, Dominion exchanged $219 million of outstanding contingent con-
vertible senior notes for new notes with a conversion feature that requires
that the principal amount of each note be repaid in cash. The new notes
outstanding on December 31, 2004 were included in the diluted EPS calcu-
lation retroactive to the date of issuance using the method described in
EITF 04-8. Under this method, the number of shares included in the denomi-
nator of the diluted EPS calculation is calcufated as the net shares issuable
for the reporting period based upon the average market price for the
period. This did not result in an increase to the average shares outstanding
used in the calculation of Dominion’s diluted EPS since the conversian price
included in the notes was greater than the average market price.

SAB 106

In September 2004, the SEC issued SAB 108, which provides guidance to oil
and gas companies following the full cost accounting method regarding the
application of SFAS No. 143. SAB 106 requires companies calculating the
full cost ceiling test to exclude future cash outflows associated with set-
tling AROs that have been accrued on the balance sheet as required by
SFAS No. 143. However, estimated dismantlement and abandonment costs
related to future development activities, which are not required to be
accrued under SFAS No. 143, should continue to be included in the full cost
ceiling test. Dominion adopted the pravisions of SAB 106 during the fourth
quarter of 2004. There was no financial statement impact associated with
the adoption of SAB 106.
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SFAS No. 143

Effective January 1, 2003, Dominion adopted SFAS No. 143, which provides
accounting requirements for the recognition and measurement of liahilities
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. The effect of
adopting SFAS No. 143 for 2003, as compared to an estimate of net income
reflecting the continuation of former accounting policies, was tg increase
net income by $201 million. The increase is comprised of a $180 million
after-tax gain, representing the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle and an increase in income before the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle of $21 million.

EITF 023

On January 1, 2003, Dominion adopted EiTF Issue No. 02-3, fssues Involved
in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Con-
tracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities, that
rescinded EITF Issue No. 98-10, Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy
Trading and Risk Management Activities. Adopting EITF 02-3 resulted in
the discontinuance of fair value accounting for non-derivative contracts
held for trading purposes. Those contracts are recognized as revenue or
expense at the time of contract performance, settlement or termination.
The EITF 98-10 rescission was effective for non-derivative energy trading
contracts initiated after October 25, 2002. For all non-derivative energy
trading contracts initiated prior to October 25, 2002, Dominion recognized a
loss of $67 million {after taxes of $43 million} as the cumulative effect of
this change in accounting principle on January 1, 2003.

EITF03-11

Dominion adopted EITF Issue No. 03-11, Reporting Realized Gains and
Losses on Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No.
133 and Not “Held for Trading Purposes” as Defined in Issue No. 02-3, on
October 1, 2003. EITF 03-11 addresses classification of income statement
related amounts for derivative contracts. Income statement amounts
related to periods prior to October 1, 2003 are presented as originally
reported. See Note 2.

Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20

[n connection with a request to reconsider an interpretation of SFAS No.
133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, FASB
issued Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. C20, /nterpretation of the
Meaning of ‘Not Clearly and Closely Related’ in Paragraph 10 (b) regarding
Contracts with a Price Adjustment Feature. issue C20 establishes criteria
for determining whether a contract’s pricing terms that contain broad mar-
ket indices {e.g., the consumer price index) could qualify as a normal pur-
chase or sale and, therefore, not be subject to fair value accounting.
Dominion has several contracts that qualify as normal purchase and sales
contracts under the Issue C20 guidance. However, the adaption of Issue
26 required the contracts to be initially recorded at fair value as of Octo-
ber 1, 2003, resulting in the recognition of an after-tax charge of $75 mil-
lion, representing the cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle. As normal purchase and sales contracts, no further changes in
fair value will be recognized.




FIN 46R

On December 31, 2003, Dominion adopted FIN 46R for its interests in spe-
cial purpose entities, resulting in the consolidation of several special pur-
pose lessor entities thraugh which Dominion had constructed, financed and
leased several new power generation projects, as well as its corporate
headquarters and aircraft. As a result, the Consolidated Balance Sheegt as
of December 31, 2003 reflects an additional $644 million in net property,
plant and equipment and deferred charges and $688 million of related
debt. This resulted in additional depreciation expense of approximately
$20 million in 2004. The cumulative effect in 2003 of adopting FIN 46R for
Dominign’s interests in special purpose entities was an after-tax charge of
$27 million, representing depreciation expense and amortization associ-
ated with the consolidated assets.

From 1997 through 2002, Dominion established five capital trusts that
sold trust preferred securities to third party investors. Dominion received
the praceeds from the sale of the trust preferred securities in exchange for
various junior subardinated notes issued by Dominion to be held by the
trusts. Upon adoption of FIN 46R, Dominion began reporting as long-term
debt its junior subordinated notes held by the trusts rather than the trust
preferred securities. As a result in 2004, Dominion reported interest
expense on the junior subordinated notes rather than preferred distribution
expense on the trust preferred securities.

Pro Ferma information Reflecting Adoption of New Standards
Disclosure requirements associated with the adoption of FIN 46R and SFAS
No. 143 require a presentation of pro forma net income and EPS for 2002 as
if Dominion had applied the provisions of those standards as of January 1,
2002. Other standards adopted during 2004 and 2003 do not require pro
forma information and are excluded from the amounts presented below.

Basic  Diluted
Amount EPS EPS

{in millions, except par share amaunts}

2002
Reported net income $1,362 $485  $482
Adjusted net income 1,363 485 482

4. Recently Issued Accounting Standards

EITF 031

In accordance with FSP EITF 03-1-1, Deminion delayed its adoption of the
recognition and measurement provisions of EITF Issue No. 03-1, The Mean-
ing of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and lts Application to Certain
Investments, which provides guidance for evaluating and recagnizing other-
than-temporary impairments for certain investments in debt and equity
securities. This delay wil! be in effect until the FASB reaches a final conclu-
sion on issues raised in its proposed FSP 03-1-a, which relates primarily to
implementation issues concerning certain types of debt securities.

Pending the adoption of any new guidance that may be finalized in the
future, Dominion has continued to evaluate its available-for-sale securities
for other-than-temporary impairment based upon the accounting policy
described in Note Z. In addition to issues being addressed by the FASB in

FSP 03-1-a, Dominion and other entities in the electric industry have sought
additional guidance from the FASB concerning the proper application of
EITF 03-1to debt and equity securities held in nuclear decommissioning
trusts. Given the delayed effective date and the request for additional
guidance described above, Dominion cannot predict what the initial or
ongoing impact of applying EITF 03-1 to its nuclear decommissioning trust
investments may have on its results of operations and financial condition
at this time.

SFAS No. 123R

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-
Based Payment{SFAS No. 123R), which requires that the compensation
cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the
financial statements. The cost will be measured based on the fair value of
the equity or liability instruments issued. SFAS No. 123R covers a wide
range of share-based compensation arrangements, including share
options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreci-
ation rights and employee share purchase plans. The requirements of SFAS
No. 123R are effective for unvested awards outstanding as of July 1, 2005
as well as for awards granted, modified, repurchased or cancelled on or
after that date. Compensation expense expected to be recognized for
unvested stock options outstanding at adoption is not expected to be mate-
rial and Dominion's accounting for restricted stock awards is not expected
to change significantly under the new standard. Dominion is currently eval-
uating the financial statement impact of applying SFAS No. 123R to future
grants of stock-based awards.

SFAS Neo. 151

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, lnventory Costs—an
amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, which clarifies that abnarmal
amounts of idle facility expenss, handling costs, freight, and wasted materi-
als (spoilage) should be recognized as current period charges, and requires
that in manufacturing operations, allocation of fixed production overheads
to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production
facility. Dominion will adopt the provisions of this standard prospectively
beginning January 1, 2006 and does nat expect the adoption tc have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial condition.

SFAS Me. 153

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmone-
tary Assets—an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29, which requires that all
commercially substantive exchange transactions, for which the fair value
of the assets exchanged are reliably determinable, be recorded at fair
value, whether or not they are exchanges of similar productive assets. This
amends the exception from fair value measurements in APB No. 29,
Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, for nonmonetary exchanges of
similar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for only those
exchanges that do not have commercial substance. Dominion will adapt
the provisions of this standard prospectively beginning July 1, 2005 and
does not expect the adoption to have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial condition.
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5. Acquisitions

USEer Power Plants

In January 2005, Dominion completed the acquisition of three electric
power generation facilities from USGen New England, Inc. {USGen) for
$642 million in cash. The acquisition was part of a bankruptey court-
approved divestiture of generation assets by USGen. The plants include the
1521-megawatt Brayton Point Station in Somerset, Massachusetts; the
743-megawatt Salem Harbor Station in Salem, Massachusetts; and the
426-megawatt Manchester Street Station in Providence, Rhode Island.
These assets will be included in the Dominion Generation operating seg-
ment. Dominion did not acquire any of the facilities’ debt in the transaction
and plans to finance the acquisition with a combination of debt and equity.

Cove Point LNG Limited Partnership

In September 2002, Dominion acquired 100% ownership of Cove Point LNG
Limited Partnership {Cove Point), a cost-based rate-regulated entity, from a
subsidiary of The Williams Companies for $225 million in cash. Dominion
recorded $75 million of goodwill representing the excess of the purchase
price over the regulatory basis of Cave Point’s assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed. Cove Point’s assets include an LNG natural gas import and
storage facility located near Baltimore, Maryland and an approximately 85-
mile natural gas pipeline. Cove Point hecame fully operational in August
2003. Cove Paint is included in the Dominion Energy operating segment and
the goodwill arising from the acquisition was allocated to that segment for
goodwill impairment-testing purposes.

Mirant State Line Ventures, Inc.

7. Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations befare pravision for income taxes {pre-
tax income), classified by source of income, and the details of income tax
expense were as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

{millions)

income before provision for taxes:

us. 81,638  $1,506 32,018
Non-U.S. 25 40 25
Total $1,934  $1.546  $2,043
Income tax expense:
Current
Federal &2 121 {46)
State 8z 22 13
Non-U.S. (3) 1 —
Total current 141 144 133)
Deferred
Federal 380 433 654
State {18) 32 65
Non-U.S. 12 g 13
Total deferred 576 an 732
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits—net {17} {18) {18)
Total income tax expense $ 7C0 § 597 8 681

The statutory U.S. federal income tax rate reconciles to the effective
incame tax rates as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2024 2003 2002
In June 2002, Dominion acquired 100% ownership of Mirant State Line US. statutory rate BL%  350%  35.0%
Ventures, Inc. (State Line) from a subsidiary of Mirant Corporation for Increases {reductions) resulting from:
$185 miltion in cash. State Line’s assets include a 515-megawatt generation Valuation allowance ' (2.3) 40 -
facility located near Hammond, Indiana. Its operations are included in the S@e taxes, net of fedzral benefit 22 22 23
o . . Utility plant differences o1 {0.4) 8.1}
Dominion Generation operating segment. Preferred dividends 23 0.4 03
Amortization of investment tax credits {C.7) 0.9) 0.7)
Nonconventional fuel credit - — (1.8)
. Other benefits and taxes/foreign operations — {0.5) 02
-
3. Operatmg Revenue Employee pension and other benefits {0.5) {07) {0.6)
Dominion’s operating revenue consists of the following: Employee stack ownership plan deduction {08) (0.7} (0.8)
QOther, net — 0.2 0.7}
Year Ended December 31, 2034 2003 2002 Effective tax rate 35.5% 38.6% 33.3%
{mitlions}
Regulated electric sales $5180 $4876 § 4856 Dominion’s 2004 and 2003 effective tax rates were negatively impacted
Regulated gas sales 1422 1258 878 by the expiration of noncanventional fuel tax credits. Dominion’s 2003
Nonregulated electric sajes 1249 1130 1017 ffective tax rate was also negatively impacted by an increase in the valua-
Nanregulated gas sales 2082 1718 778 ? 9 yimp Y )
Gas transportation and storage 802 700 705 tion allowance related to federal loss carryforwards at CNG (nternational
(Gas and oil production 1,638 1,503 1,334 (CNGI), Dominion Telecom, Inc. and DC! that are not expected to be utilized.
Other 1,801 853 652
Total operating revenue $13872  $12078 310218
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differ-
ences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Dominion’s net deferred income taxes consist of the following:

At December 31, 2004 2003

{millions)

Deferred income tax assets:

Other comprehensive income $ 584 § 397
Deferred investment tax credits 3 3
Loss and credit carryforwards 798 424
Valuation allowance {328) (338)
Total deferred income tax assets 1,685 514
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation method and plant basis differences 2,735 2,310
Income taxes recoverable through future rates 0 16
Partnership basis differences 557 485
Postretirement and pension benefits 337 571
Intangible drilling costs 855 833
Geological, geaphysical and other exploration differences 243 220
Deferred state income taxes 496 432
Other 318 21
Total deferred income tax ligbilities 5825 4,888
Total net deferred income tax liabilities $4830 $4374

At December 31, 2004, Dominion had the following loss and credit
carryforwards:

© Federal loss carryforwards of $14 biilion that expire if unutilized during
the period 2005 through 2024. A valuation allowance on $806 million in
carryforwards has been established due to the uncertainty of realizing
these future deductions;

o State net operating loss carryforwards of $2.4 billion that expire if
unutifized during the pericd 2005 through 2024. A valuation allowance
on $988 million has been established for these carryforwards; and

e Federal and state minimum tax credits of $131 million that do not expire
and other federal and state income tax credits of $66 million that will
expire if unutilized during the period 2006 through 2024.

Other

Dominion has not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign
withholding taxes on its remaining undistributed earnings of $135 million
from its non-U.S. subsidiaries since those earnings are intended to be
reinvested indefinitely.

As a matter of course, Dominion is regularly audited by federal and
state tax authorities. Dominion establishes liabilities for probable tax-
related contingencies and reviews them in light of changing facts and cir-
cumstances. Although the results of these audits are uncertain, Dominion
beligves that the ultimate outcome will not have a material adverse effect
on Dominion’s financial position. Dominion had no significant tax-related
contingent liabilities at December 31, 2004.

American Jobs Creation Act of 2004

The Act was signed into law Gctober 22, 2004, and has several provisions
for energy companies including a deduction related to taxable income
derived from gualified production activities. Under the Act, qualified pro-
duction activities include Dominion’s electric generation and oil and gas
extraction activities. The Act limits the deduction to the lesser of taxable
income derived from qualified production activities or the consolidated fed-

eral taxable income of Dominion and its subsidiaries. At this time,
Dominion does not believe the qualified production activities deduction
will have a material impact on Dominion’s results of operations or financial
position in 2005.

The Act also allows United States companies to repatriate foreign
earnings at a substantially reduced tax rate until December 2005. At the
current time, Dominion does not have plans to repatriate funds to the
United States but is continuing its evaluation and will finalize its plans dur-
ing 2005. Dominion estimates the range of foreign earnings that may be
repatriated to be $135 million to $225 million, which would result in income
tax expense in the range of $20 million to $35 million.

8. Hedge Accounting Activities

Dominion is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price of
natural gas, electricity and other energy-reiated commodities marketed and
purchased as well as the currency exchange and interest rate risks of its
business operations. Dominion uses derivative instruments to mitigate its
exposure to these risks and designates derivative instruments as fair value
or cash flow hedges for accounting purpases. Selected information about
Dominion's hedge accounting activities follows:

2004 2003 2002

{miflions]

Portion of gains {losses) on hedging instruments
determined to be ineffective and included in net income:

Fair value hedges §{2 §3 $2
Cash flow hedges 10 7 {31)
Net ineffectiveness $ 8 54 9§29

Partion of gains {losses) on hedging instruments excluded from
measurement of effectiveness and included in net income:

Fair vaiue hedges §3 81t 31
Cash flow hedges @ 109 7 m
Total $108 $8  §(2)

(1) Amounts relate to changes in the difference between spot prices and forward prices for 2004
and to changes in options’ time value for 2003 and 2002.
{2) Amounts relate to changes in options’ time value.

The following table presents seiected information related to cash flow
hedges included in AGCI in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December
31,2004

Portion
Expacted to
Recumulated ba Reclassitied
Other to Eernings
Comprehensive during the Next
tncome {Loss) 12 Months Meximum
Atter Tax After Tax Term
{miltions)
Commodities:
Gas $ (673) $(334) 3B months
Qil (323} (135) S months
Electricity (209) {133) 35 months
Interest Rate (31) (3) 238 months
Foreign Currency a3 11 33 months
Total $(1,181) $(614)
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The actual amounts that will be reclassified to earnings in 2005 will
vary from the expected amounts presented above as a result of changes in
market prices, interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The effect of
amounts being reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to
earnings will generally be offset by the recognition of the hedged transac-
tions {e.g., anticipated sales) in earnings, thereby achieving the realization
of prices contemplated by the underlying risk management strategies.

As a result of damage ta certain offshore production facilities in the
Gulf of Mexico caused by Hurricane lvan, and the related loss of forecasted
oil production for the period from mid-September 2004 to May 2005,
Dominion discontinued certain cash flow hedges effective September 14,
2004. In connection with the discontinuance of thesa cash flow hedges,
Dominian reclassified $71 million of pre-tax losses from AOCI to earnings in
2004. These amounts were reported in other operations and maintenance
expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

§. Discontinued Operations—
Telecommunications Operations

Bominion Fiber Ventures, LLC (DFV) was a joint venture originally formed by
Dominion and a third-party investor trust (Investor Trust) to fund the devel-
opment of its principal subsidiary, Dominion Telecom, Inc. (Dominion Tele-
com). Dominion Telecom was a facilities-based interchange and emerging
local carrier, providing broadband solutions to wholesale customers
throughout the eastern United States. In connection with its formation,
DFV issued $565 million of 705% senior secured notes due March 2005
which were secured in part by Dominion convertible preferred stock held in
trust. Dominion was the beneficial owner of the trust and thus did not pre-
sent the convertible preferred stock in its Consolidated Balance Sheets.
During 2004, as a rasult of the retirement of DFV's senior notes, the trust
was dissolved and the convertible preferred stock was retired.

At inception, Dominion’s strategy for Dominion Telecom was to focus
primarily on delivering lit capacity, dark fiber and collocation services to
under-served markets. With the markets for these services not growing at
rates originally contemplated and the continuing downward pressure on
prices, resulting from excess capacity in the telecommunications industry,
Bominion reconsidered its investment strategy during 2003. Reflecting a
revision in long-term expectations for potential growth in telecommunica-
tions service revenue, Dominion approved a strategy to sell its interest in
the telecommunications business and began reporting Dominion Telecom
as a discontinued operation in the fourth quarter of 2003

2004—Sale of Dominion Telecom

fn May 2004, Dominion completed the sale of its discontinued telecommu-
nication operations to Elantic Telecom, Inc., realizing a loss of $11 million
($7 million after-tax, $0.02 per share) related to the sale. The results of
telecommunications operations, including revenue of $8 million and a loss
before income taxes of $19 million, are presented as discontinued opera-
tions, on a net basis, on the Consolidated Statement of Income for 2004.
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During July 2004, Elantic Telecom Inc. filed a voluntary petition for
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the U S.
Bankruptey Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, Richmond Division.
Dominion is currently assessing its potential exposure, if any, as a result of
this filing. At December 31, 2004, Dominion has $9 million of remaining
guarantees related to Dominion Telecom.

2003—Asset impairments

The change in strategy in 2003 included a review of Dominion Telecom’s
network assets and related inventories for impairment. As a result,
Dominion recognized a $566 million impairment of network assets and
related inventories, reflecting the excess of the assets carrying amount
over their estimated fair values. This amount included the allocation of
$16 million to the Investor Trust, representing its minarity interest share of
these charges. Management determined the estimated fair values with the
assistance of an independent appraiser and subsequently updated the fair
values based on preliminary bids received in connection with the sale of
Dominion Telecom.

Since realization of tax benefits related to the impairment charges will
be dependent upon Dominion’s future tax profile and taxable earnings,
management established a valuation allowance that completely offsets
the deferred tax benefits. In addition, Dominion increased the valuation
allowance on deferred tax assets previously recognized, resulting in a
$48 million increase in deferred income tax expense.

2003—Additional Investments in DFV

The DFV senior notes contained certain stock price and credit downgrade
triggers that could have resulted in the issuance of the convertible preferred
stock held in trust. In the first quarter of 2003, Dominion purchased

$633 million of DFV senior notes to reduce the likelihood that the remarket-
ing of the Dominion convertible preferred stock held in trust would ever
occur and, in connection with the purchase, obtained consent to remove the
triggers from the indenture. Dominion paid a total of $664 million for the
notes acquired and recognized a pre-tax charge of $57 million, reparted in
other expenses on the Consalidated Statement of Income. The charge con-
sisted of the premium paid to acquire the notes, the consent fee paid to the
note holders and the recognition of previously unamortized debt costs. After
the transaction, Dominion owned a total of $644 million of DFV senior notes
with the remaining $21 million of outstanding notes held by third parties.

Dominion began consolidating the results of DFV in its Consolidated
Financial Statements in February 2003, as a result of acquiring substan-
tially all of DFV's outstanding senior notes. Prior to this acquisition,
Dominion accounted for DFV as an equity-method investment, due to
the Investor Trust’s equity investment and veto rights.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Dominion purchased the Investor Trust’s
interast in DFV for $62 million, including $2 million for accrued dividends.
This transaction was accounted for as a purchase af a minarity interest
and $60 million was recognized as goadwill and impaired. The purchase




enabled Dominion to proceed with its strategy to sell Dominion Telecom
and, accordingly, classify the business as discontinued operations as of
December 31, 2003. As a result, telecommunications assets (network assets
and inventaries) and liabilities, both totaling $13 million were classified as
held-for-sale, and were included in other current assets and liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2003. The results of
telecommunications operations, including revenue of $18 million and a loss
before income taxes of $627 million, were presented as discontinued opera-
tions, on a net basis, on the Consolidated Statement of income for 2003.

2003—0ther

Also early in 2003, Dominion recognized a $27 million charge for the reallo-
cation of DFV's equity losses between the Investor Trust and Dominion.
Based on updated projections of DFV's expected net losses, Dominion and
the Investor Trust revised the aflocation of equity losses, using cash alioca-
tions and liquidation provisions of the underlying limited liability company
agreement rather than voting interests.

2002 Transactions

During 2002, Dominion’s Cansclidated Financial Statements reflected the

following transactions between Dominion and DFY and Dominion Telecom:

e Loans from Dominion Telecom and OFV to Dominion of $140 million at
December 31, 200Z;

e Equity losses of $3Z million;

o Interest expense on the affiliated loans of $13 million; and

s Management and other support services billed by Dominion to
Dominion Telecom of $35 million.

0. Earnings Per Share

The following table presents the calculation of Dominion’s basic and
diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

{mitlions, except per share amounts)

Income from continuing operations before cumulative

Potentially dilutive securities with the right to purchase approximately
5 million, 10 million and 11 million common shares for the years ended
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, were not included in the respective
period’s calculation of diluted EPS because the exercise and purchase
prices included in those instruments were greater than the average market
price of the common shares.

11. Available-For-Sale and Other Investment Securities

Dominion holds marketable debt and equity securities in nuclear decom-
missioning trust funds, retained interests from prior securitizations of
financial assets and subordinated notes related to certain colfateralized
debt obligations. These investments are classified as available-for-sale.
As described below, prior to adopting SFAS No. 143, Dominion did not
record unrealized gains and losses in AQCI for investments held for decom-
missioning its utility nuclear plants; those investments are not presented in
the table below for 2002,

Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are
summarized below:

Total Total
Unreslized  Unrealized
Gains Losses
Fair fncluded Included
Value in AOCI in AGCH
{millions)
2004
Equity securities $1,229 $2690 $12
Debt securities 1.044 20 9
Total 2,273 260 13
2003
Equity securities 1,092 157 3
Debt securities 1102 22 12
Total $2,194 $179 $21

The following tabie presents the fair value and gross unrealized losses
of Dominion’s available-for-sale securities, aggregated by investment cate-

effect of changes in accounting principles $1,266 $949  $1,382 gory and the length of time the securities have been in a continuous loss
Loss from discontinued operations (15} (642) - position, at December 31, 2004
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles - 11 —
Net income 9,249  $ 318 $1.362 Equity Securities Debit Securities
Basic EPS Fair Unrealized Fair Unraalized
Average shares of comman stack outstanding—basic 3280 3175 2810 Yalue Losses Value Losses
Income from continuing operations before cumulative {millions)

effect of changes in accounting principle $384 $293 §485 Less than 12 months $ 92 310 $166 $1
Loss from discontinued operations 0.04) (2.02) — 12 months or more g 2 5 —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles — 03 - Total $101 392 $171 31
Net income $38 $100 $485
Diluted EPS
Average shares of common stock outstanding 3281 375 281.0
Net effect of potentially difutive securities! 1.4 1.3 16
Average shares of common stack outstanding—diluted 3305 3188 2826
Incame from continuing operations before cumutative

effect of changes in accounting principies $382 $298 $482
Lass from discontinued operations .08y (201} —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles - 03 -
Net income $378 $100 $482
{1 Potentially dilutive securities consist of options, restricted stock, equity-linked securities,

contingently convertible senior notes and shares issuable under a forward equity
sale agreement,
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Debt securities backed by mortgages and loans do not have stated con-
tractual maturities as borrawers have the right ta call or repay obligations
with ar without call ar prepayment penalties. At December 31, 2004, these
debt securities totaled $335 million. The fair value of all other debt securi-

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Major classes of property, plant and equipment and their respective
balances are:

ties at December 31, 2004 by contractual maturity are as follows: At Decamber 31, 2004 2003
{millions)
Amount Utility
[millions) Gengration $16,135 39,780
Due in one year ar less $18 Transmission 34848 3,308
Due aftar ane year through five years 230 Distribution 824 7713
Due after five years through ten years 261 Storage 1.823 999
Due after ten years 20e Nuclear fuel 735 757
Total $708 Gas gathering and processing 418 416
General 774 795
) . . X ) Plant under construction 674 698
Presented below is selected information regarding the sales of invest- —
N . . . Total utility 25,337 24,466
ment securities. In determining realized gains and losses, the cost of these -
securities was determined on a specific identification basis. OET;tllo'rtz:/tion and production properties being amortized:
Proved 8,245 7,561
20 zdwen o Unproved 853 567
miltions) Unpraved exploration and production properties
Available-for-sale securities: not being amortized s1¢ 1,154
Proceeds from sales $463  $832  $506 Merchant gereration properties—nuclear 557 929
Realized gains 57 82 58 Nuclear fuel n 175
Realized losses 9 102 58 Merchant generation properties—other 1,288 1,214
Trading securities: Other—including plant under construction 959 1.041
Net unrealized gain {loss)? 4 12 {10) Total nonutility 13,358 12,641
Total property, plant and equipment 8386683  $37,107

{1) Beginning in 2003, after adopting SFAS No. 143, Dominion accounts for its utility
decommissioning trust investments as available-for-sale.

{2) For 2002, $5 million of net realized and unrealized pre-tax losses related to retained interests
held by OCl were reported in sarnings. Effective May 1, 2002, Dominion reclassified its
retained interests from securitizations from trading to available-for-sale based on a
determination that the retained interests were not readily marketable on terms that would
be acceptable ta Oominion,

Decommissioning Trust Investments—Utifity Plants 2002

Prior to adopting SFAS No. 143, Dominion recognized an expense for the
future cost of decommissioning its utility nuclear plants equal to the amounts
coliected from ratepayers and earnings on trust investments dedicated to
funding the decommissioning of thase plants. The trusts were reported at
fair value with realized and unrealized earnings on the trust investments, as
well as an offsetting expense to increase the accumulated provision for
decommissioning, recorded as a component of other income (loss). During
2002, Dominion recognized net realized gains and interest income of

$1 million and net unrealized losses of $67 million related to the trusts.
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Costs of unproved properties capitalized under the full cost method of
accounting that were exciuded from amortization at December 31, 2004
and the years in which such excluded costs were incurred, are as follows:

Years
Tota! 2004 2003 2002 Prior

(millions}
Property acquisition costs $¥1% $43 $B0 $53 8555
Exploration costs 12z a4 30 25 23
Capitalized interest 137 49 54 25 3
Total $970  $136  $144  $103  $587

There were no significant properties under development, as defined by
the SEC, excluded from amortization at December 31, 2004. As gas and oil
reserves are proved through drilling or as properties are deemed to be
impaired, excluded costs and any related reserves are transferred on an
ongoing, well-by-weli basis into the amortization calculation.

Amortization rates for capitalized costs under the full cost method of
accounting for Dominion's United States and Canadian cost centers were
as follows:

Year Ended Decembar 31, 2004 2003 2002
{Per Mcf Equivalent)

United States cost center $1.28 $1.20 $1.13
Canadian cost center 1.18 1.00 0.85




Volumetric Production Payment Transactions

In 2004, Dominion received $413 million in cash for the sale of a fixed-term
overriding royalty interest in certain of its natural gas reserves for the
period May 2004 through April 2008. The sale reduced Dominion's proved
natural gas reserves by approximately 83 billion cubic feet (bcf). While
Dominion is obligated under the agreement to deliver to the purchaser its
portion of future natural gas production from the properties, it retains con-
trol of the properties and rights to future development drilling. If production
from the properties is inadequate to deliver approximately 83 bef of natural
gas scheduled for delivery to the purchaser, Dominion has no obligation to
make up the shortfall. Cash proceeds received from this VPP transaction
were recorded as deferred revenue. Dominion will recognize revenue from
the transaction as natural gas is produced and delivered to the purchasar.
Dominion also entered into a VPP transaction in 2003 receiving proceeds of
$266 miltion for approximately 66 bef for the period August 2003 through
August 2007,

Sale of British Columbia Assels

In December 2004, Dominion sold the majerity of its natural gas and oil
assets in British Columbia, Canada, for $476 million, which was credited to
Dominion’s full cost pool. Dominion received cash proceeds of $320 mitlion
in December 2004 and $156 million in January 2005. The properties sold
produced about 30 bef equivalent net of natural gas annually. Dominion
recorded expenses of $10 million in other operations and maintenance
expense related to the sale.

Jointly-Owned Utility Plants
Dominion’s proportionate share of jointly-owned utility plants at December
31,2004 follows:

Bath
County North
Pumped Anna Clover
Storage Power Power

Station Station Station

imillions, except percentages)

Ownership interest 60.0% 83.4%  50.0%
Plant in service 31,084 32,057 $E48
Accumulated depreciation 378 837 112
Nuclear fuel - 320 -
Accumulated amortization of nuclear fugl — 285 -
Construction work in progress 27 47 3

The co-owners are obligated to pay their share of all future construc-
tion expenditures and operating costs of the jointly owned facilities in the
same proportion as their respective ownership interest. Dominion reports
its share of operating costs in the appropriate operating expense (fuel,
other operations and maintenance, depreciation, depletion and amortiza-
tion and other taxes, etc.) in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

13. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill
There was no impairment of or material change to the carrying amount and
segment allocation of goodwill in 2004. '

In 2003, Dominion recorded goodwill impairment charges of $18 million
related to the DCI reporting unit. During 2003, a DCI subsidiary received an
unfavorable arbitration ruling that resulted in lower margins for services
provided. Another DCI subsidiary experienced delays in expanding market-
ing and stabilizing production efforts. As a result of these unfavorable
developments, Dominion performed goodwill impairment tests, using dis-
counted cash flow analyses, which indicated that the goodwil| associated
with those entities was impaired.

Also in 2003, as described in Note 9, Dominion purchased the remain-
ing equity interest in DFV for $62 million, including $2 million for accrued
dividends. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase of & minority
interest and $60 million was recagnized as goodwill and immediately
impaired. The purchase enabled Dominion to proceed with its strategy
to sell DTI.

In 2002, Dominion recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $13 mil-
lion refated to a DCH subsidiary that received an unfavorable arbitration rui-
ing that affected its ability to recover disputed amounts for past and future
performance under a contract with a major customer. Dominion performed
a goodwill impairment test, using discounted cash flow analysis, which
indicated that the goodwill was impaired.

Other Intangible Assets

All of Dominion's intangible assets, other than goodwill, are subject to
amortization. Amortization expense for intangible assets was $62 million,
$54 miltion and $53 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. There
were no material acquisitions of intangible assets in 2004 or 2003. Intangi-
ble assets are included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The components of intangible assets at December 31, 2004 and
2003 were as follows;

2004 2003
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amouat Amaortization Amount Amartization
{millions)
Software and software licenses 8579 3288 $543 $237
Other 118 0 73 23
Total 8597 8239 $616 $260

Annual amortization expense for intangible assets is estimated to be
$63 million for 2005, $57 million for 2006, $48 mitlion for 2007, $33 million
for 2008 and $26 millian for 2009,
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14. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Dominion’s regulatory assets and liabilities include the following:

At December 31, 2008 2003
{millions)
Reguiatory assets:
Unrecovered gas costs $ 52 $55
Regulatory assets—current 52 55
(Other postretirement bengfit costsi? g6 102
Income taxes recaverable through future ratesi® 250 227
Deferred cost of fuel used in electric generation 248 335
Regional transmission arganization start-up and integration costs® 4 30
Cost of decommissioning DOE uranium enrichment facilities® 18 27
Customer bad debts® 73 85
Other 62 46
Regulatory assets—non-current - 788 832
Total regulatory assets $84¢ 8887
Regulatory liabilities:
Amounts payable to customers $ 2 3
Estimated rate contingencies and refundst” 3 13
Regulatory liabilities—current® 15 16
Provision for future cost of removal® 385 572
Other 13 15
Regulatory liabilities—non-current 610 587
Total regulatory liabilities $625  $603

{1} Reported in other current assets.

{2} Costs recognized in excess of amounts included in regulated rates charged by Dominion’s
regulated gas operations before rates were updated to reflect the new method of accounting
and the cost related to the accrued benefit obligation recognized as part of Dominion’s
accounting for its acquisition of CNG.

{3) Income taxes recoverable through future rates resulting from the recognition of additional
deferred income taxes, not previously recorded under past rate-making practices.

(4) The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) has authorized the deferral of start-up
costs incurred by transmission owning comparties joining a Regional Transmission
Organization {RTO). Dominion has deferred $13 million in start-up costs associated with the
Alliance Regional Transmission Organization (ARTO) and $24 million assaciated with PJM
Interconnection, LLC (PJM) and associated carrying costs of $4 million. Dominion expects
recavery fram Virginia jurisdictional retail customers to commence at the end of the Virginia
retail rate cap period, subject to regulatory approval.
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(5} Cost of decommissioning the Department of Energy’s uranium enrichment facilities,
representing the unamortized portion of Dominion’s required contributions. Beginning in 1992,
Dominion began making contributions over a 15-year period and collecting these costs in
electric customers’ fuel rates.

(6) The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio {Ohio Commissian) has autherized the collection of
previously deferred costs of $51 million associated with certain uncoflectible customer
accounts from 2001 over five years through the tracker rider effective in 2004. The Chio
Commission has also authorized the deferral and recovery of excess bad debt costs incurred
in 2003 and thereafter for certain uncollectible customer accounts not contemplated in
current base rate recoveries. The total deferraf of 2004 and 2003 excess uncoflectible
amounts was $17 million and $13 million, respectively.

{7) Estimated rate contingencies and refunds are associated with certain increases in prices by
Dominion’s rate regulated utilities and other rate making issues that are subject to final
modification in regulatory proceedings.

{8) Reported in other current liabilities.

(3] Rates charged to customers by Dominion’s regulated businesses include a provision for the
cost of future activities to remove assets expected to be incurred at the time of retirement.

At December 33, 2004, approximately $416 million of Dominion’s regula-
tory assets represented past expenditures on which it does not earn a
return. These expenditures consist primarily of unrecovered gas costs,
customer bad debts and a portion of deferred fuel costs. Unrecovered gas
costs and the ongoing portion of bad debts are recovered within two years.
The previously deferred bad debts will be recovered over a 4-year period.
Deferred fuel costs were histarically recovered within twa years; however,
in connection with the settlement of the 2003 Virginia fue! rate proceeding,
Dominion agreed to recover $307 million of previously incurred costs
through June 30, 2007 without a return on unrecovered balances.




5. Asset Retirement Obligations

Dominion's AROs are primarily associated with the decommissioning of

its nuclear generation facilities, retiring certain natural gas pipelines and
dismantling and removing gas and oil wells and platforms. In addition,
Daominion has AROs related to its natural gas gathering, storage, transmis-
sion and distribution systems, including approximately 2,300 gas storage
wells in Dominion’s underground natural gas storage network. These oblig-
ations result from certain safety requirements to be performed at the time
any pipeline or storage well is abandoned. However, Dominion expects to
operate its natural gas gathering, storage, transmission and distribution
systems in perpetuity. Thus, AROs for those assets will not be reflected in
Dominion’s Consolidated Financial Statements until sufficient information
becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of
the activities to be performed. Generally, this will occur when expected
retirement or abandonment dates for individual pipelines or storage wells
are determined by Dominion’s operational planning. The changes to
Dominion’s AROs during 2004 were as follows:

Amount
{miflions)
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 20631 $1,653
Obligations incurred during the pericd 23
QObligations settied during the period (60)
Accretion expense o1
Revisions in estimated cash flows (2)
QOther 2
Asset retirement obligations at December 31, 2004 $1,707

1) Amaunt includes $2 million reparted in ather current liabilities.

Dominion has established trusts dedicated to funding the future
decommissioning of its nuclear plants. At December 31, 2004 and 2003 the
aggregate fair value of these trusts, consisting primarily of debt and equity
securities, totaled $2.0 billion and $19 billion, respectively.

16. Short-Term Debt and Credit Agreements

Joint Credit Facilities

in May 2004 and 2002, Dominian, Virginia Power and CNG entered into two
joint credit facilities that allow aggregate borrowings of up to $2.25 billion.
The facilities include a $15 billion three-year revolving credit facility that
terminates in May 2007 and a $750 million three-year revolving credit facil-
ity that terminates in May 2005. Dominion expects to renew the $750 mil-
lion credit facility prior to its maturity in May 2005. These credit facilities
are being used for working capital, as support for the combined commer-
cial paper programs of Dominion, Virginia Power and CNG and other gen-
eral corporate purposes. The $1.5 billion and $750 million credit facilities
can alsa be used to support the issuance of up to $500 milfion and $200
million of letters of credit, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, total outstanding commercial paper supported
by the joint credit facilities was $573 million, with & weighted average
interest rate of 2.39%. At December 31, 2003, total cutstanding commercial
paper supported by previous credit agreements was $1.44 billion, with a
weighted average interest rate of 1.20%.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, total outstanding letters of credit sup-
ported by the joint credit facilities were $183 million and $85 million,
respectively.

CWNG Credit Facilities

In August 2004, CNG entered into a $15 billion three-year revolving credit
facility that terminates in August 2007. This credit facility is being used to
support CNG's issuance of commercial paper and letters of credit to provide
collateral required by counterparties on derivative financial contracts used
by CNG in its risk management strategies for its gas and oil production. At
December 31, 2004, cutstanding letters of credit under this facility totaled
$555 milfion. At December 31, 2003, cutstanding letters of credit under the
previous facility totaled $820 million.

In addition to the facilities above, in June and August of 2004, CNG
entered into two $100 million letter of credit agreements that terminate in
June 2007 and August 2009, respectively. Additionally, in October 2004,
CNG entered into three letter of credit agreements totaling $7060 million
that terminate in April 2005 and are not expected to be renewed. These
five agreements support ietter of credit issuances, providing collateral
required on derivative financial contracts used by CNG in its risk manage-
ment strategies for gas and oil production. At December 31, 2004, outstand-
ing letters of credit under these agreements totaled $900 million.
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17. Long-Term Debt
2004
Weighted
Average
At December 31, Coupontt 2004 2003
{millions, except percentages)
Dominion Resaurces, Inc.:

Unsecured Senior and Medium-Term Notes:

2.25% to 782%, due 2004 to 2008 4.85% $ 2,002 § 1,740
50% to 8125%, due 2008 to 2033 @ 6.25% 3,889 3,680

Unsecured Equity-Linked Senior Notes, 5.75% to 8.05%, due 2006 to 20084 5.75% 339 743

Unsecured Convertible Senior Notes, 2.125%, due 2023 223 220

Unsecured Juniar Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts, 783% ta 84%, due 2027 to 2041 8.22% 825 825

Unsecured Nenrecourse Debt, Variable Rate, due 2004 - 18
Consolidated Natural Gas Company:

Unsecured Debentures and Senior Notes:

5.375% to 7.375%, due 2004 to 2008 6.16% 1800 1.400
5.0% ta 6.875%, dug 2010 to 202712 6.17% 2,350 1,950

Unsecured Senior Subordinated Debt, 9.25%, due 2004 - 88

Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 2006'¢! 2.55% 234 234

Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 78%, due 2041 206 208
Virginia Electric and Power Company:

Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds:®

7625% t0 8.0%, due 2004 to 2007 7.63% 218 485
70% to 8625%, due 2024 to 2025 §.09% 512 512

Unsecured Senicr and Medium-Term Notes:

5375% to 7.2%, due 2004 to 2008 557% 1370 1.445
450% to 725%, due 2010 to 2025 5.08% 936 830
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced SecuritiessM, 4.10%, due 203816 225 225
Tax-Exempt Financings:”
Variable Rate, due 2008 1.33% 60 60
Variable Rates, due 2015 to 2027 1.38% 137 137
4.95% to 9.62%, due 2005 to 2008 5.28% 148 107
2225% to 765%, due 2009 to 2031 5.32% 397 295

Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, due 20076 1.75% 370 370

Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trust, 7375%, due 2042 412 412
Dominion Energy, Inc.:

Unsecured Medium-Term Notes, 572% to 6.1%, due 2005 to 2006%! 5.84% 262 243

Unsecured Medium-Term Notes, 492%, due 20091l 191 —

Secured Senior Note, 733%, due 2020 231 238

Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rates, due 2006 2.55% 347 347

Revolving Lines of Credit, Variable Rates, due 2004 - 150
Dominion Capital, Inc.:

Notes, 12.5%, due 2008 6 6
Dominion Resources Services, Inc., Secured Bank Debt, Variable Rate, dug 200619 2.38% 107 107
Dominion Fiber Ventures, Secured Senior Notes, 7.05%, due 200510 — 21

16,933 17,074
Fair value hedge valuationti® 1 43
Amounts due within ane year 6.02% (1,358} (1,252}
Unamortized discount and premium, net {69) (89)
Total tong-term debt $19,507 $15,776

{1) Represents weighted-average coupon rates for debt outstanding as of December 31, 2004,

{2) At the aption of holders in Octaber 2006 and August 2015, $150 million of CNG's 6.875% senior notes due 2026 and $510 millidn of Dominion’s 5.25% senior notes due 2033, respectively, are subject to
redemption at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest.

{3} In November 2004, Dominion issued 6.7 million shares of its common stock to settle stock purchase contracts related to $413 miltion of 805% equity-linked senior notes. In connection with settlement,
the senior notes were remarketed and now carry an annual interest rate of 366%. As a result of settiement of the stock purchase contracts, the 368% senior notes are reported as a component of
Unsecured Senicr and Medium-Term Notes.

{4) Convertible into a combination of cash and shares of Dominian’s common stock at any time after March 31, 2004 when the average closing price of Dominion comman stock reaches $88.32 per share
for a specified period. At the option of holders on December 15, 2006, December 15, 2008, December 15, 2013, or December 15, 2018, these securities are subject to redemption at 100% of the principal
amount plus accrued interest.

(8} Substantially all of Virginia Power's property {$12.0 billion at December 31, 2004} is subject to the lien of the martgage, securing its mortgage bonds.

{6} On December 15, 2008, $225 miflion of the 4.10% Callable and Puttable Enhanced Securities$™ due 2038 are subject ta redemption at par plus accrued interest, unless halders of related options
exercise rights to purchase and remarket the notes.

{7) Certain pollution control equipment at Virginia Power’s generating facilities has been pledged ta support these financings. The variable rate tax-exempt financings are supported by a stand-alone $200
million three-year credit facility that terminates in May 2006.

(8} Aggregate principal amount of CAD$545 million of securities denominated in Canadian doliars and presented in US dollars, based on exchange rates as of year-end.

{3} Represents debt associated with certain special purpose lessor entities that are consolidated in accordance with FIN 46R. The debt is nonrecourse to Dominion and is secured by the entities’ praperty,
plant and equipment, which totaled $963 million and $397 miltian at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

{10)Debt was redeemed in December 2004.

(1) Represents changes in fair value of certain fixed-rate long-term debt associated with fair value hedging relationships.
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Based on stated maturity dates rather than early redemption dates that could be elected by instrument holders, the scheduled principal payments of long-

term debt at December 31, 2004 were as follows:

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereatter Total
imitlions, except percentages)
Secured First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds - — $ 215 - — $ 502 $ 727
Secured Seniar Notes $ 8 § 9 10 $ 1 g n 183 231
Unsecured Senior Notes {including Medium-Term Notes) 1,355 1,778 858 1.809 500 1048 12,542
Unsecured Callable and Puttable Enhanced Securities®™ - — - - - 5 225
Tax-Exempt Financings 5 5 19 157 114 45 KLz
Secured Bank Debt - 688 370 - - — 1,338
Unsecured Junior Subordinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts - - - - - 1,463 1,643
Other - - - & - - 8
Total $1.368 $2.476 $1.472 §1,782 3825 89,810 $16,923
Weighted average coupon 6.02% 4.96% 5.02% 5.91% 5.29% 6.27%

Dominion’s short-term credit facilities and long-term debt agreements
contain customary covenants and default provisions. As of December 31,
2004, there were no events of default under these covenants.

Convertible Securities

As described in Note 3, Dominion entered into an exchange transaction
with respect to $219 million of its outstanding contingent convertible
senior notes in contemplation of the transition method provided by

EITF 04-8. Dominion exchanged the outstanding notes for new notes with a
conversion feature that requires that the principal amount of each note be
repaid in cash. The notes are valued at a conversion rate of 13.5865 shares
of comman, stock per $1,000 principal amount of seniar notes, which repre-
sents a conversion price of $73.60. Amounts payable in excess of the princi-
pal amount will be paid in common stack. The conversion rate is subject to
adjustment upon certain events such as subdivisions, splits, combinations
of common stock or the issuance to all common stock holders of certain
common stock rights, warrants or aptions and certain dividend increases.

The new notes outstanding on December 31, 2004 were included in the
diluted EPS calculation retroactive to the date of issuance using the
method described in EITF 04-8. Under this method, the number of shares
included in the denominator of the diluted EPS calculation are calculated
as the net shares issuable for the reporting period based upon the average
market price for the period. This did not result in an increase to the average
shares outstanding used in the calculation of Dominion’s diluted EPS since
the conversion price of $73.60 included in the notes was greater than the
average market price of the shares.

The senior notes are convertible by holders into a combination of cash
and shares of Dominion’s common stock under any of the following circum-
stances:

{1) the price of Dominion common stack reaches $88.32 per share for a
specified period;
{2} the senior notes are called for redemption by Dominion on or after

December 20, 2008;

{3} the occurrence of specified corporate transactions; or

(4) the credit rating assigned to the senior notes by Moody’s is below Baa3
and by Standard & Poor’s is below BBB- or the ratings are discontinued
for any reason.

Since none of the conditions have been met, the senior notes are not
yet subject to conversion. In 2007 Dominion will also begin to pay contin-
gentinterest if the average trading price as defined in the indenture equals
or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the senior notes. Holders have
the right to require Dominion ta purchase their senior notes for cash at
100% of the principal plus accrued interest in December 2006, 2008, 2013
ar 2018, or if Dominion undergoes certain fundamental changes.

Egquity—Linked Securitizs

In 2002 and 2000, Dominion issued equity-linked debt securities, consisting
of stock purchase contracts and senior notes. The stock purchase contracts
obligate the holders to purchase shares of Dominicn commaon stack from
Dominion by a settlement date, twa years prior to the senior notes’ matu-
rity date. The purchase price is $50 and the number of shares to be pur-
chased will be determined under a formula based upon the average closing
price of Dominion common stock near the settiement date. The senior
notes, or treasury securities in some instarices, are pledged as collateral to
secure the purchase of common stock under the related stock purchase
contracts. The holders may satisfy their obligations under the stock pur-
chase contracts by allowing the senior notes to be remarketed with the
praceeds being paid to Dominian as cansideration for the purchase of
stock. Alternatively, holders may choose to continue holding the senior
notes and use other rescurces as consideration for the purchase of stock
under the stock purchase contracts.

Dominion makes quarterly interest payments on the senior notes and
quarterly payments on the stock purchase contracts at the rates described
below. Dominion has recorded the present value of the stock purchase con-
tract payments as a liability, offset by a charge to common stock in share-
holders’ equity. interest payments on the senior notes are recorded as
interest expense and stack purchase contract payments are charged
against the liability. Accretion of the stock purchase contract liability is
recorded as interest expense. In calculating diluted EPS, Dominion applies
the treasury stock method to the equity-linked debt securities. These secu-
rities did not have a significant effect on diluted EPS for 2003.

Under the terms of the stock purchase contracts, Dominion issued
6.7 million shares of its common stock in November 2004 and will issue
between 4.1 million and 5.5 million shares of its common stock in May
2006. Sufficient shares of Dominion common stock have been reserved for
issuance in connection with the May 2006 stock purchase contracts.
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Selected information about Bominion’s equity-linked debt securities is presented below:

Senior Stocik
Total Notes Purchase Stock

Tota) Long- Annusl Contract Tota} Purchase Maturity
Date of Units Net ferm Interest Annual Equity Seitlement of Senior
Issvance Issved Proceeds Debt Rate Rate Charge Date Notes
{millions, except percentages)
2008 83 $480.1 $412.5 3.66%! —%pl2) $20.7 1104 11/05
2002 6.6 $320.1 $330.0 5.75% 3.80% $36.3 5/86 5/08

{1 Prior to their remarketing in November 2004, the senior notes carried an annual interest rate of 805%.

{2} The stock purchase contracts.carried an annual interest rate of 1.45% prior to their settlement in November 2004.

Junior Suberdinated Notes Payable to Affiliated Trusts

From 1997 through 2002, Dominion established five subsidiary capital
trusts, each as a finance subsidiary of the respective parent company,
which holds 100% of the voting interests. The capital trusts sold trust pre-
ferred securities representing preferred beneficial interests and 97% bene-
ficial ownership in the assets held by the capital trusts. In exchange for the
funds realized from the sale of the trust preferred securities and common
securities that represent the remaining 3% beneficial ownership interest in
the assets held by the capital trusts, Dominion issued various junior subor-
dinated notes. The junior subordinated notes constitute 100% of each

capital trust’s assets. Each trust must redeem its trust preferred securities
when their respective junior subordinated notes are repaid at maturity or if
redeemed prior to maturity.

Under previous accounting guidance, Dominion consofidated the trusts
in the preparation of its Consolidated Financia! Statements. In accordance
with FIN 46R, Dominion ceased to consolidate the trusts as of December
31,2003 and instead reports as tang-term debt on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet the junior subordinated notes issued by Dominion and held by
the trusts.

The following table provides summary information about the trust preferred securities and junior subordinated notes outstanding as of December 31, 2004:

Trust

Preferred Commaon
Date Securities Securities
Established Capita! Trusts Units Rate Amount Amount

{thousands] {millions)

December 1997 Dominion Resources Capital Trust 250 7.83% $ 250 $8
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust 112 12,000 8.4% 380 g
January 2001 Dominion Resources Capital Trust 13 250 84% 250 8
October 2001 Dominion CNG Capital Trust {4 8,060 18% 200 ]
August 2002 Virginia Power Capital Trust [1) 16,000 1.375% 430 12

Junior subordinated notes/debentures held as assets by each capital trust were as follows:
(1) $258 million—Dominion Resources, Inc. 783% Debentures due 12/1/2027.

(2) $309 million—Dominion Resources, Inc. 84% Debentures due 1/30/2041.

{3 $258 millian—Dominion Resources, Inc. 84% Debentures due 1/15/2031.

(4} $206 milion—CNG 78% Debentures due 10/31/2041.

{5) $412 million—Virginia Power 7375% Debentures due 7/30/2042,

Distribution payments on the trust preferred securities are considered
to be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the respective parent com-
pany that issued the debt instruments held by each trust, when all of the
related agreements are taken into consideration. Each guarantee agree-
ment only provides for the guarantee of distribution payments on the rele-
vant trust preferred securities to the extent that the trust has funds legally
and immediately available to make distributions. The trust’s ability to pay
amounts when they are due on the trust preferred securities is solely
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dependent upcn the payment of amounts by Dominion, Virginia Power or
CNG when they are due on the junior subordinated debt instruments. if the
payment an the junior subordinated notes is deferred, the company that
issued them may not make distributions refated to its capital stock, includ-
ing dividends, redemptions, repurchases, liquidation payments or guaran-
tee payments. Also, during the deferral period, it may not make any
payments or redeem or repurchase any debt securities that are equal in
right of payment with, or subordinated to, the junior subordinated notes.




18. Subsidiary Preferred Stock

Oominion is autherized to issue up to 20 million shares of preferred stock.
During 2001, Dominion issued 665,000 shares of Series A mandatorily con-
vertible preferred stock, liquidation preference $1,000 per share, to Pied-
mont Share Trust {Piedmont Trust) in connection with the formation of DFV
and the issuance of senior notes by DFV. Dominion was the beneficial
owner of the Piedmont Trust, which was consolidated in the preparation

of Dominion’s Consolidated Financial Statements, thus eliminating the out-
standing shares of preferred stock. During 2004, as a result of the retire-
ment of DFV's senior notes, the Piedmeont Trust was dissolved and the
outstanding shares of preferred stock were retired.

Virginia Power is authorized to issue up to 10 million shares of preferred
stock, $100 liquidation preference. Upon involuntary liquidation, dissolution
ar winding-up of Virginia Power, each share is entitled to receive $100 per
share plus accrued dividends. Dividends are cumulative.

Holders of the outstanding preferred stock of Virginia Power are not
entitled to voting rights except under certain provisions of the amended
and restated articles of incorporation and refated provisions of Virginia law
restricting corporate action, or upon default in dividends, or in special
statutary proceedings and as required by Virginia law (such as mergers,
cansolidations, sales of assets, dissolution and changes in voting rights
or priorities of preferrad stock).

In 2002, Virginia Power issued 1,250 units consisting of 1,000 shares per
unit of cumulative preferred stock far $125 million. The preferred stock has
a dividend rate of 550% until the end of the initial dividend period on
December 20, 2007. The dividend rate for subsequent periods will be deter-
mined according to periodic auctions. Except during the initial dividend
period, and any non-call period, the preferred stock will be redeemable,
in whole or in part, on any dividend payment date at the option of Virginia
Power. Virginia Power may alsc redeem the preferred stock, in whole but
not in part, if certain changes are made to federal tax law which reduce the
dividends received deduction percentage.

Presented below are the series of Virginia Power preferred stock
not subject to mandatory redemption that were outstanding as of
December 31, 2004:

Issued and
Outstanding Entitled Per Share
Dividend Shares Upon Liquidation
{thousands}
$5.00 107 $112.50
404 13 102.27
420 15 102,50
412 32 103.73
4.80 73 101.00
7.05 300 103.18M
5.98 ’ 60D 103.15@
Flex MMP 12/02, Series A 1,250 100.60
Total 2,580

{1} Through 7/31/05; $102.82 commencing 8/1/05; amounts decline in steps thereafter to $10000.
(2) Through 8/31/05; $102.80 commencing 9/1/05; amounts decline in steps thereafter to $100.00.

19. Shareholders’ Equity

Issuance of Common Stock

During 2004, Dominion issued 14 million shares of common stock and
received proceeds of $839 million. Of this amount, 7 milfion shares and
proceeds of $413 million resulted from the settlement of stock purchase
contracts associated with Dominion's 2000 issuance of equity-linked debt
securities. Net proceeds were used for general corporate purposes, princi-
pally repayment of debt. The remainder of the shares issued and proceeds
received in 2004 occurred through Dominion Direct® (a dividend reinvest-
ment and open enroliment direct stock purchase plan}, employee savings
plans and the exercise of empioyee stock options. In 2005, Dominion
Direct® and the Dominion employee savings plans will purchase Daominion
common stock on the open market with the proceeds received through
these programs, rather than having additional new common shares issued.

Repurchases of Common Stock

In July 1998, Cominion was authorized by its Board of Directors to repur-
chase up to the lesser of 165 million shares, or $650 million of its outstand-
ing common stock. As of December 31, 2004, Dominion had repurchased
approximately 12 million shares for $537 million, with its last repurchase
occurring in 2002. In February 2005, in order to recognize the significant
increase in the size of the company and the market value of its common
stock since the time of the previous authorization, Dominion’s Board of
Directors superseded this authority, with new authority, to repurchase up to
the lesser of 25 miflion shares or $2.0 bitlion of Dominion’s outstanding
common stock.

Forward Equity Transaction

In September 2004, Dominion entered into a forward equity sale agree-
ment (forward agreement) with Merrill Lynch International (ML), as for-
ward purchaser, relating to 10 million shares of Dominion’s common stock.
The forward agreement provides for the sale of two tranches of Dominion
common stock, each with stated maturity dates and settlement prices. In
connection with the forward agreement, ML! borrowed an equal number of
shares of Dominion’s camman stock from stock lenders and, at Dominion's
request, sold the borrowed shares to JPMargan Securities Inc. (JPM) under
a purchase agreement among Dominion, ML and JPM. JPM subsegquently
offered the borrowed shares to the public. Dominion acccunted for the for-
ward agreement as equity at its initial fair value but did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of the borrowed shares.

The use of a forward agreement allows Dominion to avoid equity mar-
ket uncertainty by pricing a stock offering under then existing market con-
ditions, while mitigating share dilution by postponing the issuance of stock
until funds are needed. Except in specified circumstances or events that
would require physical share settlement, Dominion may elect to settle the
forward agreement by means of a physical share, cash or net share settle-
ment and may alsg elect to settle the agreement in whole, or in part, ear-
lier than the stated maturity date at fixed settlement prices. Under either
a physical share or net share settlement, the maximum number of shares
deliverable by Dominion under the terms of the forward agreement was
fimited to the 10 million shares specified in the two tranches. Assuming
gross share settlement of all shares under the forward agreement,
Dominion would have received aggregate proceeds of approximately
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$644 million, based on maturity forward prices of $64.62 per share for the
2 million shares included in the first tranche and $64.34 per share for the
8 million shares included in the secand tranche.

However, Dominion elected to cash settle the first tranche in December
2004 and made a payment to MLI for $5.8 million, representing the differ-
ence between Dominion’s share price and the applicable forward sale price,
multiplied by the 2 million shares. Dominion recorded the ssttiement
payment as a reduction to common stock in its Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Additionally, Dominion elected to cash settie 3 million shares of the second
tranche in February 2005 and made a payment to MLI for $174 million.

The remaining 5 million shares of the second tranche must be settled
by May 17 2005. If gross share settlement were elected for the remainder
of the second tranche at its maturity date, Dominion would receive aggre-
gate proceeds of approximately $322 million and would deliver 5 million of
its common shares. In the event any ar all of the proceeds are not needed,
Dominion has the option to either cash settle or net share settle the
remainder of the second tranche of the forward agreement in whole, or
in part, and may elect settlement earlier than the stated maturity date. If
Dominion elects to cash or net share settle any portion of the remainder
of the second tranche, the payment is based on the difference between
Dominion's share price and the applicable forward sale price for the second
tranche, multiplied by the number of shares being settled.

if, at December 31, 2004, Dominion had elected a cash settlement of
the 8 million shares in the second tranche, Dominion would have owed ML)
$28 million, of which, $18 million would have represented settlement of the
5 million shares remaining in the second tranche after the February 2005
settlement. If, at the time of cash settlement, Dominion’s current share
price were lower than the forward sale price, Dominion would receive a
payment from MLI. For every dollar increase {decrease) in the value of
Daominion’s stock, the value of the settlement of the shares remaining in
the second tranche from MLI's perspective would increase {decrease) by
$5 million.

Dominion expects to use proceeds received from physical share settle-
ments under the remainder of the second tranche of the forward agree-
ment to fund part of the cost of acquiring the Kewaunee ruclear power
plant in Wisconsin for $220 million (which is expected to close in the first
half of 2005) and the acguisition of three electric generating stations from
USGen for $642 million {(which closed on January 1, 2005).

Shargs Reserved for Issuance

At December 31, 2004, Dominion had a total of 47 million shares reserved
and available for issuance for the following; Dominion Direct®, employee
stock awards, employee savings plans, director stock compensation plans,
stock purchase contracts associated with equity-linked debt securities and
a forward equity sale agreement.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive income {Loss)
Presented in the table below is a summary of AGCI by component:

At December 31, 2004 2603
{millions)

Net unrealized losses on derivatives—hedging activities $(1,281)  $(768)
Net unrealized gains on investment securities 148 89
Minimum pension liability adjustment (14) (14)
Foreign currency transtation adjustments 59 64
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ {586)  $(629)

Stock-Based Awards

The following table provides a summary of changes in amounts of
Dominion stock options outstanding as of and for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Generally, the exercise price of Dominion
employee stock options equals the market price of Dominion common stock
on the date of grant.

Weighted- Weighted-
Stack average averags
Cptions  Exercise Price Fair Value

{thousands)
QOutstanding at December 31, 2001 20,932 $52.90
Exercisable at December 31, 2001 7,955 $42.68
Granted—2002 3122 $62.28 $10.91
Exercised, cancelled and forfeited (3,057} $44.54
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002 21,057 $55.49
Exercisable at December 31, 2002 8,586 $47.95
Exercised, cancelled and forfeited {2,513} $44.39
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 18,544 $56.97
Exercisable at December 31, 2003 11,604 $54.44
Exercised, cancelled and farfeited (4,738} $4787
Qutstanding at December 31, 2004 13,808 $60.17
Exercisable at December 31, 2004 18,758 $50.01

There were no options granted in 2003 or 2004. The fair value of the
options granted in 2002 were estimated on the dates of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing mode! with the following weighted-average
assumptians:

2002

Expected dividend vield 4.17%
Expected volatility 2267%
Risk free interest rate 4.38%
Contractual life 10 years
Expected life 8 years




The following table provides certain information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004

Options Outstanding Cptions Exarcisoble

Weighted-
average Weighted- Weightad-
Remaining average avarage
Exercise Shares Contractual Exercise Sheres Enoreiso
Price Qutstending Life Price Exerciseble Price

{thgusands] {years) {thousands)

$ 0-$1999 2 40 $12.10 2 $18.1¢
$20-330.99 24 a1 $24.88 24 $24.8
$31-84099 30 5.0 $39.25 20 $39.25
$41-35099 1,318 . 5.7 $45.83 1,182 $45.50
$51-$50.99 8,029 4.2 $59.91 5,824 $59.50
$61-368 4413 - 8.4 $55.23 3,586 $55.61
Total 13.808 5.0 $50.97 10,763 $80.91

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, Dominion granted approxi-
mately 582,000 shares, 402,000 shares, and 14,000 shares of restricted
stock with weighted-average fair vatues of $83.29, $56.08 and $60.52.

20. Dividend Restrictions

The 1935 Act and related regulations issued by the SEC impose restrictions
on the transfer and receipt of funds by a registered holding company from
its subsidiaries, including a general prohibition against loans or advances
being made by the subsidiaries to benefit the registered holding company.
Under the 1935 Act, registered holding companies and their subsidiaries
may pay dividends cnly from retained earnings, unless the SEC specifically
authorizes payments from other capital accounts. Dominion received divi-
dends from its subsidiaries of $1.2 billion, $1.1 billion and $345 million in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, Dominion’s consolidated subsidiaries had
approximately $9.3 billion in capital accounts other than retained sarnings,
representing capital stock, other paid in capital and AOCI. Dominion
Resources, Inc. had approximately $10.0 billion in capital accounts other
than retained earnings at December 31, 2004. Generally, such amounts are
not available for the payment of dividends by affected subsidiaries, or by
Dominign itself, without spacific autharization by the SEC.

In response to a Dominion request, the SEC granted relief in 2000,
authorizing payment of dividends by CNG from other capital accounts to
Dominion in amounts up to $16 billion, representing CNG's retained earn-
ings prior to Dominion’s acquisition of CNG. The SEC granted further relief
in 2004, autharizing Dominion’s nonutility subsidiaries to pay dividends out
of capital or unearned surplus in situations where such subsidiary has
received excess cash from an asset sale, engaged in a restructuring, or is
returning capital to an associate company. Dominion's ability to pay divi-
dends on its common stock at declared rates was not impacted by the
restrictions discussed above during 2004, 2003 and 2002,

The Virginia State Corparation Commission {Virginia Commission) may
prohibit any public service company, including Virginia Power, from declar-
ing or paying a dividend to an affiliate, if found not to be in the public inter-
est. At December 31, 2004, the Virginia Commission had not restricted the
payment of dividends by Virginia Power.

Certain agreements assaciated with Dominion’s credit facilities contain
restrictions on the ratio of debt to total capitalization. These limitations did
not restrict Dominion’s ability to pay dividends or receive dividends from its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2004,

See Note 17 for a description of potential restrictions on dividend pay-
ments by Dominion and certain subsidiaries in connection with the deferral
of distribution payments on trust preferred securities.

21. Employee Benefit Plans

Dominion and its subsidiaries provide certain benefits to eligible active
employees, retirees and qualifying dependents. Under the terms of its ben-
efit pfans, Dominion and its subsidiaries reserve the right to change, mod-
ify or terminate the plans, From time to time in the past, henefits have
changed, and some of these changes have reduced benefits.

Dominion maintains gualified noncontributory defined benefit pension
plans covering virtually all employees. Retirement benefits are based
primarily on years of service, age and compensation. Dominion’s funding
policy is to generally contribute annually an amount that is in accordance
with the provisions of the Employment Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974. The pension program also provides benefits to certain retired
executives under company-sponscred nonqualified employee benefit plans,
Certain of these nonqualified plans are funded through contributions to
a grantor trust.

Dominion provides retiree health care and life insurance benefits with
annual premiums based on several factors such as age, retirement date
and years of service. In 2004, Dominion adopted a plan to amend its non-
union retiree health care and life insurance plans. In connection with the
amendment, eligible employees under age fifty-five share more of the
costs of benefits with Dominion, and certain retiree medical benefits were
enhanced. Dominion re-measured its sccumulated postretirement benefit
obligation during the third quarter of 2004 and as a result reduced the lia-
bility by $58 million. The impact of re-measurement on the 2004 postretire-
ment net periodic benefits cost was not material. Dominion will amortize
the unrecognized actuarial gains associated with the plan amendment over
the average remaining service period of plan participants in accordance
with SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.
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On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare Act) was signed into law.
The Medicare Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare
(Medicare Part D} as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health
care henefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equiva-
lent to Medicare Part D. Based on an analysis performed by a third party
actuary, Dominion has determined that the prescription drug benefit
offered under its other postretirement benefit plans Is at least actuarially
equivalent to Medicare Part D and therefore expects to receive the federal
subsidy offered under the Medicare Act. Dominion expects to receive sub-
sidies of approximately $4 million annually during the period 2006 through
2009 and expects to receive approximately $26 million during the period
2010 through 2014. Dominion considered the passage of the Medicare Act

a significant event requiring remeasurement of its APBO on December 8,
2003. Dominian will amortize the unrecognized actuarial gains associated
with the benefits of the subsidy over the average remaining service period
of plan participants in accordance with SFAS No. 106. Dominion uses
December 31 as its measurement date for virtually all of its employee ben-
efit plans. Dominion uses a market-related value of pension plan assets o
determine the expected return on pension plan assets, a component of net
periodic pension cost. The market-related value recognizes changes in fair
value on a straight-line basis over a four-year period. Changes in fair value
are measured as the difference between the expected and actual plan
asset returns, including dividends, interest and realized and unrealized
investment gains and osses.

The following tables summarize the changes in Dominion’s pension and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and plan assets and a statement of

the plans’ funded status:

Pension Benefits Gther Postretirement Benefits

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2003 2003
{millions}
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $3.91¢ $2,799 $1,351 $1.119
Service cost 87 86 63 55
Interest cast 180 182 83 79
Benefits paid (343} {158) {68) (60)
Actuarial loss during the year 143 200 11 228
Actuarial gain related to Medicare Part D —_— — —_— {70)
Plan amendments 13 2 {z8) —
Benefit obligation at end of year 3410 3o %,381 1,351
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 3734 3,074 587 443
Actual return on plan assets 453 627 2] 83
Contributions 5 192 85 87
Benefits paid from plan assets (143) (159) (35) (32)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 4,049 3734 697 587
Funded status 838 824 {534) (764)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 1,225 1,244 355 392
Unrecognized prior service cost 28 18 (7 4
Unrecognized net transition [asset) obligation — — 27 82
Prepaid {accrued) benefit cost $1,892 $1,886 $ (298) $ {286)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31:
Prepaid pension cost $1.%47 $1.939 — —
Accrued benefit liability (84) (86) $ (238) $ (288)
Intangible asset 15 9 —_ —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 24 24 — -
Net amount recognized $1.832 $1.8886 $ (238) $ (286)

The accumulated benefit abligation for all defined benefit pension plans
was $3.0 biflion and $2.7 billion at Oecember 31, 2004 and 2003, respec-
tively. Under its funding policies, Dominion evaluates plan funding require-
ments annually, usually in the third quarter after receiving updated plan
information from its actuary. Based on the funded status of each plan and
other factors, the amount of contributions for the current year, if any, is
determined at that time.

Included above are nonqualified and supplemental pension plans that
do not have "plan assets” as defined by generally accepted accaunting
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principles. The total projected benefit obligation for these plans was

$112 million and $99 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The total accumulated benefit obligation for these plans was $37 mitlion
and $30 miliion at Decamber 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Becausa
the accumulated benefit obligation relating to these plans is in excess of
the fair value of plan assets, Dominion recognized an additional minimum
liability of $39 million and $34 million at December 31, 2004 and

2003, respectively.




The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service,
as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Dominion’s overall objective for investing its pension and other postre-
tirement plan assets is to achieve the best possible long-term rates of
return commensurate with prudent tevels of risk. To minimize risk, funds

oth L . .
Pension Pos"a“m:eﬁ: are broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies and
Benefits Benefits investment advisors. The strategic target asset allocation for Dominion’s
{miltions) pension fund is 45% U.S. equity securities; 8% non-U.S. equity securities;
2005 §$ 182 $70 22% debt securities; and 25% other, such as real estate and private equity
Sggs :;g ;g investments. Financial derivatives may be used to obtain or manage market
2008 160 84 exposures and to hedge assets and liabilities. Dominion’s pension plans
2009 165 89 and other postretirement plans asset allocations at December 31, 2004 and
2010:2014 1,108 528 2003 are as follows:
Pension Plans Other Postretirement Plans
Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2004 2003
Fair % of fair % of Fair % of fair % of
Yalue Total Value Total Yalue Total Value Total
{miltions)
Equity securities:
us. $1,781 44 $1,658 a4 $308 a4 $251 43
International 522 13 407 " 14 11 62 1
Debt securities 847 23 859 23 250 35 205 35
Real estate 298 7 264 7 17 2 14 2
Other 521 13 546 15 48 7 55 9
Total 34,049 100 $3,734 100 $657 700 $587 100
The components of the provision for net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
{millions)
Service cost $ 97 $ 86 §77 $ 63 $ 5% §44
Interest cost 180 182 177 83 79 88
Expected return on plan assets (335) (332} (349 {44) {33) {34
Amortization of prior service cost 2 2 1 — 1
Amortization of transition obligation — 12) {4) 1 9 11
Amortization of net loss 55 20 2 21 20 5
Net perindic benefit cost {credit) $ 9 $ (44) $(96) $130 $130 $35
Significant assumptions used in determining the net periodic cost recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income were as follows, on a weighted-
average basis:
Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Discount rate 5.25% 6.75% 7.25% 6.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75% 8.75% 8.50% 7.7%% 7.78% 7.82%
Rate of increase for compensation 4.70% 4.70% 4.60% 4.70% 4.70% 4.60%
Medical cost trend rate!" 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

(1) Decreasing to 5.00% in 2008 and years thereafter,

Significant assumptions used in determining the projected pension benefit and postretirement benefit obligations fecognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets were as follows, on @ weighted-average basis:

Other Postretirement

Pension Benelits Benefits
2004 2603 2008 2003
Discount rate §.00% 6.25% 5.80% 6.25%
Rate of increase for compensation 4.70% 470% 4.76% 470%
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Dominion determines the expected long-term rates of return on plan
assets for pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans by using a
combination of:
® Historical return analysis to determine expected future risk premiums;
e Forward-looking return expectations derived from the yield on long-

term bonds and the price earnings ratios of major stock market indices;
@ Expected inflation and risk-free interest rate assumptions; and
@ The types of investments expected to be held by the plans.

Assisted by an independent actuary, management develops assump-
tions, which are then compared to the forecasts of other independent
investment advisors to ensure reasonableness. An internal committee
selects the final assumptions.

Discount rates are determined from analyses performed by a third party
actuarial firm of AA/Aa rated bonds with cash flows matching the
expected payments to be made under Dominion’s plans.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the
amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have had the foliow-
ing effects:

Cther
Postratiremant
Benefits
Cne One
porcentage percentage
point point
increase decrease
(millions)
Effect on total service and interest cost components
for 2004 $ 22 $ (21)
Effect on postretirement benefit abligation at
December 31, 2004 173 ${131)

In addition, Dominion sponsors defined contribution thrift-type savings
plans. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, Dominion recognized $29 million, $27
million and $26 million, respectively, as contributions to these plans.

Certain regulatory authorities have held that amounts recovered in util-
ity customers' rates for other postretirement benefits, in excess of benefits
actually paid during the year, must be deposited in trust funds dedicated
for the sole purpose of paying such benefits. Accordingly, certain sub-
sidiaries fund postretirement benefit costs through Voluntary Employees’
Beneficiary Associations. The remaining subsidiaries do not prefund
postretirement henefit costs but instead pay claims as presented.

22. Commitments and Contingencies

As the result of issues generated in the ordinary course of business,
Dominion and its subsidiaries are involved in legal, tax and regulatory pro-
ceedings before various courts, regu!até{y commissions and governmental
agencies, some of which involve substantial amounts of money. Manage-
ment believes that the final disposition of these procesdings will not

have a material effect on Dominion’s financial position, liquidity or results
of operations.

Long-Term Purchase Agreements

Uncenditional purchase obligations as defined by accounting standards are
those long-term commitments that are noncancelable or cancelable only
under certain conditions, and that third parties have used to secure financing
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for the facilities that will provide the contracted goods or services. Presented
below is a summary of Dominion’s agreements as of December 31, 2004:

2065 2056 2007 2008 2098 Thereafter Total

(millions)
Purchased electric

capacity!t $509 3498 $472 2543 418 $3403  $5438
Production handling

for gas and oit

production

operations® 6 34 51 38 23 27 258

{1} Commitments represent estimated amounts payable for capacity under power purchase
contracts with qualifying facilities and independent power producers. Capacity payments
under the contracts are generally based on fixed doliar amounts per month, subject to
escalation using broad-based economic indices and payments for energy are based on the
applicable pricing times the units of electrical energy delivered. At December 31, 2004, the
present value of the total commitment for capacity payments is $34 biltion. Capacity
payments totaled $570 million, $611 million and $661 million, and energy payments totaled
$293 miltion, $289 million and $213 million for 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

{2) Payments under this contract, totaled $22 million and $10 million in 2004 and 2003,
respectively. No payments were made under this contract in 2002,

In 2004, Dominion paid $153 million in cash and assumed $213 million
of debt in connection with the termination of three long-term power pur-
chase agreements and the acquisition of the related generating facilities
used by non-utility generators to provide slectricity to Dominion. In connec-
tion with the termination of the agreements, Dominion recorded after-tax
charges totaling $43 million. These charges include the reversal of a $167
million pre-tax contract liability associated with one of the terminated
agreements. The contract liability represented the remaining balance of
the fair value recorded in October 2003 upon adoption of SFAS No. 133
implementation Issue No. C20, Interpretation of the Meaning of “Not
Clearly and Clasely Related” in Paragraph 10 (b) regarding Contracts with a
Price Adjustment Feature, (Issue C20). The power purchase agreement,
which contained pricing terms linked to a broad market index, had to be
recorded at fair value upon adoption of Issue C20; however, since it quali-
fied as a normal purchase and sale contract, no further changes in its fair
value were recagnized. [n 2003, Dominion paid $154 million for the pur-
chase of a generating facility and the termination of two long-term power
purchase agreements with non-utility generators. Dominion recorded
after-tax charges totaling $65 million for the termination of the long-term
power purchase agreements. Dominion allocates the purchase price to the
assets and liahilities acquired and the terminated agreements based on
their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition.

In the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion recorded a $112 million after-tax
charge related to its interest in a long-term power talling cantract with a
551 megawatt combined cycle facility focated in Batesville, Mississippi.
Dominion decided to divest its interest in the long-term power tolling con-
tract in connection with its reconsideration of the scape of certain activi-
ties of the Dominion Energy Clearinghouse, including those conducted on
behalf of Dominion’s business segments, and its ongoing strategy to focus
on business activities within the MAIN to Maine region. The charge is
based an Dominion’s evaluation of preliminary bids received from third par-
ties, reflecting the expected amount of consideration that would be
required by a third party for its assumption of Dominion’s interest in the
contract in the first quarter of 2005.




Lease Commitmenis

Dominion leases various facilities, vehicles and equipment under both
operating and capital leases. Payments under certain leases are escalated
based on an index such as the consumer price index. Future minimum lease
payments under noncancelable operating and capital leases that have ini-
tial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2004
are as follows {in miltions):

2005 2005 2007 2008 2009 Thereaiter Total
$133 3017 3708 $97 $87 $355 $807

Rental expense totaled $123 million, $105 million and $98 million for
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, the majority of which is reflected in
other operations and maintenance expense.

Dominion has an agreement with a voting interest entity {lessor] to
lease the Fairless power station in Pennsylvania (Fairless), which began
commercial operations in June 2004. During construction, Dominion acted
as the construction agent for the lessar, controlled the design and construc-
tion of the facility and has since been reimbursed for all project costs
advanced to the lessor. Project costs totaled $898 million at December 31,
2004. Dominion will make annual lease payments of $53 million, which are
reflected in the lease commitments table above. The lease expires in 2013
and at that time, Dominion may renew the lease at negotiated amounts
based on ariginal project costs and current market conditions, subject to
lessor approval; purchase Fairless at its original construction cost; or sell
Fairless, on behalf of the lessor, to an independent third party. If Fairless is
sold and the proceeds from the sale are less than its original construction
cost, Dominion would be required to make a payment to the lessor in an
amount up to 70.75% of original project costs adjusted for certain other
costs as specified in the lease. The lease agreement does not contain any
provisions that involve credit rating or stock price trigger events.

Environmental Matters

Dominion is subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing number of
federal, state and local laws and regulations designed to protect human
health and the environment. These laws and regulations can result in
increased capital, operating and other costs as a result of compliance,
remediation, containment and monitoring obligations.

Historically, Dominion recovered such costs arising from regulated elec-
tric operations through utility rates. However, to the extent environmental
costs are incurred in connection with operations regulated by the Virginia
State Corporation Commission during the period ending December 31, 2010,
in excess of the level currently included in Virginia jurisdictional rates,
Dominion’s results of operations will decrease. After that date, Dominion
may seek recovery through rates of only those environmental costs related
to transmission and distribution operations.

Superfund Sites—From time to time, Dominion may be identified as a
potentially responsible party to a Superfund site. The Environmental Pro-
tection Agency (EPA) {or a state) can either (a) allow such a party to con-
duct and pay for a remedial investigation, feasibility study and remedial
action or (b} conduct the remedial investigation and action and then seek
reimbursement from the parties. Each party can be held jointly, severally
and strictly liable for all costs. These parties can also bring contribution
actions against each other and seek reimbursement from their insurance
companies. As a result, Dominion may be responsible for the costs of

remedial investigation and actions under the Superfund Act or other

laws or regulations regarding the remediation of waste. Dominion

does not believe that any currently identified sites will result in significant
liabilities.

In 1987, the EPA identified Dominion and a number of other entities as
Patentially Responsible Parties (PRPs) at two Superfund sites located in
Kentucky and Pennsylvania. in 2003, the EPA issued its Certificate of Com-
pletion of remediation for the Kentucky site. Future costs for the Kentucky
site will be limited to minor operations and maintenance expenditures.
Remediation design is ongaing for the Pennsylvania site, and total remedi-
ation costs are expected to be in the range of $13 million to $25 million.
Based on allocation formulas and the volume of waste shipped to the site,
Dominion has accrued a reserve of $2 million to meet its obligations at
these two sites. Based on a financial assessment of the PRPs involved at
these sites, Dominion has determined that it is probable that the PRPs will
fully pay their share of the costs. Dominion generally seeks to recover its
costs associated with environmental remediation from third party insurers.
At December 31, 2004, any pending or possible claims were not recognized
as an asset or offset against such abligations.

Other EPA Matters—In relation to a Notice of Violation received by Vir-
ginia Power in 2000 from the EPA, Dominion entered into a Consent Decree
settlement in 2003 and committed to improve air quality. Dominion has
already incurred certain capital expenditures for environmental improve-
ments at its coal-fired stations in Virginia and West Virginia. Dominion con-
tinues to commit to additional measures in its current financial plans and
capital budget to satisfy the requiraments of the Consent Decree.

Other—Before being acquired by Dominign in 2001, Louis Dreyfus Nat-
ural Gas Corp. (Louis Dreyfus) was one of numerous defendants in a law-
suit consolidated and pending in the 93rd Judicial District Court in Hidalgo
County, Texas. The lawsuit alleges that gas wells and related pipeline facil-
ities operated by Louis Dreyfus and facilities operated by other defendants
caused an underground hydrocarbon plume in McAllen, Texas. The plain-
tiffs claim that they have suffered damages, including property damage
and lost profits, as a result of the alleged plume. Although the results of lit-
igation are inherently unpredictable, Dominion does not expect the ulti-
mate outcome of the case to have a material adverse impact on its results
of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Dominion has determined that it is associated with 20 former manufac-
tured gas plant sites. Studies conducted by other utilities at their former
manufactured gas plants have indicated that their sites contain coal tar
and other potentially harmful materials. None of the 20 former sites with
which Dominion is associated is under investigation by any state or federal
environmental agency, and ng investigation or action is currently antici-
pated. At this time, it is not known to what degree these sites may contain
environmental contamination. Dominion is not able to estimate the cost, if
any, that may be required for the possible remediation of these sites.

Nuclear Operations

Nuclear Decommissioning—Minimum Financial Assurance—The NRC
requires nuclear power plant owners to annually update minimum financial
assurance amounts for the future decommissioning of its nuclear facilities.
Dominion’s 2004 NRC minimum financial assurance amaunt, aggregated for
the nuclear units, was $2.6 billion and has been satisfied by a combination
of guarantees and the funds being collected and deposited in the trusts.
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Nuclear Insurance—The Price-Anderson Act provides the public up to
$108 hillion of protection per nuclear incident via obligations required of
owners of nuclear power plants. The Price-Anderson Act Amendment of
1988 allows for an inflationary provision adjustment every five years.
Dominion has purchased $300 million of coverage from the commercial
insurance pools with the remainder provided through @ mandatery industry
risk-sharing program. The NRC exempted Millstone’s Unit 1 on March 30,
2004 from the Secondary Financial Retrospective Assessment, reducing
Dominion’s licensed reactors to six. In the event of a nuclear incident at any
licensed nuclear reactor in the United States, Dominion could be assessed
up to $100.6 million for each of its six licensed reactors not to exceed $10
million per year per reactor. There is no limit to the number of incidents for
which this retrospective premium can be assessed.

The Price-Anderson Act was first enacted in 1957 and has been
rengwed three times—in 1967, 1975 and 1998. The Price-Anderson Act
expired on August 31, 2002, but operating nuclear reactors continue to be
covered by the law. Congress is currently holding hearings to reauthorize
the legislatjon.

Dominion’s current level of property insurance coverage ($2.55 billion
for North Anna, $2.55 billion for Surry, and $2.75 billion for Millstone)
exceeds the NRC's minimum requirement for nuclear power plant licensees
of $1.06 billion per reactor site and includes coverage for premature decom-
missioning and functional total loss. The NRC requires that the proceeds
from this insurance be used first to return the reactor to and maintainitin a
safe and stable condition and second to decontaminate the reactor and
station site in accordance with a plan approved by the NRC. Dominion’s
nuclear property insurance is provided by the Nuctear Electric Insurance
Limited (NEIL), a mutual insurance company, and is subject to retrospective
premium assessments in any palicy year in which losses exceed the funds
available to the insurance company. The maximum assessment for the cur-
rent policy period is $83 million. Based on the severity of the incident, the
board of directors of Dominion’s nuclear insurer has the discretion to lower
or eliminate the maximum retrospective premium assessment. Dominion
has the financial responsibitity for any losses that exceed the limits or for
which insurance proceeds are not available because they must first be
used for stabilization and decontamination.

Dominion purchases insurance from NEIL to cover the cost of replace-
ment power during the prolonged outage of a nuclear unit due to direct
physical damage of the unit. Under this program, Daminion is subject to a
retrospective premium assessment for any policy year in which losses
exceed funds available to NEIL. The current policy period’s maximum
assessment is $30 million.

Old Dominion Electric Cooperative, a part owner of North Anna Power
Station, and Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company and
Central Vermont Public Service Corporation, part owners of Millstone’s Unit
3, are responsible for their share of the nuclear decommissioning abliga-
tion and insurance premiums on applicable units, including any retrospec-
tive premium assessments and any losses not covered by insurance.

Spent Nuclear Fuel—Under provisions of the Nuclear Waste Policy Act
of 1982, Dominion has entered into contracts with the Department of
Energy (DOE) for the disposal of spent nuciear fuel. The DOE failed to begin
accepting the spent fuel on January 31, 1998, the date provided by the
Nuclear Waste Palicy Act and by Dominion’s contracts with the DOE. In
January 2004, Dominion and certain of its direct and indirect subsidiaries
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filed a lawsuit in the United States Court of Federal Claims against the
DOE in connection with its failure to commence accepting spent nuclear
fuel. Dominion will continue to safely manage its spent fuel until it is
accepted by the DOE.

Litigation

Virginia Power and Dominion Telecom were defendants in a class action
lawsuit whereby the plaintiffs claimed that Virginia Power and Dominion
Telecom strung fiber-optic cable across their land, along an electric trans-
mission corridor without paying compensation. The plaintiffs sought dam-
ages for trespass and "unjust enrichment,” as well as punitive damages
from the defendants. In April 2004, the parties entered into a settlement
agreement that was subseguently approved by the court in July 2004.
Under the terms of the settlement, a fund of $20 million has been estab-
lished by Virginia Power to pay claims of current and former landowners as
well as fees of lawyers for the class. Costs of notice to the class and
administration of claims will be borne separately by Virginia Power. The
settlement agreement resulted in an after-tax charge of $7 million in the
first quarter of 2004

Enron Banlruptey

During 2002, Dominion terminated &ll outstanding and open positions with
Enron. Dominion submitted a claim in the Enron bankruptcy case for the
value of such contracts, measured at the effective dates of contract termi-
nation. During the first quarter of 2004, the bankruptcy court approved a
settlement of Dominion’s claim in the praceeding, resulting in a $2 million
after-tax benefit.

Guarantees, Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit

Guarantees
As of December 31, 2004, Dominion and its subsidiaries had issued

$78 billion of guarantees, including:

e $36 billion to support commodity transactions of subsidiaries;

o $1.7 billion for subsidiary debt reflected on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets;

» $898 million related to a subsidiary leasing obligation for a new power
generation project;

* $656 million associated with a subsidiary’s commitment to purchase
three electric power generating facilities from USGen. The guarantee
expired when Dominion completed the acquisition on January 1, 2005;

e $509 million related to subsidiaries’ nuclear decommissioning
obligations;

¢ 3408 million for guarantees supporting other agreements of
subsidiaries; and

o 331 million for guarantees supporting third parties and equity
method investees.

The commodity transaction guarantees are put in place to allow
Dominion’s subsidiaries the flexibility to conduct business with counterpar-
ties without having to post substantial cash collateral. In order for
Dominion to experience a liability for the $36 billion capacity of the guar-
antees, Dominion would have to fully utilize credit with every counterparty
it has issued a guarantee, which management believes would be highly
unlikely to occur. As of December 31, 2004, Dominion had entered into
transactions with counterparties, whereby the net exposure under the
guarantees related to these transactions was $678 million, which is




included in the $795 million net amount due to these counterparties
reported on Dominion's Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2004,
There are no significant liabilities reflected on Dominion’s Consolidated

Balance Sheets far its subsidiaries’ power generation project leasing oblig-

ation, nuclear obligations or other miscellaneous obligations.

While the majority of these guarantegs do not have a termination date,
Dominion may choose at any time to limit the applicability of such guaran-
tees to future transactions.

As of December 31, 2004, substantially all of the officers” borrowings

under executive stock loan programs, which were guaranteed by Dominion,

have been repaid. Because of restrictions on corporate loans or guarantees
for executives under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Dominion has ceased
its program of third party loans to executives for the purpose of acquiring
company stock.
Surety Bonds and Letters of Credit

Dominion had also purchased $77 million of surety bonds and autho-
rized the issuance of standby letters of credit by financial institutions of
$1.7 billion. Dominion enters into these arrangements to facilitate commer-
cial transactions by its subsidiaries with third parties.

tndemnifications

As part of commercial contract negotiations in the normal course of busi-
ness, Dominion may sometimes agree to make payments to compensate or
indemnify other parties for possible future unfavorable financial conse-
quences resulting from specified events. The specified events may involve
an adverse judgment in a lawsuit or the imposition of additional taxes due
to a change in tax law or interpretation of the tax law. Dominien is unable
to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of future pay-
ments under these contracts because events that would obligate Dominion
have not yet occurred or, if any such event has occurred, Dominion has not
been notified of its occurrence. However, at December 31, 2004, manage-
ment believes future payments, if any, that could ultimately become
payable under these contract provisions, would not have a material impact
on its results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Stranded Costs

In 1999, Virginia enacted the Virginia Restructuring Act that established a

detailed plan to restructure Virginia's electric utility industry. Under the Vir-

ginia Restructuring Act, the generation portion of Dominion’s Virginia juris-
dictional operations is no longer subject to cost-based regulation. The
legislation’s deregulation of generation was an event that required the dis-
continuance of SFAS No. 71 for the Virginia jurisdictional portion of

Dominion's generation operations in 1999. In April 2004, the Gavernor of

Virginia signed into law amendments to the Virginia Restructuring Act and

the Virginia fuel factor statute. The amendments extend capped base rates

by three and one-half years, to December 31, 2010, unless modified or ter-
minated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act. In addition to extend-
ing capped rates, the amendments:

@ Laock in Dominion’s fuel factor provisions until the earlier of July 1, 2007
or the termination of capped rates;

o Provide for a one-time adjustment of Dominion's fuel factor, effective
July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2010 {unless capped rates are termi-
nated earlier under the Virginia Restructuring Act), with no adjustment
for previously incurred over-recovery or under-recovery, thus eliminat-
ing deferred fuel accounting for the Virginia jurisdiction; and

° End wires charges on the earlier of July 1, 2007 or the termination

of capped rates, consistent with the Virginia Restructuring Act’s

original timetable.

Wires charges, also known as competitive transition charges, are
permitted to be collected by utilities until July 1, 2007, under the Virginia
Restructuring Act. Dominion has agreed to forego the collection of wires
charges in 2005, and as such Virginia customers will not pay a fee if they
switch from Dominion to a different service provider.

Dominion believes capped electric retail rates and, where applicable,
wires charges provided under the Virginia Restructuring Act provide an
opportunity to recover a portion of its potentially stranded costs, depend-
ing on market prices of electricity and other factors. Stranded costs are
those generation-related costs incurred or commitments made by utilities
under cost-hased regulation that may not be reasonably expected to be
recovered in a competitive market.

Even in the capped rate environment, Dominion remains exposed to
numerous risks, including, among others, exposure to potentially stranded
costs, future enviranmental compliance requirements, changes in tax {aws,
inflation and increased capital costs. At December 31, 2004, Dominion’s
expasure to potentially stranded costs included: long-term power purchase
contracts that could ultimately be determined to be above market; generat-
ing plants that could possibly become uneconomic in a deregulated envi-
ronment; and unfunded obligations for nuclear plant decommissioning and
postretirement benefits not yet recognized in the financial statements.

23. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Substantially all of Dominion’s financial instruments are recorded at fair
value, with the exception of the instruments described below that are
reported at historical cost. Fair values have been determined using avail-
able market information and valuation methodologies considered appropri-
ate by management. The financial instruments’ carrying amounts and fair
values as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

2004 2003
Estimated Estimated
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value® Amaount Value
{millions)
Long-term debt 315,046 396,493 $15588  $16,514
Junior subordinated notes
payable to affiliated trusts 1,429 1,593 1,440 1,608

{1} Fair value is estimated using market prices, where available, and interest rates currently
available for issuance of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities. The carrying
amount of debt issues with short-term maturities and variable rates refinanced at current
market rates is a reasonable estimate of their fair value,
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24. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Dominion if counterparties fail to
perform their contractual obligations. In order to minimize overall credit
risk, Dominion maintains credit policies, including the evaluation of coun-
terparty financial condition, collateral requirements and the use of stan-
dardized agreements that facilitate the netting of cash flows associated
with a single counterparty. In addition, counterparties may meke available
collateral, including letters of credit or cash held as margin deposits, as a
result of exceeding agreed-upon credit limits, or may be required to prepay
the transaction. Amounts reported as margin deposit liabilities represent
funds held by Dominion that resulted from various trading counterparties
exceeding agreed-upon credit limits established by Dominion. Amaunts
reported as margin deposit assets represent funds held on deposit by vari-
ous trading counterparties that resulted from Dominion exceeding agreed-
upon credit limits established by the counterparties. As of December 37,
2004 and 2003, Dominion had margin deposit assets (reported in other
current assets) of $179 million and $157 million, respectively, and margin
deposit liabilities (reported in other current liabilities) of $28 million and
$12 million, respectively,

Dominion maintains a pravision for credit losses based on factors sur-
rounding the credit risk of its customers, historical trends and other infar-
mation. Management believes, based an Dominion's credit policies and its
December 31, 2004 provision for credit losses, that it is unlikely that a
material adverse effect on its financial position, results of cperations or
cash flows would occur as a result of counterparty nonperformance.

As a diversified energy company, Dominion transacts with major com-
panies in the energy industry and with commercial and residential energy
consumers. These transactions principally occur in the Northeast, Midwest
and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States; however, management dogs
not believe that this geographic concentration contributes significantly to
Dominion’s overall exposure to credit risk. In addition, as a result of its
large and diverse customer base, Dominion is not exposad 10 a significant
concentration of credit risk for receivables arising from utility electric and
gas operations, including transmission services and retail energy sales.

Dominion’s expasure to credit risk is concentrated primarily within its

sales of gas and oil production and energy trading, marketing and commod-

ity hedging activities, as Dominion transacts with a smaller, less diverse
group of counterparties and transactions may involve large notional vol-
umes and potentially volatile commodity prices. Energy trading, marketing
and hedging activities include trading of energy-refated commadities, mar-
keting of merchant generation output, structured transactions and the use
of financial contracts for enterprise-wide hedging purposes. At December
31,2004, gross credit exposure related to these transactions totaled $1.27
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billion, reflecting the unrealized gains for contracts carried at fair value
plus any outstanding receivables (net of payables, where netting agres-
ments exist), prior 1o the application of collateral. After the application of
collateral, Dominion’s credit exposure is reduced to $1.25 billion. Of this
amount, investment grade counterparties represent 85% and no single
counterparty exceeded 6%.

25. Equity Methad Investments and Affiliated Transactions

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Dominion’s equity method investments
totaled $387 million and $437 million, respectively, and equity earnings on
these invastments totaled $34 millian in 2004, $25 million in 2003 and $11
million in 2002. Dominion received dividends from these investments of
$37 million, $28 million and $36 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. Dominion’s equity method investments are reported on the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheets in other investments, except for the international
investments discussed below, which are classified as part of assets held
for sale in other current assets. Equity earnings on these investments are
reported on the Consolidated Statements of Income in other income {loss).
See Note 26 for discussion of DCI's equity method investments.

International lnvestments

CNGI was engaged in energy-related activities outside of the United
States, primarily through equity investments in Australia and Argentina.
After completing the CNG acguisition, Dominion's management committed
to a plan to dispose of the entire CNG! operation consistent with its strat-
egy to focus on its core business.

During 2003, Dominion recognized impairment losses totaling $84 mil-
lion ($69 million after-tax) related primarily to investments in a pipeline
business located in Australia and a small generation facility in Kauai,
Hawaii that was sold in December 2003 for cash proceeds of $42 million.
These impairment losses represented adjustments to the assets’ carrying
amaunts to reflect Dominion’s then current evaluation of fair market value
less estimated casts 1o sell, which were derived from a combination of
actual 2003 transactions, management estimates, and other fair market
value indicators.

In 2004, Dominion received cash praceeds of $52 million and recog-
nized a gain in other income of $9 million from the sale of a portion of the
Australian pipeline business in which CNG! held an investment. Dominion
also recognized an $18 million benefit from an adjustment to the carrying
amount of this investment to reflect its then current estimate of fair value,
less estimated costs to sell.

At December 31, 2004, Dominion’s remaining CNGI investment is
accounted for at fair value. Management expects this $4 million invest-
ment to be sold by the end of 2008.




26. Dominion Capital, Inc.

As of December 31, 2004, Dominion has substantially exited the core DCI
financial services, commercial lending and residential mortgage lending
businesses.

Dominion is required by the SEC under the 1935 Act to divest of
all remaining OCl investment holdings by January 2006. Dominion’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet reflects the following DCI assets as of
December 31, 2004:

Amount
{mitiions)
Current assets $ 26
Available for sale securities 333
Other long-term investments 102
Property, plant and equipment, net 15
Deferred charges and ather assets 121
Total $533

Securitizations of Financial Assets

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, DCI held $335 million and $413 million,
respectively, of retained interests from the securitization of financial
assets, which are classified as available-for-sale securities. The retained
interests resulted from prior year securitizations of commercial loans
receivable in collateralized loan obligation {CLO}, co!lateralized debt obliga-
tion (CDO) and collateralized mortgage obligation {CMO) transactions.

in connection with Dominion's ongoing efforts to divest its remaining
financial services investments, Dominion executed certain agreements in
the fourth quarter of 2003 that resulted in the sale of commercial finance
receivables, a note receivable, an undivided interest in a lease and equity
investments to a new CDO structure. In exchange for the sale of these
assets with an aggregate carrying amount of $123 million, Dominion
received $113 million cash and a $7 million 3% subordinated secured note
in the new CDOQ structure and recorded an impairment charge of $3 million.
The equity interests in the new CDO structure, a voting interest entity, are
held by an entity that is not affiliated with Dominion.

Simultaneous with the above transaction, the new CDO structure
acquired all of the loans held by two special purpose trusts that were
established in 2001 and 2000 to facilitate DCI's securitization of certain
loan receivables. DCI's original transfers of the loans to the CLO trusts qual-
ified as sales under SFAS No. 125, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. Only after receiving
consents from non-affiliated third parties, the CLO trusts’ governing agree-
ments were amended to permit the sale of their financial assets into the
new CDO structure in 2003. In consideration for the sale of loans to the
new CDO structure, the trusts received $243 million of subordinated
secured 3% notes in the new CDO structure and $119 million in cash, which
was used by the CLO trusts to redeem all of their outstanding senior debt
securities. As of December 31, 2003, Dominion still held residual interests
in the CLQ trusts, the value of which depended solely on the subordinated
3% notes issued by the new CDO. In connection with a review of the
remaining assets in the CLO trusts, DCl recorded impairments totaling $23
million in 2003. Dominion received its distribution of the new CDO nates in
the first quarter of 2004 upon liquidation of the trusts.

There were no mortgage securitizations in 2003 or 2004. Activity for the
subordinated notes related to the new CDO structure, retained interests
from securitizations of CMQ's and the CLO and CDO retained interests is
summarized as follows:

Retained

Interests—

CHiD CLO/CO0

{millions)

Balance at January 1, 2003 $189 $ 281
Amortization (2) -
Cash received (10 {1
Retained securitization - 7
Fair value adjustment {36) (15
Balance at December 31, 2003 141 272
Liquidation of retained interest in CLO trusts - {231)
Distributions of new CDQ notes to Dominion - 233
Intergst income - 8
Amortization [§)] —
Cash received {27) {4)
Fair value adjustment (88) (13)
Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 67 $ 263

Key Economic Assumptions and Sensitivity Analyses

Retained interests in CLOs and CDOs are subject to credit loss and interest
rate risk. Retained interests in CMOs are subject to credit loss, prepayment
and interest rate risk. Given the declining residual balances and the lower
weighted-average lives due to the passage of time, adverse changes of up
to 20% in assumed prepayment speeds, credit losses and interest rates are
estimated in each case to have less than a $10 million pre-tax impact on
future results of operations.

Impairment Losses
The table below presents a summary of asset impairment losses associ-
ated with DCl operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
{miflions)

Retained interests from CMO securitizationst® 345 $36 $11
Retained interests from CLO/CDO securitizations!? 13 15 -
2003 COO transaction - 23 -
Venture capital and other equity investments? 25 16 -
Deferred tax assets® - 26 —
Goodwill impairmentt4 - 18 13
Total 885 $134 $24

(1} As a result of economic conditions and historically iow interest rates and the resulting impact
on credit fosses and prepayment speeds, Dominion recorded impairments of its retained
interests from CM0, CDO and CLO securitizations in 2004, 2003 and 2002. Dominion updated
its credit loss and prepayment assumptians to reflect its recent experience.

{2) Other impairments were recorded primarily due to asset dispositions.

{3) See Note 7 for discussion of deferred income taxes.

{4) See Note 13 for discussion of goodwill impairments.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

27. Operating Segments

Dominion is organized primarily on the basis of products and services sold
in the United States. Dominion manages its operations through the follow-
ing segments:

Dominion Generation includes the generation operations of Dominion's
electric utility and merchant fleet as well as coal and emissions trading
and marketing activities.

Dominion Energy includes Dominion’s electric transmission, natural gas
transmission pipeline and storage businesses, an LNG facility, certain nat-
uraf gas production, as well as Clearinghouse (energy trading and market-
ing and aggregation of gas supply).

Dominion Delivery includes Dominion’s electric and gas distribution sys-
tems and customer service operations, as well as nonregulated retail
energy marketing operations.

Dominion Exploration & Production (E&P) includes Dominion’s gas and
oil exploration, development and production operations. Operations are
located in several major producing basins in the lower 48 states, including
the outer continental shelf and deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexico, and
Western Canada.

Corporate and Other includes the operations of Dominion’s corporate,
service company and other operations {including unallocated debt), DC! and
the net impact of Dominion’s discontinued telecommunications operations
that were sold in May 2004. In addition, the contribution to net income by
Dominion’s primary operating segments is determined based upan a mea-
sure of profit that executive management believes represents the seg-
ments’ core earnings. As a result, certain specific items attributable to
those segments are not included in profit measures evaluated by executive
management in assessing the segment’s performance or allocating
resources amang the segments. These specific items are reported in the
Corporate and Other segment and in 2004 include:
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e Losses related to the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain oil
hedges and subsequent changes in the fair value of those hedges dur-
ing the third quarter; and

s Charges reflecting Dominion’s valuation of its interest in a long-term
power tolling contract and the termination of certain long-term power
purchase agreements.

Specific items in 2003 include:
s (Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles;
& |ncremental restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel;
@ (harges for the termination of certain long-term power purchase
agreements and restructuring of certain electric sales contracts; and
e Severance costs for workforce reductions.

In 2002, there were no specific items attributable to Dominion's primary
operating segments reported in the Corporate and Other segment.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, Dominion performed an evaluation of
its Dominion Energy Clearinghouse trading and marketing operations
{Clearinghause), which resulted in a decision to exit certain energy trading
activities and instead focus on the optimization of company assets. Begin-
ning in 2005, all revenues and expenses from the Clearinghouse’s optimiza-
tion of company assets will be reported as part of the results of the
business segments operating the related assets, in order to better reflect
the perfermance of the underlying assets. As a result of these changes,
2004 and 2003 results now reflect revenues and expenses associated with
Clearinghouse coal and emissions trading and marketing activities in the
Dominion Generation segment.

Intersegment sales and transfers are based on underlying contractua!
arrangements and agreements and may result in intersegment profit or loss.




The following table presents segment information pertaining to Dominion’s operations:

Dominion Dominien Domini Domini Corporate Adjustments & Consolidated
Generation Energy Delivery E&P and Qther Eliminations Total
{millions}
2004
Total revenue from external customers $5,144 $2,047 $3,757 $2,272 $ 68 $ 683 $13,972
Intersegment revenue 574 384 71 157 563 (1,701} —_
Total operating revenue ’ 5,718 2,431 3,834 2,429 578 (1,018) 13,972
Interest income 52 14 8 2 269 (284) 709
Interest and related charges 284 62 151 94 622 (244) 939
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 282 116 316 558 35 {2) 1,305
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 1 12 1 {1} i1 - kL
Income tax expense {benefit) 329 119 286 314 (310) — 7¢0
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — — {15} — (15}
Net income {loss) 525 180 486 583 (527) — 1,248
Investment in equity method investees 162 94 5 49 86 — 387
Capital expenditures 623 354 441 1,311 o2 — 2,739
Total assets (billions at December 31) 14.5 12 8.2 1.3 143 (11.1) 45.4
2003
Total revenue from external customers $4,482 $1,863 $3,287 $1.841 $ 149 $ 456 $12.078
Intersegment revenue 293 433 61 150 531 {1,588) —_
Total operating revenue 4775 2,356 3,348 1,991 740 {1,132) 12,078
Interest income 52 8 14 1 mn {237} 109
Interest and related charges 239 64 i 82 656 {237) 975
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 229 104 302 532 43 — 1,216
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 13 12 — 6 {6} — 25
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — — — — (642) — (642)
Income tax expense {benefit) 312 223 236 220 (394) — 537
Net income {loss) 512 345 453 415 {1,408) — 318
Investment in equity method investees 166 85 5 51 130 — 437
Capital expenditures 1,303 319 485 1,311 20 — 3438
Total assets (billions at December 31} 15.0 73 3.0 8.2 143 (11.3) 435
2002
Total revenue from external customers $4.410 $1,008 $2,707 $1.628 $ 250 $ 214 $10,218
Intersegment revenue 51 386 23 90 568 {1,118} —
Total operating revenue 4,461 1,394 2,730 1,718 818 (904) 10,218
Interest income 28 2 10 — 308 (248} 100
Interest and related charges 234 56 17 88 644 (248) 945
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 296 98 302 502 80 — 1,258
Equity in earnings of equity method investees 19 10 — 5 (23) — 1
Income tax expense (benefit) 330 172 201 165 (187) — £81
Net incame (loss) $ 561 $ 268 $ 422 $ 380 $ (269) — § 1,362

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, approximately 2% and 3%, respectively of Dominion’s total long-lived assets were associated with international
operations. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, approximately 2%, 2% and 1%, respectively, of operating revenues were associated with
international operations.
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28. Gas and 0il Producing Activities (unaudited)

Caritalized Costs

The aggregate amounts of costs capitalized for gas and oil producing activ-
ities, and related aggregate amounts of accumulated depreciation, deple-
tion and amortization, at December 31, 2004 and 2003 follow:

2004 2003
{millions)
Capitalized costs of:
Proved properties $8,243  $7.561
Unproved properties 1,623 1,721
9,359 9,282
Accumulated depreciation of:
Proved properties 1,629 1,476
Unproved properties 109 126
2,030 1,602
Net capitalized costs $7.830 7,680

Total Costs Incurred
The following costs were incurred in gas and oil producing activities during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada
{milligns)
Property acquisition costs:
Proved properties $ 2 § 2 — $ 13 $ 181 — § 243 § 243 —
Unproved properties 976 102 $ 14 133 125 $8 177 170 $7
135 122 14 314 306 8 420 413 7
Exploration costs 213 163 14 il 266 25 267 260 7
Development costs!” 215 243 74 667 604 63 760 679 81
Total $1,284 $1,182 $12 $1,272 $1,176 $96 $1,447 $1,352 $95

{1} Development costs incurred for proved undeveloped reserves were $172 milfion, $182 million and $223 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Resulis of Operations

Dominion cautions that the following standardized disclosures required by the FASB do not represent the results of operations based on its historical
financial statements. {n addition to requiring different determinations of revenue and costs, the disclosures exclude the impact of interest expense and
corporate overhead.

2004 2003 2002
United United United
Total Staies Ceneda Total States Canada Total States Canada

{millions)
Revenue (net of royalties) from:

Sales to nonaffiliated companies $1,526 $1,257 $223 $1,736 $1,652 $184 $1,3%6 $1,257 $139

Transfers to other operations 195 185 - 185 185 — 97 97 —
Total 1,727 1,432 223 1.921 1,737 184 1,493 1,354 139
Less: ' :

Production {lifting) costs 384 339 a5 357 294 83 272 220 52

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 560 497 83 526 470 56 502 452 50

Income tax expense 295 266 28 356 350 6 222 209 13
Results of operations $ 472 $ 422 $ 52 $ 682 $ 623 $ 59 § 497 $ 473 § 24
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Company-Owned Reserves

Estimated net quantities of proved gas and oil {including condensats) reserves in the United States and Canada at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and

changes in the reserves during those years, are shown in the two schedules that follow:

2004 2003 2002
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada
{biltion cubic feet)
Proved developed and undeveloped
reserves—Gas
At January 1 5,359 4,801 568 5,098 4,458 640 4,080 3517 573
Changes in reserves:
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 400 342 58 821 767 54 874 769 105
Revisions of previous estimatest (28) 163 (191} (147} 71 (76} 158 145 13
Production (371) (327) (44) {396) (348) {50) {399) (346) {83)
Purchases of gas in place 10 10 - 133 133 - 381 379 2
Sales of gas in place {317 (85) (292) (140) (140) - 6) {6) -
At December 31 5,003 4804 99 5,369 4,801 568 5,098 4,458 640
Proved developed reserves—Gas
At January 1 4,005 3,553 4353 4,035 3,549 486 3,466 3,026 440
At December 31 3775 3,680 85 4,008 3.553 453 4,035 3548 486
Proved developed and undeveloped
reserves—0il
{thousands of barrels}
At January 1 169,834 135914 34,020 169,230 138,798 30,432 140,567 115,988 24579
Changes in reserves:
Extensions, discoveries and other additions 9,385 1.545 1,840 13,223 7818 5,405 24,326 24,273 53
Revisions of previous estimatest (17,911) {5,584) (12,327) 697 1,433 {736) 11,165 4,293 6,872
Production (10,001) (8,800) {1,201) {8,723} (7.642) (1,081} {9,725) (8.653) (1,072)
Purchases of oil in place 686 886 - 380 380 - 2928 2,928 -
Sales of oil in place (3.475) (818) (2,658) (4,873) (4.873) - (31 {31) —
At Decamber 31 148,598 128,924 19,674 169,934 135,914 34,020 169,230 138,798 30,432
Proved developed reserves—Qit
At January 1 59,754 42,347 11,4017 65823 47,753 18,064 63,777 46,473 17,304
At December 31 28,841 87,382 11,459 59,754 42,347 17,407 66,823 47,758 18,064

{1} Approximately 187 Bcf of the Canadian reserve revisions pertained to properties sold in 2004 and resulted from performance-based reserve reclassifications from proved undeveloped to unproved.
{2) Approximately 8.3 million barrels of the Canadian reserve revisions pertained to properties sold in 2004 and resulted from performance-based reserve re-determinations on two British Columbia

enhanced oil recovery projects.

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows and Changes Therein
The following tabulation has been prepared in accordance with the FASB's rules for disclosure of a standardized measure of discounted future net cash fiows
relating to proved gas and oil reserve quantities owned by Dominion:

2004 2003 2002
United United United
Total States Canada Total States Canada Total States Canada

{millions)
Future cash inflows® $35,818 $35,735 $1,084 $36,486 $32,922 $3.564 $28,337 $25,344 $2,993
Less:

Future development costs®? 1,527 1,488 39 1,505 1,391 114 1,092 1,005 87

Future production costs 5,608 5302 307 5,582 4,765 817 3603 2978 624

Future income tax expense 10,152 9,900 243 9,457 8,715 742 7,582 6,904 678
Future cash flows 19,531 19,035 435 19,942 18,051 1,891 16,060 14,456 1,604
Less annual discount {10% a year) 10,565 10,275 230 10,708 9,745 954 8,255 7436 819
Standardized measure of discounted future

net cash flows $ 9,026 $ 8,761 $ 265 $ 9,233 $ 8,306 $ 927 $ 7,805 $ 7.020 $ 785

(1) Amounts exclude the effect of derivative instruments designated as hedges of future sales of production at year-end.
{2) Estimated future development costs, excluding abandenment, for proved undeveloped reserves are estimated to be $451 million, $223 miltion and $236 million for 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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In the foregoing determination of future cash inflows, sales prices for
gas and oil were based on contractual arrangements or market prices at
year-end. Future costs of developing and producing the proved gas and ail
reserves reported at the end of each year shown were based on costs
determined at each such year end, assuming the continuation of existing
economic conditions. Future income taxes were computed by applying the
appropriate year-end or future statutory tax rate to future pretax net cash
flows, less the tax basis of the properties involved, and giving effect to tax
deductions, permanent differences and tax credits.

{tis not intended that the FASB's standardized measure of discounted
future net cash flows represent the fair market value of Dominion’s proved
reserves. Dominion cautions that the disclosures shown are based on esti-
mates of proved reserve quantities and future production schedules which
are inherently imprecise and subject to revision, and the 10% discount rate
is arbitrary. In addition, costs and prices as of the measurement date are
used in the determinations, and no value may be assigned to probable or
possible reserves.
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The following tabulation is @ summary of changes between the total
standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at the beginning
and end of each year:

2004 2003 2002

{millions}
Standardized measure of discounted future net
cash flows at January 1 $9233 §$7805 $3213
Changes in the year resulting from:
Sales and transfers of gas and oif produced
during the year, less production costs (2,004) {1,997) (1,088
Prices and production and development costs
related to future production
Extensions, discoveries and other additions,
less praduction and development costs
Previously estimated development costs incurred

1,686 480 3875

1118 1,920 2,039

during the year 172 182 223
Revisions of previous quantity estimates {738) {318) (152)
Accretion of discount 1,353 1,149 426
Income taxes (251) (679)  (2,639)
Other purchases and sales of proved reserves

inplace {878) 84 799
Other {principally timing of production) (6C3) 1,207 1,007

Standardized measure of discounted future net
cash flows at December 31 $9026 59233 $7.805




29. Quarterly Financial and Common Stock Data (unaudited)

A summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 follows. Amounts reflect all adjustments, consisting of only
normal recurring accruals, necessary in the opinion of management for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods. Results for interim periods may
fluctuate as a result of weather conditions, changes in rates and other factors.

First Second Third Fourth Full
Quarter Quarter Quarier Quarter Year

{millions, except per share amounts)

2004

Operating revenue $3,8798 $3,040 $3,292 $3,761 $13,872

Income from operations 830 580 744 503 2747

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 445 258 337 224 1,264
Netincome a3 251 337 224 1,248
Basic EPS:

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 1.37 0.79 1.02 0.67 384

Net income 1.35 0.76 1.02 087 3.80
Diluted EPS:

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 1.36 0.79 1.02 0.67 3.82

Net income 1.34 0.76 1.02 0.67 378

Dividends paid per share 0.545 0.545 0.645 0.655 2.50

Common stock prices (high-low) $65.85-51.20 $64.73-60.78 $65.87-62.07 $68.85-62.97 $58.85-60.78

2003

Operating revenug $3579 $2,630 $2,853 $3,016 $12,078

Income from operations 1,014 577 698 272 2,581

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 409 246 326 (32) 943
Net income {loss) 508 240 {256) (174) 318
Basic EPS:

Income {loss} from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 1.33 0.78 1.01 (0.10) 2.99

Netincome {loss) 1.64 0.76 (0.79} {0.54} 1.00
Diluted EPS:

Income (loss} from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

changes in accounting principles 1.32 0.78 1.01 (0.10) 2.98

Net income {loss) 1.64 0.76 {0.79) (0.54) 1.00

Dividends paid per share 0.645 0.645 0.645 0.645 2.58

Common stack prices (high-low) $58.62-51.74 $65.95-54.75 $64.28-58.05 364.45-59.27 $65.95-51.74
Dominion’s 2004 results include the impact of the following Dominion’s 2003 results include the impact of the following

significant items: significant items:

o Third quarter results include $61 million of after-tax losses related to o First quarter results include a $113 million after-tax gain representing
the discontinuance of hedge accounting for certain oil hedges, result- the cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 143 and EITF 02-3 described
ing from an interruption of oil production in the Gulf of Mexico caused in Note 3 and $63 million of fosses related to Dominion’s discontinued
by Hurricane lvan, and subsequent changes in the fair value of those telecommunications operations described in Note 8.
hedges; and o Third quarter results include $80 miltion of after-tax incremental

o Fourth quarter results include a $112 million after-tax charge reflecting restoration expenses associated with Hutricane Isabe! and $582 million
Dominion’s valuation of its interest in a long-term power tolling con- of losses related to Dominion’s discontinued telecommunications oper-
tract that is subject to a planned divestiture in the first quarter of 2005 ations described in Note 3; and
and a $61 million after-tax benefit due to the recognition of business o Fourth quarter results include $42 million of after-tax incremental
interruption insurance revenue assaciated with the recovery of defayed restoration expenses associated with Hurricane Isabel, $100 million of
gas and oil production due to Hurricane Ivan. losses related to Dominion’s discentinued telecommunications opera-

tions described in Note 9 and a $102 million after-tax loss representing
the cumulative effect of adopting Issue C20 and FIN 46R described in
Note 3.
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Shareholder Information

Dominion Resources Services, Inc. is the transfer agent and registrar for
Dominion’s common stock. Our Shareholder Services staff provides per-
sonal assistance for any inquiries Monday through Friday from 9a.m. to
noon and from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m. (ET). In addition, automated information is
available 24 hours a day through our voice response system.

1-800-552- 4034 (tol| free)
1-804-775-2500

Major press releases and other company information may be cbtained by
visiting our Web site at www.dom.com. Sharehalders may also abtain
account-specific information by visiting this site. To sign up for this ser-
vice, visit www.dom.com and click on “Investors;” then point to “Stock
Information” and select “Access Your Account.” Once you have accessed
the sign-in page, click on “First Time Visitor” in the upper-left corner of
the screen and follow the directions for “New Member Sign Up.” After you
have signed up, you will be able to monitor your account, make changes
and review your Dominion Direct® statements at your convenience.

Rirect Stock Purchase Plan

You may buy Dominian common stack through Dominign Direct® Please
contact Shareholder Services for a prospectus and enroliment form or visit
www.dom.com.

Commor Stoclk Listing
New York.Stock Exchange
Trading symbol: D

Common Stock Price Range

2004 2003
High Low High Low
First Quarter $65.85 $61.20 $58.62 $51.74
Secand Quarter £4.75 §0.78 65.95 54.75
Third Quarter 55.87 62.07 64.28 58.05
Fourth Quarter 68.85 §2.97 64.45 59.27
Year $68.85 $60.78 $65.95 $51.74

Dividends on Dominion common stock are paid as declared by the board.
Dividends are typically paid on the 20th of March, June, September and
December. Dividends can be paid by check or electronic deposit, or they
may be reinvested.

On December 31, 2004, there were approximately 170,000 registered
shareholders, including approximately 79,000 certificate holders.

Certifications

Dominion has submitted to the New York Stock Exchanga (NYSE} a
certification by its chief executive officer that he is not aware of any
violation by the company of NYSE corporate govermance listing standards.
Bominion has also filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
certifications by its chief executive officer and chief financial officer as
Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Annual Meeting

This year's Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Dominion Resources, Inc.
will be held Friday, April 22, at 3:30 a.m. (ET) at Dominion’s Innsbrock
Technical Center located at 5000 Daminion Boulevard, Glen Allen, Virginia.

Corporate Strest Address
Dominion Resources, Inc.
120 Tredegar Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Mailing Address

Dominion Resources, Inc.

P0. Box 26532

Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Web Site

www.dom.com

Dominion’s Annual Report is available on its Web site.
Keyward: Annual Report

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Richmond, Virginia

Shareholder Inquiries
Shareholder_Services@dom.com

Dominion Resources Services, Inc.
Shareholder Services

P 0. Box 26532

Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Additienal Information

Copies of Dominion’s reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K are
available without charge. These items can be viewed by visiting
www.dom.com, or requests for these items can be made by writing to:

tnvestar Relations Department
Dominien Resources, Inc.

P0. Box 26532

Richmond, Virginia 23261-6532

Or by e-mail to:
Investor_Relations@dom.com

Electronic Reports

Our proxy statement and annual report are available electronically. Please
refer to the proxy card that was mailed to shareholders with this annual
report for more information.
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On thae Back Cover

Small photos left-to-right:

1. Dominion employees initiated a unique building approach using modularized pipe
rack at the Fairless Energy generating facility in Pennsylvania. This innovation saved the
company time and costs during construction.

2. Coliaborating with the Virginia Park Service and Trout Unlimited, Dominion employee
volunteers built an alt-accessible fishing pier at Virginia's Sherando Lake State Park last
summer.

3. Each workday, Larry Shelton can read as many as 12,000 electric meters on a metro-
politan-area route by working from a specially-equipped vehicle. Prior to automation, a
meter reader walking a route could read about 500 meters per day.
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For factors that could cause actual results to differ, see Forward Looking Statements, Risk Factors and
Cautionary Statements That May Affect Future Results and Market Rate Sensitive Instruments and Risk
Management in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in
this report.
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